
           

MEETING AGENDA
City Council

REGULAR SESSION CITY COUNCIL
October 12, 2021

                               

 

HAL BALDWIN MUNICIPAL COMPLEX COUNCIL CHAMBERS
1400 SCHERTZ PARKWAY BUILDING #4

SCHERTZ, TEXAS 78154

CITY OF SCHERTZ CORE VALUES
Do the right thing

Do the best you can
Treat others the way you want to be treated

Work cooperatively as a team 
  

AGENDA
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

City Council will hold its regularly scheduled meeting at 6:00 p.m.,
Tuesday, October 12, 2021, at the City Council Chambers. In lieu of attending
the meeting in person, residents will have the opportunity to watch the meeting
via live stream on the City’s YouTube Channel.
           

Call to Order 
 

Opening Prayer and Pledges of Allegiance to the Flags of the United States and State of Texas.
(Councilmember Whittaker)
 

Presentations 

Proclamation recognizing Mr. Ken Greenwald former City Councilmember and Planning and
Zoning Commissioner. (Mayor)
Proclamation recognizing Domestic Violence Awareness Month. (Mayor/K. Chandler/Hanna
Fisher-Klug)

 

Employee Recognition 

20 Year Service Recognition to Mr. Dudley Wait - EMS. (M. Browne)

New Employee Recognition 

EMS - Amber Cockrum - EMS Billing Specialist; Sean Hilla, Miranda Horak, John

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 1 

  



Mays-Thompson, Austin Redman, Nick Romero - EMT's; Darienn Trotter - Paramedic
Library - Alexsaray Wheeler - Library Clerk
PD - Krista Chandler - Crime Victim Liaison; Animal Control: Jaralynne Biggs - Animal Services
Technician,  Ashley Evans - Animal Services Officer
Public Works - John Woolston - Facilities Manager; Raymond Garcia, Benjimin Rantz, Brandon
Eskildsen, Juan Zamarripa, Caleb Fisher - Service Worker I

 

City Events and Announcements 

Announcements of upcoming City Events (B. James/C. Kelm/S. Gonzalez)
Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager (M. Browne)
Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor (R. Gutierrez)

 

Hearing of Residents

This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should fill out
the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more than 3 minutes.

 All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any individual member thereof.
Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks while addressing the Council may
be requested to leave the meeting.

Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements of specific factual
information given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry,
and/or a proposal to place the item on a future agenda. The presiding officer, during the Hearing of
Residents portion of the agenda, will call on those persons who
have signed up to speak in the order they have registered.
 

Consent Agenda Items

The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the Consent Agenda
upon the request of the Mayor or a Councilmember.
 

1. Minutes – Consideration and/or action regarding the approval of the minutes of the meeting
of September 28, 2021. (B. Dennis)

 

2. Appointments and Resignations to the Various City Boards, Commissions and
Committees - Consideration and/or action accepting the resignations of Mr. Rick Haynes
from the Planning and Zoning Commission, and the resignation of Ms. Kimberly Smith from
the Parks Advisory Board. (B. Dennis/Interview Committee/Council)

 

3. Resolution 21-R-97 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz Texas authorizing the city staff to enter into
purchase negotiations with GBRA for 3.4096 acres of land located at 22330 IH-35 North in
Schertz, Comal County, Texas. (C. Kelm/S. Williams/S. Mayfield)

 

4. Resolution No. 21-R-81 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 2 

  



4. Resolution No. 21-R-81 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the City Manager to execute a drainage
easement with Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent School District for construction
of drainage improvements on the Samuel Clemens High School property by the Elbel Storm
Drain and Overlay Project. (B. James/K. Woodlee/J. Nowak)

 

5. Resolution No. 21-R-113 – Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc.
relating to the Aviation Heights Water Line Improvements (Phases 5, 6, & 7) Project
Construction Materials Testing and Inspection and authorizing the budget expenditures for
the project.  (B. James/K. Woodlee/J. Shortess)

 

6. Resolution No. 21-R-114 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas accepting the Semi-annual report with respect to the
progress of the Capital Improvements Plan, and other matters in connection therewith. (B.
James/K. Woodlee)

 

7. Resolution No. 21-R-112 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to issue a purchase
order(s) for the purchase of various Emergency Services Vehicles as part of the 2021-2022
Vehicle/Equipment replacement program. (C. Kelm/S. Williams/C. Hernandez)

 

8. Resolution No. 21-R-108 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with Raba Kistner, Inc., for
Construction Materials Observation and Testing Services related to the Woman Hollering
Creek Wastewater Project.  (B. James/K. Woodlee)

 

Discussion and Action Items
 

9. Ordinance No. 21-T-46 - Consideration and/or action approving an Ordinance by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing an adjustment to the fiscal year
2021-2022 budget to provide funding for an agreement with M&S Engineering for Design,
Bid, and Construction Phase professional services for the Civic Center HVAC Replacement
Project and authorizing the execution of the agreement, repealing all ordinances or parts of
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance; and providing an effective date.  (First Reading)
(C. Kelm/S. Williams/S. McClelland)

 

10. Ordinance No. 21-B-45 - Consideration and approval of an Ordinance by the City Council
of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the issuance of “City of Schertz, Texas General
Obligation and Refunding Bonds, Series 2021”, levying an annual ad valorem tax, within the
limitations prescribed by law, for the payment of the bonds; and other matters incident and
related thereto, and providing an effective date.  (First and final reading) (M. Browne/J.
Walters/M. McLiney)

 

Public Hearings
 

11. Ordinance No. 21-S-42 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and/or action approving an

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 3 

  



11. Ordinance No. 21-S-42 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and/or action approving an
Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas on a request to rezone 1.373
acres of land from Pre- Development District (PRE) to Single-Family Residential/
Agricultural District (RA), generally located 750 feet east of the intersection between
Trainer Hale Road and FM 1518, 9049 Trainer Hale Road, also known as Bexar County
Property Identification Number 310238, City of Schertz, Bexar County, Texas. ( First
Reading) (B. James/L. Wood/M. Harrison)

 

12. Ordinance No. 21-S-43 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and/or action approving an
Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas on a request to rezone
approximately 45 acres of land from General Business District (GB) to Manufacturing Light
District (M-1), generally located approximately 1,300 feet east of Friesenhahn Lane and 450
feet north of IH-35 access road, also known as Comal County Property Identification
Numbers 150166 & 81285, City of Schertz, Comal County, Texas. (First Reading) (B.
James/L. Wood/M. Harrison)

 

13. Ordinance No. 21-S-44  - Conduct a public hearing and consideration and or/action to
approve an Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas to amend the
Schertz Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code (UDC), Article 5, Subsection
21.5.8 Permitted Use Table, to add "Aggregate Extraction". (First Reading) (B. James/L.
Wood/M. Harrison)

 

Roll Call Vote Confirmation
 

Requests and Announcements 

Announcements by the City Manager.

Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for updates or information from staff.  
 
Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers that items or presentations be placed on a future City
Council agenda.
 
Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers
  

City and community events attended and to be attended
City Council Committee and Liaison Assignments (see assignments below)
Continuing education events attended and to be attended
Recognition of actions by City employees
Recognition of actions by community volunteers

 

Adjournment
 

CERTIFICATION 

I, BRENDA DENNIS, CITY SECRETARY OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE AGENDA WAS PREPARED AND POSTED ON THE OFFICIAL
BULLETIN BOARDS ON THIS THE 5th DAY OF OCTOBER 2021 AT 5:30 P.M., WHICH IS A
PLACE READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC AT ALL TIMES AND THAT SAID NOTICE

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 4 

  



WAS POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.
  

BRENDA DENNIS
 

I CERTIFY THAT THE ATTACHED NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ITEMS TO BE
CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL WAS REMOVED BY ME FROM THE OFFICIAL
BULLETIN BOARD ON _____DAY OF _______________, 2021. TITLE: ______________ 

This facility is accessible in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Handicapped parking
spaces are available. If you require special assistance or have a request for sign interpretative services
or other services, please call 210-619-1030. 

The City Council for the City of Schertz reserves the right to adjourn into closed session at any
time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by
the Texas Open Meetings Act.

Closed Sessions Authorized: This agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal
counsel and the presence of any subject in any Closed Session portion of the agenda constitutes a
written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by legal counsel for the
governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering available opinions of a court of
record and opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney. This provision has been
added to this agenda with the intent to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government
Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by all participants in reliance on this
opinion. 
  

COUNCIL COMMITTEE AND LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS
   
Mayor Gutierrez
Audit Committee
Investment Advisory Committee
Main Street Committee

Councilmember Scagliola – Place 5
Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation -
Alternate
Hal Baldwin Scholarship Committee
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions -
Alternate
Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation

Councilmember Davis– Place 1
Interview Committee for Boards and
Commissions
Main Street Committee - Chair
Schertz Housing Authority Board
TIRZ II Board 
 

Councilmember Scott – Place 2
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions
Schertz Animal Services Advisory Commission 

 

Councilmember Whittaker – Place 3
Audit Committee
TIRZ II Board 
 

Councilmember Dahle – Place 4
Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions
TIRZ II Board

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 5 

  



Councilmember Heyward – Place 6
Animal Advisory Commission
Audit Committee
Investment Advisory Committee
Main Street Committee

Councilmember Brown – Place 7
Main Street Committee
Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation -
Alternate
 

  

October 12, 2021  City Council Agenda                                  Page 6 

  



Agenda No. 1.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: City Secretary

Subject: Minutes – Consideration and/or action regarding the approval of the minutes
of the meeting of September 28, 2021. (B. Dennis)

BACKGROUND
The City Council held a Regular City Council meeting on September 28, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend Approval. 



Agenda No. 2.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Appointments and Resignations to the Various City Boards, Commissions and Committees -

Consideration and/or action accepting the resignations of Mr. Rick Haynes from
the Planning and Zoning Commission, and the resignation of Ms. Kimberly Smith
from the Parks Advisory Board. (B. Dennis/Interview Committee/Council)

BACKGROUND
The City Secretary's office received resignations from Mr. Ricky Haynes from the Planning and Zoning
Commission and from Ms. Kimberly Smith from the Parks Advisory Board.

Staff recommends approval of the resignations of Mr. Ricky Haynes and Ms. Kimberly Smith.



Agenda No. 3.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Resolution 21-R-97 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City

Council of the City of Schertz Texas authorizing the city staff to enter into
purchase negotiations with GBRA for 3.4096 acres of land located at 22330 IH-35
North in Schertz, Comal County, Texas. (C. Kelm/S. Williams/S. Mayfield)

BACKGROUND
GBRA owned and operated a wastewater plant at 22330 IH-35 North and in 2021 GBRA decomissioned
this wastewater plant. The City of Schertz owns and operates a lift station located along the back of the
propery that serves Northcliff and receives all of the flow from Cypress Point, Friesenhahn, Covers
Cove, Parklands and the Homestead lift station.  Since most of northern Schertz currently flows through
this lift station, it would be wise startegically to purchase this property to increase future capacity. 
GBRA is currently selling this 3.4096 acres of land and it is in a prime location with IH-35 frontage and
access. The I-35 access to the property is also the only access we have to the lift station located on the
back of the property. Since we only have an utility easment for the part of the property where the lift
station sits, purchasing the property will ensure ability and flexibility for design and size of the future
capacity  In addition, this property has been appraised at the value GBRA is selling it for, indicating a
fair price.
 

GOAL 
To strategically secure property to accomodate infrastructure to ensure safe and reliable services to
Schertz and its growing population.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
This property has the potential of providing numerous benefits to Schertz residents.  For example, this
location could serve as a convenient storage area  for equipment and materials; creating efficiencies by
allowing faster response times to emergencies and job sites.  By being located nearer to job sites,
maintenance costs would be reduced as a result of less wear and tear on equipment and vehicles.  In
additon, jobs would be completed quicker by eliminating windshield time.  For example, equipment,
such as the street sweeper, must return to the main Public Works location on Commercial  Place to
empty material once its bin is full. Then, the street sweeper returns to the area and continues sweeping. 
By providing an additional site, in Northern Schertz, the street seeper could cover more streets in less
time. 

The property is also an ideal location for a future large regional lift station providing much needed
future sewer capacity to support future growth in the area. There are very large undeveloped parcels of
land, both residental and commercial, that will require future sewer service through this location. Since
most of northen schertz already flows through the existing lift station increasing flows  throug this site
would require upgrades to the current lift station that would require a larger footprint to constuct extra
needed capacity in the area. By purchacing the property, Schertz would have space to upsize the lift
station, including construction, and have room for storage of materials and equipment.   Purchasing



property now and at the current cost is a strategic invement to be able to provide future sewer facilities
to serve Northern Schertz.  

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 21-R-97 authorizing the City staff to enter into a purchase negotiation with
GBRA for 3.4096 acre tract of land located at 22330 IH-35 north in schertz comal county texas with a
cost not to exceed $698,000 .
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total not to exceed amount is $698,000.00.  However, City staff will work to negotiate a lower cost
for the puchase of the property.  This money is in the _____________budget for __________.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 21-R-97 authorizing the City staff to enter into a
purchase negotiation with GBRA for 3.4096 acre tract of land located at 22330 IH-35 north in schertz
comal county texas with a cost not to exceed $698,000 

Attachments
MAP 





Agenda No. 4.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Resolution No. 21-R-81 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the City Manager to
execute a drainage easement with Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent
School District for construction of drainage improvements on the Samuel Clemens
High School property by the Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay Project. (B. James/K.
Woodlee/J. Nowak)

BACKGROUND
An existing parking area on the Samuel Clemens High School campus discharges storm water runoff across the ground
surface, across the sidewalk, and into Elbel Road.  The Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay project will construct drainage
improvements in Elbel Road in the vicinity of this discharge.  The planned Elbel Road improvements may also hinder the
existing surface flow form the parking area, creating a ponding problem in the parking area.

The Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay project includes installation of a storm drain inlet, some curb and gutter modifications,
and some piping to connect the inlet to the new storm drain system being constructed in the street.  These improvements will
essentially take the existing surface discharge and put it directly into the new underground storm drain system, thus
maintaining the “status quo” for the parking area.  As an added benefit, the existing surface flow from the parking area that
runs across the sidewalk will be eliminated.

As these improvements are located outside the public right-of-way, an easement from the property owner must be granted in
order for the improvements to be constructed.  The Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent School District Board of
Trustees will need to approve dedication of the drainage easement to accommodate these drainage improvements and is
anticipted to do so later this month.  In order for the easement to be binding, the City Council of the City of Schertz must
pass a resolution authorizing the easement to be executed by the City Manager.  With Council approval, the easement
document can be executed and recorded, allowing the drainage improvements to be constructed by the Elbel Storm Drain
and Overlay project.

GOAL 
To obtain authorization from City Council to execute a drainage easement with Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City
Independent School District for construction of some drainage improvements on the Samuel Clemens High School property
by the Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay Project.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
A portion of one of the parking areas on the Samuel Clemens High School campus currently drains
across the sidewalk surface onto Elbel.  The Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay project is placing
underground storm drain pipes in the vicinity to improve drainage for Elbel Road.  Placing a storm drain
inlet and replacing some of the existing curb and gutter in the parking area will allow the drainage to
flow into the new storm drain piping instead of flowing across the surface.  This will reduce the amount
of water flowing across the sidewalk at this location, improving pedestrian safety.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approval of Resolution 21-R-81 authorizing the City Manager to execute a drainage easement with



Approval of Resolution 21-R-81 authorizing the City Manager to execute a drainage easement with
Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent School District for construction of some drainage improvements on the Samuel
Clemens High School property by the Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay Project.

FISCAL IMPACT 
There are no costs associated with the proposed easement.

RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of Resolution 21-R-81 authorizing the City Manager to execute a drainage easement with
Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent School District for construction of some drainage improvements on the Samuel
Clemens High School property by the Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay Project.

Attachments
Resolution 21-R-81 
SCUCISD Elbel Easement 



RESOLUTION NO.  21-R-81

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A DRAINAGE EASEMENT WITH SCHERTZ-CIBOLO-
UNIVERSAL CITY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ON THE SAMUEL 
CLEMENS HIGH SCHOOL PROPERTY BY THE ELBEL STORM 
DRAIN AND OVERLAY PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City staff of the City of Schertz (the “City”) has determined that some 
drainage improvements needed to be constructed on the Samuel Clemens High School campus as 
part of the Elbel Storm Drain and overlay project; and

WHEREAS, the Schertz-Cibolo-Universal City Independent School District (SCUCISD), 
the property owner of Samuel Clemens High School campus, agrees to allow the drainage 
improvements to be constructed on their property.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a 
drainage easement with SCUCISD for construction of drainage improvements on the Samuel 
Clemens High School campus in substantially the form attached hereto.

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision.

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.



50077397.1

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

(CITY SEAL)



50077397.1 A-1

EXHIBIT A

DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT



NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU 
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM 
THIS INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: 
YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

DRAINAGE MAINTENANCE AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF GUADALUPE §

GRANT OF EASEMENT:

SCHERTZ-CIBOLO-UNIVERSAL CITY INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
a body corporate and political subdivision in the Counties of Guadalupe and Bexar, State of 
Texas (“Grantor”), for the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and confessed, does 
hereby grant, sell and convey unto THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule 
city, with offices located at 1400 Schertz Parkway, Schertz, Texas 78154 (“Grantee”), an 
easement and right-of-way (“Easement”) upon and across the property of Grantor which is more 
particularly described on Exhibit ”A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(“Easement Tract”), 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same perpetually to Grantee and its successors and 
assigns, together with the rights, and privileges and on the terms and conditions set forth below; 
and Grantor, subject to the Exceptions, to Warranty, does hereby covenant and agree to 
WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND title to the Easement herein granted, unto Grantee, its 
successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same 
or any part thereof.

Terms and Conditions: The following terms and conditions apply to the 
Easement granted by this agreement:

1. Definitions.  For the purposes of this grant of Easement certain terms shall have 
the meanings that follow:

(a) “Holder” shall mean Grantee and Grantee's heirs, successors and assigns 
who at any time own any interest in the conveyance is subject to the terms 
of this agreement.

(b) “Utility” shall mean drainage facilities.

2. Character of Easement. The Easement granted herein is "in gross," in that there is 
no "Benefitted Property." Nevertheless, the Easement rights herein granted shall 
pass to Grantee's successors and assigns, subject to all of the Terms hereof. The 



Easement rights of use granted herein are nonexclusive and irrevocable. The 
Easement is for the benefit of Holder.

3. Purpose of Easement.  The Easement shall be used for utility purposes, including 
placement, construction, and installation of utility facilities and related 
appurtenances, and for the authorization of Grantee to enforce maintenance 
obligations including the right of self-help.

4. Term.  Easement shall be in perpetuity unless relinquished or abandoned by 
ordinance or resolution by Grantee.

5. Reservation of Rights. Holder’s right to use the Easement Property is 
nonexclusive, and Grantor and Grantor’s heirs, successors, and assigns retain the 
right to use all or part of the Easement Property in conjunction with Holder as 
long as such use by Grantor and Grantor’s heirs, successors, and assigns does not 
(i) interfere with the use of the Easement Property by Holder for the Easement 
Purpose, nor (ii) may Grantor construct any building, structure or obstruction on 
the Easement Property.  The right to convey to others the right to use all or part of 
the Easement Property in conjunction with Holder, as long as such further 
conveyance is subject to the terms of this agreement.  Written approval of Holder 
must be obtained prior to any use or improvement of Easement Property.

6. Improvement and Maintenance of Easement Property. Maintenance of the 
Easement Property and the Facilities will be at the sole expense of Grantor. 
Holder has the right to enforce that maintenance obligation via self-help remedies 
if it so elects. 

7. Permitted Improvements. Notwithstanding any contrary provision, Grantor shall 
retain the right to improve the easement area.  Any permitted improvement made 
by Grantor must comply with applicable ordinances, development codes and 
engineering guidelines of the City of Schertz, and must not conflict with use of 
the easement for its intended purpose as described herein.

8. Equitable Rights of Enforcement. This Easement may be enforced by restraining 
orders and injunctions (temporary or permanent) prohibiting interference and 
commanding compliance. Restraining orders and injunctions will be obtainable on 
proof of the existence of interference or threatened interference, without the 
necessity of proof of inadequacy of legal remedies or irreparable harm, and will 
be obtainable only by the parties to or those benefited by this agreement; 
provided, however, that the act of obtaining an injunction or restraining order will 
not be deemed to be an election of remedies or a waiver of any other rights or 
remedies available at law or in equity.

9. Attorney's Fees. If either party retains an attorney to enforce this agreement, the 
party prevailing in litigation is entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and 
court and other costs.



10. Binding Effect. This agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the parties and 
their respective heirs, successors, and permitted assigns.

11. Choice of Law. This agreement will be construed under the laws of the state of 
Texas, without regard to choice-of-law rules of any jurisdiction. Venue is in the 
county or counties in which the Easement Property is located.

12. Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts 
with the same effect as if all signatory parties had signed the same document. All 
counterparts will be construed together and will constitute one and the same 
instrument.

13. Waiver of Default. It is not a waiver of or consent to default if the non-defaulting 
party fails to declare immediately default or delays in taking any action. Pursuit of 
any remedies set forth in this agreement does not preclude pursuit of other 
remedies in this agreement or provided by law.

14. Further Assurances. Each signatory party agrees to execute and deliver any 
additional documents and instruments and to perform any additional acts 
necessary or appropriate to perform the terms, provisions, and conditions of this 
agreement and all transactions contemplated by this agreement.

15. Integration. This agreement contains the complete agreement of the parties and 
cannot be varied except by written agreement of the parties. The parties agree that 
there are no oral agreements, representations, or warranties that are not expressly 
set forth in this agreement.

16. Exceptions to Warranty.  This grant is subject to any and all encumbrances and 
easements of record, to the extent the same are valid and enforceable.

17. Legal Construction. Any provision in this agreement is for any reason 
unenforceable, to the extent the unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the 
bargain among the parties, the unenforceability will not affect any other provision 
hereof, and this agreement will be construed as if the unenforceable provision had 
never been a part of the agreement. Whenever context requires, the singular will 
include the plural and neuter include the masculine or feminine gender, and vice 
versa. Article and section headings in this agreement are for reference only and 
are not intended to restrict or define the text of any section. This agreement will 
not be construed more or less favorably between the parties by reason of 
authorship or origin of language.

18. Notices. Any notice required or permitted under this agreement must be in 
writing. Any notice required by this agreement will be deemed to be delivered 
(whether actually received or not) when deposited with the United States Postal 
Service, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, and addressed to 



the intended recipient at the address shown in this agreement. Notice may also be 
given by regular mail, personal delivery, courier delivery, facsimile transmission, 
or other commercially reasonable means and will be effective when actually 
received. Any address for notice may be changed by written notice delivered as 
provided herein.

19. Recitals/Exhibits. Any recitals in this agreement are represented by the parties to 
be accurate, and constitute a part of the substantive agreement.  All exhibits 
referenced herein are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein for all 
purposes.

20. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement between the 
parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed.  
Any oral representation or modification concerning this instrument shall be of no 
force and effect except for any subsequent modification in writing, signed by the 
party to be charged.



In witness whereof, this instrument is executed this ____ day of __________________,  
2021.

GRANTOR:

_________________________________
(Grantor’s Name)

By: _________________________________
(Grantor’s Signature)

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF GUADALUPE §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ______________, 2021, 
by _________________________, an individual residing in ____________ County, Texas.

Notary Public, State Of Texas

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

City of Schertz
A Texas home-rule municipality

________________________________________
Dr. Mark Browne
City Manager, City of Schertz

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF GUADALUPE §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2021, 
by Dr. Mark Browne, City Manager of the City of Schertz, Texas, a Texas home-rule 
municipality, on behalf of said municipality.

Notary Public, State of Texas

Exhibit:
“A” Description of Development Tract



EXHIBIT “A”

Description of Easement Area



kw0973
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"





0+00

0+96

10927 WYE DRIVE, SUITE 104, SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78217, (210) 590-4777

ENGINEERING      *      PLANNING      *      DEVELOPMENT

FORD ENGINEERING INC.

STATE OF TEXAS :

I, ROBERT W. JOHNSTON, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT 

MADE ON THE GROUND AND UNDER MY SUPERVISION.
THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY
MADE ON THE GROUND AND UNDER MY SUPERVISION.
THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY

DATE:
PROJECT NO.: 
DRAWN BY:

COUNTY OF GUADALUPE:
STATE OF TEXAS :

RWJ
1124-9403

07-02-2021

ON JUNE 30, 2021

H:
\C

IV
_P

RO
J\

_S
CH

ER
TZ

\1
12

49
4 

03
 E

lb
el

 R
d 

- S
to

rm
 E

xt
 a

nd
 O

ve
rla

y\
Dr

aw
in

gs
\1

12
49

40
3D

ra
in

ag
eE

as
em

en
t.d

w
g.

dw
g,

 P
LA

T,
 7

/2
/2

02
1 

2:
51

:5
2 

PM
, 1

:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 59°37'48" E  616.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 59°37'48" E  37.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 30°22'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30°22'12" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 59°37'48" W  37.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N 60° E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S 60° W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E L B E L   R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
( 8 0 '  R O W )

AutoCAD SHX Text
G E N O B E R A    M A L P A Z    S U R V E Y   N o .   6 7 A B S T R A C T   N o .  2 2 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHERTZ-CIBILO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SAMUEL E. CLEMENTS HIGH SCHOOL (29.379 ACRES) VOL. 346, PG. 456 DRGCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.017 ACRE TRACT (722 sq. ft.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT W. JOHNSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPLS No. 5579

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
Society of

AutoCAD SHX Text
Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF GUADALUPE COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRGCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORD INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(       )

AutoCAD SHX Text
Professional

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT SHOWING DRAINAGE EASEMENT: OUT OF THE GENOBERA MALPAZ SURVEY No. 67 ABSTRACT No. 221 CITY OF SCHERTZ, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.



Agenda No. 5.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Engineering
Subject: Resolution No. 21-R-113 – Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with Terracon
Consultants, Inc. relating to the Aviation Heights Water Line Improvements
(Phases 5, 6, & 7) Project Construction Materials Testing and Inspection and
authorizing the budget expenditures for the project.  (B. James/K. Woodlee/J.
Shortess)

BACKGROUND
Previously, the City authorized construction of the Phases 5, 6, & 7 of the Aviation Heights Water Line
Improvements project due to the limited fire protection provided by smaller diameter water mains in the
Aviation Heights service area. The City of Schertz has been working to upgrade and replace these
smaller diameter water mains which are currently located in alleyways and are difficult to maintain.
Construction will include abandonment of 3” and 6” diameter water mains within alleys and replacing
with 8” water mains within street rights-of-way.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle F, Sec.2269.058, Independently of the
contractor, construction manager-at-risk, or design-build firm, the governmental entity shall provide or
contract for the construction materials engineering, testing, and inspection services and the verification
testing services necessary for acceptance of the facility by the governmental entity.
Staff has determined that the proposal from Terracon Consultants, Inc. is acceptable. Terracon
Consultants is one of the City's On-Call Materials Testing Firms and was procured via the Request for
Qualifications process. The contract will be issued in the form of a Task Order in accordance with the
Master Services Agreement.

GOAL 
To obtain authorization from Council to execute a contract with Terracon Consultants., Inc. for $63,000
plus $6,000 (10% contingency) for a not to exceed amount of $69,000, for the Aviation Heights Water
Line Improvements (Phases 5, 6, & 7) Construction Materials Testing and Inspection.
 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The relocation of the Aviation Heights water mains will improve the service and reliability to the
residents in the Aviation Heights service area. By providing construction materials testing and
inspection, the City will more efficiently monitor backfill materials to ensure proper compaction under
roadways in conformance with the project specifications.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize execution of the construction contract for the Aviation Heights Water Line Improvements
(Phases 5, 6, & 7) Construction Materials Testing and Inspection with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for
$63,000 and a not to exceed amount of $69,000.



FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost of the project shall not exceed $69,000 funding is available from the Water Reserves.  The
Water Reserves allocated a total of $1.8 million to Aviation Heights Waterline Improvement projects.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 21-R-113 and authorize award of a contract for the
Aviation Heights Water Line Improvements (Phases 5, 6, & 7) Construction Materials Testing and
Inspection to Terracon Consultants, Inc. for $63,000 and a not to exceed amount of $69,000.

Attachments
21-R-113 
Task Order 
Contract 



 

RESOLUTION NO.  21-R-113 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 

TEXAS AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH TERRACON 

CONSULTANTS, INC. RELATING TO THE AVIATION HEIGHTS 

WATERLINE IMPROVEMENTS (PHASES 5, 6, & 7) PROJECT 

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING AND INSPECTION AND 

AUTHORIZING THE BUDGET EXPENDITURES FOR THE PROJECT 

WHEREAS, The City staff of the City of Schertz (the “City”) has recommended that the 

City accept the contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc. relating to the Aviation Heights 

Waterline Improvements (Phases 5, 6, & 7) Project Construction Materials Testing and 

Inspection and approve the project expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has received qualifications indicating that Terracon Consultants, 

Inc. is qualified to provide such services for the City; and 

WHEREAS, Terracon Consultants, Inc. is an approved On-Call Engineering Firm for the 

City of Schertz; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 252.022(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code, the 

City is not required to seek bids or proposals with respect to procurement for personal, 

professional, or planning purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the project is a planned project and will be funded from Water Reserves.   

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

THAT: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute and 

deliver the contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for an amount of $63,000, with an amount 

not to exceed $69,000.  

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 

and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 

part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 

any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 



50506221.1  - 2 - 

of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 

provision. 

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 

this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 

given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 

passage, and it is so resolved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021. 

 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

 

 

 

  

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 
 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

TASK ORDER EDITION 

Note: The City of Schertz, Texas has modified this document. The modified language 
is indicated by strikeout and/or underlining 

 

 

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the 
contemplated project and the controlling laws and regulations. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Copyright © 2014: 
 
 
 

National Society of Professional Engineers 

1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 

(703) 684-2882 
 

www.nspe.org 
 
 
 

American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 347-7474 

www.acec.org 
 
 
 

American Society of Civil Engineers 
 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 

(800) 548-2723 

www.asce.org 
 
 
 

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above. The 
National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC documents; please direct 
all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE. 

 
 

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring organizations 
above. 

This Agreement has been prepared for use with EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract, 2013 Edition. Their provisions are interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate a change in the 
other. For guidance on the completion and use of this Agreement, see EJCDC® E-001, Commentary on the EJCDC 
Engineering Services Agreements, 2013 Edition. 

http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.ejcdc.org/


EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES OF ENGINEER 1 
1.1 Scope ................................................................................................................................................................. 1 
1.2 Task Order Procedure ................................................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 2 
2.01 General ....................................................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 3 – TERM; TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES 2 
3.1 Term ........................................................................................................................................................... 2 
3.2 Times for Rendering Services .................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 4 – INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 3 
4.1 Invoices ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 
4.2 Payments .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 5 – OPINIONS OF COST 4 
5.1 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost ................................................................................................... 4 
5.2 Designing to Construction Cost Limit ........................................................................................................ 4 
5.3 Opinions of Total Project Costs ................................................................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 4 
6.1 Standards of Performance ......................................................................................................................... 4 
6.2 Design Without Construction Phase Services ........................................................................................... 6 
6.3 Use of Documents ..................................................................................................................................... 6 
6.4 Electronic Transmittals .............................................................................................................................. 7 
6.5 Insurance .................................................................................................................................................... 8 
6.6 Suspension and Termination ..................................................................................................................... 9 
6.7 Controlling Law ........................................................................................................................................ 10 
6.8 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries .................................................................................................... 10 
6.9 Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................................................... 11 
6.10 Environmental Condition of Site .............................................................................................................. 11 
6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver ....................................................................................................... 12 
6.12 Records Retention ................................................................................................................................... 13 
6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions ......................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 7 – DEFINITIONS 14 
7.01 Defined Terms .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 8 – EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 17 
8.1 Suggested Form of Task Order ................................................................................................................ 17 
8.2 Exhibits Included: ........................................................................................................................................... 17 
8.3 Total Agreement ...................................................................................................................................... 18 
8.4 Designated Representatives .................................................................................................................... 18 
8.5 Engineer's Certifications .......................................................................................................................... 19 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

TASK ORDER EDITION 
 
 

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of July 1, 2020 (“Effective Date of the Agreement”) between 

  The City of Schertz  (“Owner”) and 

   (“Engineer”). 
 

Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7. 
 

From time to time Owner may request that Engineer provide professional services for Specific Projects. Each 
engagement will be documented by a Task Order. This Agreement sets forth the general terms and conditions which 
shall apply to all Task Orders duly executed under this Agreement. 

 
Owner and Engineer further agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES OF ENGINEER 

 
1.1 Scope 

 
A. Engineer’s services will be detailed in a duly executed Task Order for each Specific Project. The general 

format of a Task Order is shown in Attachment 1 to this Agreement. Each Task Order will indicate the 
specific services to be performed and deliverables to be provided. 

 
B. This Agreement is not a commitment by Owner to Engineer to issue any Task Orders. 

 
C. Engineer shall not be obligated to perform any prospective Task Order unless and until Owner and Engineer 

agree as to the particulars of the Specific Project, including the scope of Engineer's services, time for 
performance, Engineer's compensation, and all other appropriate matters. 

 
1.2 Task Order Procedure 

 
A. Owner and Engineer shall agree on the scope, time for performance, and basis of compensation for each 

Task Order. With respect to the scope of Engineer’s services, each specific Task Order shall either (1) be 
accompanied by and incorporate a customized Exhibit A, “Engineer’s Services for Task Order,” prepared for 
the Specific Project, (2) state the scope of services in the Task Order document itself, or (3) incorporate by 
reference all or portions of Exhibit A, “Engineer’s Services for Task Order,” as attached to this Agreement. 
Each duly executed Task Order shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
B. Engineer will commence performance as set forth in the Task Order. 

 
C. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth in the Task Order. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 2 

 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

2.01 General 
 

A. Owner shall have the responsibilities set forth in this Agreement; in Exhibit B, "Owner's Responsibilities"; 
and in each Task Order. 

 
B. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in each Task Order, pursuant to the applicable terms of Article 4 and 

Exhibit C. 
 

C. Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it furnishes to Engineer pursuant to 
this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all programs, reports, data, and other 
information furnished by Owner to Engineer pursuant to this Agreement; such responsibility extends to 
requirements, instructions, programs, reports, data, and other information furnished by Owner pursuant to 
any Task Order. Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, 
and information in performing or furnishing services under this Agreement, subject to any express 
limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished items. 

 
D. Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes 

aware of: (1) any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services; (2) the 
presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or (3) any relevant, material defect or nonconformance 
in Engineer’s services, the Work, the performance of any Constructor, or in Owner’s performance of its 
responsibilities under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 3 – TERM; TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES 

 
3.1 Term 

 

A. This Agreement shall be effective and applicable to Task Orders issued hereunder for three (3) year with 
the option to renew for two (2) additional terms of one (1) year each from the Effective Date of 
the Agreement. 

 
B. The parties may extend or renew this Agreement, with or without changes, by written instrument 

establishing a new term. 
 

3.2 Times for Rendering Services 
 

A. The Effective Date of the Task Order and the times for completing services or providing deliverables will be 
stated in each Task Order. Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services under a Task Order as of the 
Effective Date of the Task Order. 

 
B. If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and continuous 

progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or Engineer’s services are delayed or suspended, then the time 
for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation, shall be 
adjusted equitably. 

 
C. If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Specific Project, or Engineer’s services, 

then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s 
compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 3 

 

D. Owner shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so as not to delay the 
Engineer’s performance of its services. 

 
E. If Engineer fails, through its own fault, to complete the performance required in a Task Order within the 

time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be entitled, as its sole remedy, to the recovery of direct 
damages, if any, resulting from such failure. 

 
F. With respect to each Task Order, the number of Construction Contracts for Work designed or specified by 

Engineer upon which the Engineer's compensation has been established shall be identified in the Task 
Order. If the Work designed or specified by Engineer under a Task Order is to be performed or furnished 
under more than one prime contract, or if Engineer's services are to be separately sequenced with the work 
of one or more prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), then the Task Order will state the 
schedule for performance of Engineer's services in order to sequence and properly coordinate such services 
as are applicable to the Work under the Construction Contracts. If the Task Order does not address such 
sequencing and coordination, then Owner and Engineer shall jointly develop a schedule for sequencing and 
coordination of services prior to commencement of final design services; this schedule is to be prepared 
and included in or become an amendment to the authorizing Task Order whether or not the work under 
such contracts is to proceed concurrently. 

 
ARTICLE 4 – INVOICES AND PAYMENTS 

 
4.1 Invoices 

 
A. Preparation and Submittal of Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard 

invoicing practices, the terms of Exhibit C, and the specific Task Order. Engineer shall submit its invoices to 
Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt. 

 
4.2 Payments 

 
A. Application to Interest and Principal: Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to Engineer and 

then to principal. 
 

B. Failure to Pay: If Owner fails to make any payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 30 days 
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then: 

 
1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of 

interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day; and 
 

2. Engineer may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under any Task 
Order issued until Owner has paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and other related 
charges. Owner waives any and all claims against Engineer for any such suspension. 

 
C. Disputed Invoices: If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then Owner shall 

promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so 
disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion subject to the terms of Paragraph 4.01. 

 
D. Sales or Use Taxes: If after the Effective Date of a Task Order any governmental entity takes a legislative 

action that imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s services or compensation under the Task 
Order, then Engineer may invoice such additional sales or use taxes for reimbursement by Owner. Owner 
shall reimburse Engineer for the cost of such invoiced additional sales or use taxes; such reimbursement 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 4 

 

shall be in addition to the compensation to which Engineer is entitled under the terms of Exhibit C and the 
specific Task Order. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – OPINIONS OF COST 

 
5.1 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost 

 
A. Engineer’s opinions (if any) of probable Construction Cost are to be made on the basis of Engineer’s 

experience, qualifications, recent bid results for similar work, and general familiarity with the construction 
industry. The same standards of performance in Section 6.01.A shall apply to the preparation of Engineer’s 
opinions of probable Construction Cost. However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, 
materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining prices, 
or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, 
bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable Construction Cost prepared by 
Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as to probable Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to 
obtain an independent cost estimate. 

 
5.2 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 

 
A. If a Construction Cost limit for a Specific Project is established between Owner and Engineer in a Task 

Order, then such Construction Cost limit and Engineer’s rights and responsibilities with respect thereto will 
be governed by Exhibit F, “Construction Cost Limit,” which shall be attached to and incorporated in the Task 
Order. If no Construction Cost limit is established in a Task Order, then Exhibit F does not apply. 

 
5.3 Opinions of Total Project Costs 

 

A. The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs for a Specific Project shall be limited to 
assisting the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise Total Project Costs.  Engineer assumes 
no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project Costs. 

 

ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

6.1 Standards of Performance 
 

A. The same degree of care, skill, and diligence shall be exercised in the performance of the Services as is 
ordinarily possessed and exercised by a member of the same profession, currently practicing, under similar 
circumstances. Engineer warrants and represents that it has the capability, experience, available personnel, 
and means required to perform the services contemplated by this Agreement. Services will be performed 
using personnel and equipment qualified and/or suitable to perform the work requested by the Owner. 
Owner retains the right to report to Engineer any unsatisfactory performance of Engineer personnel for 
appropriate corrective action. Engineer shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws in 
connection with any work performed hereunder. No other warranty, express or implied, is included in this 
Agreement or in any Task Order, drawing, specification, report, opinion, or other instrument of service, in 
any form or media, produced in connection with the Services.Standard of Care: The standard of care for all 
professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement 
will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar 
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Engineer makes no warranties, express or implied, 
under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services performed or furnished by Engineer. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 5 

 

B. Technical Accuracy: Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies in the technical accuracy of 
Engineer’s services. Engineer shall correct deficiencies in technical accuracy without additional 
compensation, unless such corrective action is directly attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished 
information. 

 
C. Consultants: Engineer may retain such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist in the 

performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and substantive objections by 
Owner. 

 
D. Reliance on Others: Subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer and its 

Consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily furnished by 
others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and the publishers of 
technical standards. 

 
E. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures 

 
1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations. 

 
2. Engineer shall comply with the policies, procedures, and instructions of Owner that are applicable to 

Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement and that Owner provides to Engineer in 
writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance 
is not inconsistent with professional practice requirements. 

 
3. Each Task Order is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided written policies and 

procedures as of the Effective Date of the Task Order. The following may be the basis for 
modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of services, times of performance, 
or compensation: 

 
a. changes after the Effective Date of the Task Order to Laws and Regulations; 

 
b. the receipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of the Task Order of Owner-provided written 

policies and procedures; 
 

c. changes after the Effective Date of the Task Order to Owner-provided policies or procedures. 
 

F. Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that would result in 
Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence Engineer 
cannot ascertain within its services for that Specific Project. Owner agrees not to make resolution of any 
dispute with Engineer or payment of any amount due to the Engineer in any way contingent upon Engineer 
signing any such document. 

 
G. The general conditions for any construction contract documents prepared hereunder are to be EJCDC® C- 

700 "Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract" (2013 Edition), prepared by the Engineers 
Joint Contract Documents Committee and as modified by the City of Schertz, unless expressly indicated 
otherwise in Exhibit J or in the specific Task Order. 

 
H. Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any Constructor’s work, nor 

shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs 
incident thereto, for security or safety at the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 6 

 

and Regulations applicable to such Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work.  Engineer shall not 
be responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor. 

 
I. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 

Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents. 

 
J. Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction Contract Documents, or 

any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the Construction Contract Documents, other 
than those made by Engineer or its Consultants. 

 
K. Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety bonding or insurance- 

related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or for enforcement of construction insurance or 
surety bonding requirements. 

 
L. Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation. 

 
M. Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the registration 

requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (2010) or 
the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) advising 
Owner, or any municipal entity or other person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the 
issuance of municipal securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or other 
similar matters concerning such products or issuances. 

 
N. While at a Site, Engineer, its Consultant, and their employees and representatives shall comply with the 

applicable requirements of Contractor's and Owner's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed 
in writing. 

 
6.2 Design Without Construction Phase Services 

 
A. For each design performed or furnished, Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase 

services that have been expressly required of Engineer in the authorizing Task Order. With the exception of 
such expressly required services, Engineer shall have no design, Shop Drawing review, or other obligations 
during construction, and Owner assumes all responsibility for the application and interpretation of the 
Construction Contract Documents, review and response to Contractor claims, Construction Contract 
administration, processing of Change Orders and submittals, revisions to the Construction Contract 
Documents during construction, construction observation and review, review of Contractor’s payment 
applications, and all other necessary Construction Phase administrative, engineering, and  professional 
services. Owner waives all claims against Engineer that may be in any way connected to Construction Phase 
administrative, engineering, or professional services except for those services that are expressly required of 
Engineer in the authorizing Task Order. 

 
6.3 Use of Documents 

 
A. All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer shall retain an ownership and property interest 

therein (including the copyright and the right of reuse at the discretion of the Engineer) whether or not the 
Specific Project is completed. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 7 

 

B. A. If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings or Specifications under the specific Task Order, then 
Engineer shall deliver to Owner at least one original printed record version of such Drawings and 
Specifications, signed and sealed according to applicable Laws and Regulations. 

 
C. B. Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by the Professional 

or furnished to the Professional by the City shall be delivered to and become the property of the 
City. All drawings, charts, calculations, plans, specifications and other data, including electronic files 
and raw data, prepared under or pursuant to this Agreement shall be made available, upon request, 
to the City without restriction or limitation on the further use of such materials PROVIDED, 
HOWEVER, THAT SUCH MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED OR REPRESENTED TO BE 
SUITABLE FOR REUSE BY THE CITY OR OTHERS. ANY REUSE WITHOUT PRIOR 
VERIFICATION OR ADAPTATION BY THE PROFESSIONAL FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PURPOSE INTENDED WILL   BE   AT   THE   CITY’S   SOLE   RISK   AND   WITHOUT   
LIABILITY   TO   THE 
PROFESSIONAL. Where applicable, Professional shall retain all pre-existing proprietary rights in 
the materials provided to the City but shall grant to the City a non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free 
license to use such proprietary information solely for the purposes for which the information was 
provided. The Professional may, at Professional’s expense, have copies made of the documents or 
any other data furnished to the City under or pursuant to this Agreement.Owner may make and retain 
copies of Documents for information and reference in connection with the use of the Documents on the 
Specific Project. Engineer grants Owner a limited license to use the Documents on the Specific Project, 
extensions of the Specific Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by Engineer of full 
payment due and owing for all services relating to preparation of the Documents, and subject to the 
following limitations: (1) Owner acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or represented to be 
suitable for use on the Specific Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse by Owner or 
others on extensions of the Specific Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without 
written verification or adaptation by Engineer; (2) any such use or reuse, or any modification of the 
Documents, without written verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the 
specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Engineer or 
to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants; (3) Owner shall indemnify 
and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and its 
Consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or 
resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the Documents without written verification, completion, 
or adaptation by Engineer; and (4) such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

 

D. C. If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them, or adapts them 
for extensions of the Specific Project or for any other purpose, then Owner shall compensate Engineer at 
rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer. 

 
6.4 Electronic Transmittals 

 
A. Owner and Engineer may transmit, and shall accept, Specific Project-related correspondence, Documents, 

text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or 
through access to a secure Specific Project website, in accordance with a mutually agreeable protocol. 

 
B. If this Agreement or a Task Order does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then 

Owner and Engineer shall jointly develop such protocols. 
 

C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party makes no 
representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the items resulting from the 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 8 

 

recipient’s use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from 
those used in the drafting or transmittal of the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal 
protocols. 

 
6.5 Insurance 

 
A. Commencing with the Effective Date of the Agreement, Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as 

set forth in Exhibit G, "Insurance." Engineer shall cause Owner to be listed as an additional insured on any 
applicable general liability insurance policy carried by Engineer that is applicable to a Specific Project. 

 
B. Commencing with the Effective Date of the Agreement, Owner shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth 

in Exhibit G, “Insurance.” Owner shall cause Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional insureds 
on any general liability insurance policies carried by Owner, which are applicable to the Specific Project. 

 

C. B. Owner shall require Contractors to purchase and maintain policies of insurance covering workers' 
compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage and injuries, and other insurance necessary to 
protect Owner's and Engineer's interests in the Specific Project. Owner shall require Contractor to cause 
Engineer and its Consultants to be listed as additional insureds with respect to such liability insurance 
purchased and maintained by Contractor. 

 
D. C. Owner and Engineer shall each deliver to the other Owner certificates of insurance evidencing  the coverages 

indicated in Exhibit G. Such certificates shall be furnished promptly after the Effective Date of the Agreement 
and at renewals thereafter during the life of this Agreement. 

 
E. D. All policies of property insurance relating to a Specific Project, including but not limited to any builder’s risk 

policy, shall allow for waiver of subrogation rights and contain provisions to the effect that in the event of 
payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any insured thereunder 
or against Engineer or its Consultants. Owner and Engineer waive all rights against each other, Contractor, 
the Consultants, and the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, 
and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or 
resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any builder’s risk policy and any other property 
insurance relating to the Specific Project. Owner and Engineer shall take appropriate measures in other 
Specific Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights consistent with those set forth in this 
paragraph. 

 
F. E. All policies of insurance shall contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be 

canceled or reduced in limits by endorsement, and that renewal will not be refused, until at least 10 days 
prior written notice has been given to the primary insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the receiving party 
shall promptly forward a copy of the notice to the other party to this Agreement. 

 
G. F. Under the terms of any Task Order, or after commencement of performance of a Task Order, Owner may 

request that Engineer or its Consultants, at Owner’s sole expense, provide additional insurance coverage, 
increased limits, or revised deductibles that are more protective than those specified in Exhibit G. If so 
requested by Owner, and if commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall require its Consultants to 
obtain such additional insurance coverage, different limits, or revised deductibles for such periods of time 
as requested by Owner. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 9 

 

6.6 Suspension and Termination 
 

A. Suspension 
 

1. By Owner: Owner may suspend a Task Order for up to 90 days upon seven days written notice to 
Engineer. 

 
2. By Engineer: Engineer may suspend services under a Task Order (a) if Owner has failed to pay 

Engineer for invoiced services and expenses, as set forth in Paragraph 4.02.B, or (b) in response to 
the presence of Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in Paragraph 6.10.A.4. 

 
3. A suspension on a specific Task Order, whether by Owner or Engineer, shall not affect the duty of 

the two parties to proceed with their obligations under other Task Orders. 
 

B. Termination for Cause—Task Order: The obligation to provide further services under a specific Task Order 
may be terminated for cause: 

 
1. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to 

perform in accordance with the terms of the specific Task Order or this Agreement, whose terms 
govern the specific Task Order, through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
2. By Engineer: 

 
a. upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform services 

contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or 
 

b. upon seven days written notice if the Engineer’s services under a Task Order are delayed or 
suspended for more than 90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s control, or as the result of 
the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 
6.10.A.5. 

 
c. Engineer shall have no liability to Owner on account of such termination. 

 
d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither this Agreement nor the Task Order will terminate 

under Paragraph 6.06.B.1 if the party receiving such  notice begins, within  seven  days of receipt 
of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure 
such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof; provided, however, that if and 
to the extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30 day period, 
and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently 
to cure the same, then the cure period provided for herein shall extend up to, but in no case 
more than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice. 

 
C. Termination for Cause—Agreement: In the case of a default by Owner in its obligation to pay Engineer for 

its services under more than one specific Task Order, Engineer may request immediate payment of all 
amounts invoiced on other Task Orders, and may invoice Owner for continued services on such Task Orders 
on a two-week billing cycle, with payment due within one week of an invoice. If Owner fails to make such 
payments, then upon seven days notice Engineer may terminate this Agreement, including Engineer’s 
services under all Task Orders. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 10 

 

D. Termination for Convenience by Owner: Owner may terminate a Task Order or this Agreement for Owner’s 
convenience, effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner. 

 
E. Effective Date of Termination: The terminating party under Paragraphs 6.06.B, C, and D may set the 

effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow Engineer to 
demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be 
lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Task Order 
materials in orderly files. 

 
F. Payments Upon Termination: 

 
1. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.06, Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner 

and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with the specific 
Task Order and this Agreement, and for all expenses incurred through the effective date of 
termination, to the extent that the specific Task Order (or Task Orders) allows reimbursement for 
such expenses. Upon making such payment, Owner shall have the limited right to the use of 
Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 6.03. 

 
2. In the event of termination by Owner for convenience or by Engineer for cause, Engineer shall be 

entitled, in addition to invoicing for those items identified in Paragraph 6.06.F.1, to invoice Owner 
and receive payment of a reasonable amount for services and expenses directly attributable to 
termination, both before and after the effective date of termination, such as reassignment of 
personnel, costs of terminating contracts with Engineer’s Consultants, and other related close-out 
costs, using the basis of compensation for Additional Services, as indicated in the specific Task 
Order. 

 
6.7 Controlling Law 

 
A. This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state State of Texas in which the 

Specific Project is located. 
 
 
 

6.8 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries 
 

A. Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal 
representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 6.08.B the assigns of 
Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the successors, 
executors, administrators and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all 
covenants, agreements and obligations of this Agreement. 

 
B. Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including, but 

without limitation, money that is due or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent 
of the other party, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated or 
restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

 
C. Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement: 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 11 

 

1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by 
Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity, or to any surety for or 
employee of any of them. 

 
2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and 

exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 

3. The Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.08.C shall appear in any 
Construction Contract Documents prepared for any Specific Project under this Agreement. 

 
6.9 Dispute Resolution 

 
A. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a period of 30 days 

from the date of notice prior to invoking the procedures of Exhibit H or other provisions of this Agreement, 
or exercising their rights at law. 

 
B. If the parties fail to resolve a dispute through negotiation under Paragraph 6.09.A, then either or both may 

invoke the procedures of Exhibit H. If Exhibit H is not included, or if no dispute resolution method is 
specified in Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their rights at law. 

 
6.10 Environmental Condition of Site 

 
A. With respect to each specific Task Order, Specific Project, and Site (unless indicated otherwise in a specific 

Task Order): 
 

1. Owner represents to Engineer that as of the Effective Date of the Task Order, to the best of Owner’s 
knowledge no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in writing to Engineer, exist at or 
adjacent to the Site. 

 
2. If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at the Site, then Engineer 

shall notify (a) Owner and (b) appropriate governmental officials if Engineer reasonably concludes 
that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations. 

 
3. It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any services 

related to unknown or undisclosed Constituents of Concern. If Engineer or any other party 
encounters, uncovers, or reveals an undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then Owner shall promptly 
determine whether to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take any necessary 
corrective action. 

 
4. If investigative or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary with respect to 

undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or if investigative or remedial action beyond that reasonably 
contemplated is needed to address a disclosed or known Constituent of Concern, then Engineer 
may, at its option and without liability for consequential or any other damages,  immediately suspend 
performance of services on the portion of the Specific Project affected thereby until such portion 
of the Specific Project is no longer affected. 

 
5. If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern adversely affects the performance 

of Engineer’s services under the specific Task Order, then the Engineer shall have the option of (a) 
accepting an equitable adjustment in its compensation or in the time of completion, or both; or (b) 
terminating the specific Task Order for cause on seven days notice. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 12 

 

6. Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for Owner and that Engineer 
is not and shall not be required to become an “owner,” “arranger,” “operator,” “generator,” or 
“transporter” of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which are or may be encountered at or near 
the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities under a specific Task Order or this Agreement. 

 
6.11 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver 

 
A. Professional agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Schertz, Texas and all of its present, future 

and former agents, employees, officials and representatives harmless in their official, individual and 
representative capacities from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, judgments, liens and 
expenses (including attorney's fees, whether contractual or statutory), costs and damages (whether 
common law or statutory), costs and damages (whether common law or statutory, and whether 
actual, punitive, consequential or incidental), of any conceivable character, for injuries to persons 
(including death) or to property (both real and personal) created by, arising from or in any manner 
relating to the services or goods performed or provided by Professional – expressly including those 
arising through strict liability or under the constitutions of the United States or Texas – BUT ONLY 
TO   THE   EXTENT   ALLOWABLE   BY   SEC.   271.904(a)   OF   THE   TEXAS   LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE AS APPLICABLE.Indemnification by Engineer: To the fullest extent 
permitted by Laws and Regulations, Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s 
officers, directors, members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees from losses, damages, and 
judgments (including reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising from third-party 
claims or actions relating to this Agreement, any Task Order, or any Specific Project, provided that any such 
claim, action, loss, damages, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to 
injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting 
therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Engineer or Engineer’s officers, 
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants. This indemnification provision is subject 
to and limited by the provisions, if any, agreed to by Owner and Engineer in Exhibit I, “Limitations of 
Liability.” 

 

B. Indemnification by Owner: Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by Laws and Regulations and to the 
extent (if any) required in Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability. 

 

C. Environmental Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by  Laws and Regulations, Owner shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, 
and Consultants from all claims, costs, losses, damages, actions, and judgments (including reasonable 
consultants’ and attorneys’ fees) caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from a Constituent of 
Concern at, on, or under any Site, provided that (1) any such claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or judgment 
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property 
(other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) nothing in this Paragraph 
shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that 
individual's or entity's own negligence or willful misconduct. 

 

D. No Defense Obligation: The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not include a defense 
obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated. 

 

E. Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,  a party’s total 
liability to  the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under  the other party for any  cost, loss, or 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 13 

 

damages caused in part by the negligence of the party and in part by the negligence of the other party or 
any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage share that the party’s negligence 
bears to the total negligence of Owner, Engineer, and all other negligent entities and individuals. 

 

F. A. Mutual Waiver: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer waive against each other, and 
the other’s employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all 
claims for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting 
from, or in any way related to this Agreement, any Task Order, or a Specific Project, from any cause or 
causes. 

 

6.12 Records Retention 
 

A.     Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years following completion or termination 
of its services under each Task Order, all Documents, records (including cost records), and design 
calculations related to Engineer’s services or pertinent to Engineer’s performance under the Task Order. 
Upon Owner’s request, Engineer shall provide a copy of any such item to Owner at cost. 

 
6.13 Miscellaneous Provisions 

 
A. Notices: Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at 

its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered or certified mail postage prepaid, or by 
a commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective upon the date of receipt. 

 
B. Survival: All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability included in this 

Agreement will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 
 

C. Severability: Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any Laws or 
Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding 
upon Owner and Engineer, which agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken 
provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing 
the intention of the stricken provision. 

 
D. Waiver: A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall 

it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 
 

E. Accrual of Claims: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of action arising under 
a Specific Project shall be deemed to have accrued, and all statutory periods of limitation shall commence, 
no later than the date of Substantial Completion of such Specific Project. 

 
F. Applicability to Task Orders: The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement apply to each Task Order 

as if set forth in the Task Order, unless specifically modified. In the event of conflicts between this 
Agreement and a Task Order, the conflicting provisions of the Task Order shall take precedence for that 
Task Order. The provisions of this Agreement shall be modified only by a written instrument. Such 
amendments shall be applicable to all Task Orders issued after the effective date of the amendment if not 
otherwise set forth in the amendment. 

 
G. Non-Exclusive Agreement: Nothing herein shall establish an exclusive relationship between Owner and 

Engineer. Owner may enter into similar agreements with other professionals for the same or different types 
of services contemplated hereunder, and Engineer may enter into similar or different agreements with 
other project owners for the same or different services contemplated hereunder. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 14 

 

ARTICLE 7 – DEFINITIONS 
 

7.1 Defined Terms 
 

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto and any Task Order) terms (including the 
singular and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in the text above, 
in the exhibits or Task Order, or in the following definitions: 

 
1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which clarify, correct, 

or change the bidding requirements or the proposed Construction Contract Documents. 
 

2. Additional Services—Services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in accordance 
with a Task Order, but which are not included in Basic Services for that Task Order. 

 
3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner and Engineer, including 

all exhibits identified in Article 8. 
 

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by a Contractor in 
requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting 
documentation as is required by the Construction Contract. 

 
5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in accordance 

with a specific Task Order, as specified in the Task Order (but not including Additional Services 
performed or furnished pursuant to an amendment to the specific Task Order). 

 
6. Change Order—A document which is signed by a Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, 

deletion, or revision in the Work or an  adjustment in the Construction  Contract Price or the 
Construction Contract Times, or other revision to the Construction Contract, issued on or after the 
effective date of the Construction Contract. 

 
7. Change Proposal—A written request by a Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the 

procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, seeking an adjustment in 
Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by 
Engineer concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability 
of Work under the Construction Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or 
seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Construction Contract. 

 
8. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls 

(PCBs), hazardous waste, and  any substance, product, waste, or other material  of any nature 
whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); 
(b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control 
Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 
42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, state, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, 
ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or 
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material. 

 
9. Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between Owner and Contractor 

concerning the Work. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 15 

 

10. Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents” in the 
Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract. 

 
11. Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for completion of 

the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents. 
 

12. Construction Contract Times—The numbers of days or the dates by which a Contractor shall: (a) 
achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; (b) achieve Substantial Completion, and (c) 
complete the Work. 

 
13. Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions of an entire Specific 

Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement and the specific Task Order, 
including construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, and 
allowances for contingencies. Construction Cost does not include costs of services of Engineer or 
other design professionals and consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or compensation for 
damage to property; Owner's costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling, or auditing services; 
interest or financing charges incurred in connection with a Specific Project; or the cost of other 
services to be provided by others to Owner. Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total 
Project Costs. 

 
14. Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents, 

representatives, and Consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the 
Specific Project, including but not limited to Contractors, Subcontractors, Suppliers, Owner’s work 
forces, utility companies, other contractors, construction managers, testing firms, shippers, and 
truckers, and their employees, agents, and representatives. 

 
15. Consultants—Individuals or entities having a contract with Engineer to furnish services with respect 

to a Specific Project as Engineer's independent professional associates, consultants, subcontractors, 
or vendors. 

 
16. Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction Contract. 

 
17. Documents—Data, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings, building information models, 

civil integrated management models, and other deliverables, whether in printed or electronic media 
format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by Engineer to Owner pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

 
18. Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that graphically shows the scope, 

extent, and character of the Work to be performed by a Contractor. 
 

19. Effective Date of the Agreement—The date indicated  in  this Agreement on which  it becomes 
effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and 
delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver. 

 
20. Effective Date of the Task Order—The date indicated in the Task Order on which it becomes 

effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Task Order is signed and 
delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver. 

 
21. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 16 

 

22. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but does 
not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract Times. 

 
23. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, 

ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts 
having jurisdiction. 

 
24. Owner—The individual or entity with which Engineer has entered into this Agreement and for which 

Engineer's services are to be performed. Unless indicated otherwise, this is the same individual or 
entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning Specific Projects. 

 
25. Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Specific Project, or a specific portion of the 

completed Specific Project, prepared by Engineer as an Additional Service and based solely on 
Contractor's record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change 
Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as delivered to Engineer and 
annotated by Contractor to show changes made during construction. 

 
26. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative, if any, of Engineer assigned to 

assist Engineer at the Site of a Specific Project during the Construction Phase. As used herein, the 
term Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of the RPR. The 
duties and responsibilities of the RPR will be as set forth in each Task Order. 

 
27. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of 

some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will 
be judged. 

 
28. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information that 

are specifically prepared or assembled by or for a Contractor and submitted by a Contractor to 
Engineer to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether approved or not, are not 
Drawings and are not Construction Contract Documents. 

 
29. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Construction Contract Documents for a Specific Project as 

being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and 
easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for use of a Contractor. 

 
30. Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that consists of written 

requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the 
Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the Work. 

 
31. Specific Project—The total specific undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, 

contractors, and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and 
start-up, and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under a specific Task 
Order are a part. 

 
32. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with a Contractor or with any other 

Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work. 
 

33. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to 
the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 17 

 

complete, in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified 
part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially 
complete” and “substantially completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial 
Completion thereof. 

 
34. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct 

contract with a Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be 
incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor. 

 
35. Task Order—A document executed by Owner and Engineer, including amendments if any, stating 

the scope of services, Engineer's compensation, times for performance of services and other relevant 
information for a Specific Project. 

 
36. Total Project  Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, constructing, testing, 

commissioning, and start-up of the Specific Project, including Construction Cost and  all  other Specific 
Project labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, allowances for 
contingencies, the total costs of services of Engineer or other design professionals and consultants, 
cost of land, rights-of-way, or compensation for damages to properties, or Owner's costs for legal, 
accounting, insurance counseling, and auditing services, interest and financing charges incurred in 
connection with the Specific Project, and the cost of other services to be provided by others to 
Owner. 

 
37. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be 

provided under the Construction Contract Documents for a Specific Project. Work includes and is 
the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce 
such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such 
construction; and may include related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning; all as 
required by such Construction Contract Documents. 

 
38. Work Change Directive—A written directive to a Contractor issued on or after the effective date of 

the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, ordering an addition, 
deletion, or revision in the Work. 

 
B. Day: The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight. 

 
ARTICLE 8 – EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
8.1 Suggested Form of Task Order 

 
A.      The Suggested Form of Task Order is attached as Attachment 1, and shall be used as the basis for preparing 

a specific Task Order for each Specific Project under this Agreement. 
 

8.2 Exhibits Included: 
 

A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services for Task Order. Services, tasks, and terms in Exhibit A as included with this 
Agreement are for reference in preparing the scope of services for specific Task Orders, and are 
contractually binding only to the extent expressly incorporated in a specific Task Order 

 
B. Exhibit B, Owner’s Responsibilities. This Exhibit applies to all Task Orders. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 18 

 

C. Exhibit C, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses. The terms of Exhibit C that will be 
applicable to and govern compensation under a specific Task Order will be determined by the selection of 
compensation methods made in Paragraph 6, “Payments to Engineer,” of the specific Task Order. 

 
D. Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative. This 

Exhibit is not contractually binding except when expressly incorporated in a specific Task Order. 
 

E. Exhibit E, Notice of Acceptability of Work. Engineer shall use this Notice of Acceptability of Work form at the 
conclusion of construction on a Specific Project if (1) the form is expressly incorporated by reference in a 
specific Task Order, and Engineer’s scope of services in the specific Task Order includes providing such a 
notice to Owner and Contractor, and (2) the Work is in fact acceptable pursuant to applicable 
requirements, subject to the terms of the notice. 

 
F. Exhibit F, Construction Cost Limit. This Exhibit is contractually binding only with respect to those specific 

Task Orders that (1) expressly incorporate Exhibit F by reference in the Task Order, Paragraph 2, “Services 
of Engineer,” and (2) expressly state a specific Construction Cost Limit and contingency for the Specific 
Project in Paragraph 2, “Services of Engineer,” of the specific Task Order. 

 
G. Exhibit G, Insurance. This Exhibit is applicable to all Task Orders. 

 
H.Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution. This Exhibit is applicable to all Task Orders. 

 

I. Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability. This Exhibit is applicable to all Task Orders. 
 

J.H.    Exhibit J, Special Provisions. This Exhibit is applicable to all Task Orders. 
 

K.I. Exhibit K, Amendment to Task Order. Owner and Engineer may use this form during a Specific Project to 
modify the specific Task Order. 

 
8.3 Total Agreement 

 
A. This Agreement (together with the Exhibits included above) constitutes the entire agreement between 

Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. This Agreement may only be 
amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. 

 
B. An executed Task Order under this Agreement (including any incorporated exhibits or attachments) 

constitutes the entire agreement between Owner and Engineer with respect to the Specific Project, and 
supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. Such a Task Order may only be amended, 
supplemented, modified, or canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments 
to such a Task Order should be based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit K to this Agreement. 

 
8.4 Designated Representatives 

 
A. With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific individuals to act as 

Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to be performed or furnished by 
Engineer and responsibilities of Owner under this Agreement. Such individuals shall have authority to 
transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to this Agreement on behalf of the 
respective party that the individual represents. Each Task Order shall likewise designate representatives of 
the two parties with respect to that Task Order. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 19 

 

8.5 Engineer's Certifications 
 

A. Engineer certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, or coercive practices in competing for or in 
executing the Agreement. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.05: 

 
1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to 

influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the Agreement execution; 
 

2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the 
selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of Owner, or (b) to deprive 
Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

 
3. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their 

property to influence their participation in the selection process or affect the execution of the 
Agreement. 



EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 
Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 
Page 20 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of 
which is indicated on Page 1. 

 
OWNER:  ENGINEER: 

By: ________________________________  By:    
Print Name: Dr. Mark Browne  Print Name: 

Title: City Manager  Title: 
Date Signed:  Date Signed: 

 
Engineer License or Firm’s Certificate No. (if required): 

State of :    

   

 
Address for Owner’s receipt of notices: 

 
City of Schertz 

  
Address for Engineer’s receipt of notices: 

 
1400 Schertz Parkway 

  

 
Schertz, Texas 78154 

  

 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE 
(Paragraph 8.04): 

 
Kathryn Woodlee 

  
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE 
(Paragraph 8.04): 

 
Title: City Engineer 

  
Title: 

 
Phone Number: 210-619-1823 

  
Phone Number: 

 
 

E-Mail Address: kwoodlee@schertz.com 

  
 

E-Mail Address: 



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

SUGGESTED FORM OF 
TASK ORDER 

 

Task Order 
 

 

[NOTE TO USER: Modify as to scope, compensation, schedule, and other key items.] 
 

In accordance with Paragraph 1.01 of the Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task 
Order Edition, dated [   ] ("Agreement"), Owner and Engineer agree as follows: 

 
1. Background Data 

 
a. Effective Date of Task Order: 

b. Owner: 

c. Engineer: 

d. Specific Project (title): 

e. Specific Project (description): 
 
 
 

2. Services of Engineer 
 

A. The specific services to be provided or furnished by Engineer under this Task Order are: 
 

[Select one of the following three options and delete the other two.] 
 

 set forth in Part 1—Basic Services of Exhibit A, “Engineer’s Services for Task Order,” modified for 
this specific Task Order, and attached to and incorporated as part of this Task Order. 

 
[or] 

 

 as follows: [ ] [Note: Insert scope of services here, or incorporate by reference a scope of 
services set out in a separate document such as a letter or proposal.] 

 
[or] 

 
 the services (and related terms and conditions) set forth in the following sections of Exhibit A, as 

attached to the Agreement referred to above, such sections being hereby incorporated by 
reference: [Note: If this option is selected, include only those sections below that are part of 
Basic Services for the specific Task Order, and delete those sections below that do not apply.] 

 
 Study and Report Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.01) 

 
 Preliminary Design Phase (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.02) 

This is Task Order 
No. , consisting of 
  pages. 



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

 Final Design Phase (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.03) 
 

 Bidding or Negotiating Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.04) 
 

 Construction Phase Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05) 
 

• including Resident Project Representative (RPR) services (A1.05.A.2) 
 

• [or] [not including Resident Project Representative (RPR) services (A1.05.A.2)] 
 

 Post-Construction Phase Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.06) 
 

 Commissioning Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.07) 
 

B. Resident Project Representative (RPR) Services 
 

If the scope of services established in Paragraph 2.A above includes RPR services, then Exhibit D of the 
Agreement is expressly incorporated in this Task Order by reference. 

 
[1. If RPR services are not in the scope of this Task Order, do not include any 
references to RPR services in Exhibit A (Paragraph A1.05.A.2) for this Task Order 
(or state “Does not apply” or similar), or in any other scope of services text or 
document. 

 
2. If appropriate, modify Exhibit D for this specific Task Order, and attach it, 
rather than incorporating the Exhibit D that is included with the Agreement.] 

 
C. Designing to a Construction Cost Limit 

 
[If the design under this Task Order will be governed by a Construction Cost 
limit, then  include the following clause, with  blanks filled in, and thereby 
incorporate Exhibit F; if not, then  delete the clause or indicate “Does not 
apply” or similar)] 

 
Under this Task Order Engineer will design to a Construction Cost Limit, subject to the terms of 
Paragraph 5.02 of the Agreement and of Exhibit F to the Agreement. Exhibit F is expressly 
incorporated by reference.  The Construction Cost Limit is $  . The bidding or negotiating 
contingency to be added to the Construction Cost Limit is percent. 

 
D. Other Services 

 
Engineer shall also provide the following services: [Summarize or provide a brief description of 
other services (if any) that are to be provided by Engineer as Basic Services, but have not been 
addressed in Paragraphs 2.A through 2.C. If applicable, categorize such other services by phases, 
such as other Study and Report Phase Services, other Preliminary Design Phase Services, and so 
on. If all Basic Services have been covered in Paragraphs 2.A though 2.C, then indicate “None” 
here in 2.D, or delete 2.D in its entirety.] 



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

E. All of the services included above comprise Basic Services for purposes of Engineer’s compensation 
under this Task Order. 

 
3. Additional Services 

 
A. Additional Services that may be authorized or necessary under this Task Order are: 

 
[Select one of the following three options and delete the other two.] 

 
 set forth as Additional Services in Part 2—Additional Services, of Exhibit A, “Engineer’s Services for 

Task Order,” modified for this specific Task Order, and attached to and incorporated as part of this 
Task Order. 

[or] 
 

 as follows: [ ] [Note: Insert list of Additional Services here, or incorporate by reference a list of 
Additional Services set out in a separate document. Indicate whether advance authorization is 
needed, and include other governing terms and conditions.] 

 
[or] 

 
 those services (and related terms and conditions) set forth in Paragraph A2.01 of Exhibit A, as 

attached to the Agreement referred to above, such paragraph being hereby incorporated by 
reference. 

 
4. Owner's Responsibilities 

 
Owner shall have those responsibilities set forth in Article 2 of the Agreement and in Exhibit B, subject to 
the following: [State any additions or modifications to Exhibit B for this Specific Project here.] 

 
5. Task Order Schedule 

 
In addition to any schedule provisions provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere, the parties shall meet the 
following schedule: [Revise and amend for each specific Task Order.] 

 
Party Action Schedule 

Engineer Furnish [  ] review copies of the Report and 
other Study and Report Phase deliverables 
to Owner. 

Within [ ] days of the Effective Date of the 
Task Order. 

Owner Submit comments regarding Report and 
other Study and Report Phase deliverables 
to Engineer. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of Report and 
other Study and Report Phase deliverables 
from Engineer. 

Engineer Furnish [  ] copies of the revised Report 
and other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables to Owner. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of Owner’s 
comments regarding the Report and other 
Study and Report Phase deliverables. 

Engineer Furnish [  ] review copies of the 
Preliminary Design Phase documents, 

Within [ ] days of Owner’s authorization to 
proceed with Preliminary Design Phase 

   



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 

 

 

 opinion of probable Construction Cost, and 
other Preliminary Design Phase 
deliverables to Owner. 

services. 

Owner Submit comments regarding Preliminary 
Design Phase documents, opinion of 
probable Construction Cost, and other 
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to 
Engineer. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of Preliminary 
Design Phase documents, opinion of probable 
Construction Cost, and other Preliminary 
Design Phase deliverables from Engineer. 

Engineer Furnish [  ] copies of the revised 
Preliminary Design Phase documents, 
opinion of probable Construction Cost, and 
other Preliminary Design Phase 
deliverables to Owner. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of Owner’s 
comments regarding the Preliminary Design 
Phase documents, opinion of probable 
Construction Cost, and other Preliminary 
Design Phase deliverables. 

Engineer Furnish [  ] copies of the final Drawings and 
Specifications, assembled drafts of other 
Construction Contract Documents, the draft 
bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other 
Final Design Phase deliverables, to Owner. 

Within [ ] days of Owner’s authorization to 
proceed with Final Design Phase services. 

Owner Submit comments and instructions 
regarding the final Drawings and 
Specifications, assembled drafts of other 
Construction Contract Documents, the draft 
bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other 
Final Design Phase deliverables, to 
Engineer. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of the final 
Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts 
of other Construction Contract Documents, 
the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other Final 
Design Phase deliverables from Engineer. 

Engineer Furnish [  ] copies of the revised final 
Drawings and Specifications, assembled 
Construction Contract Documents, bidding- 
related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other 
Final Design Phase deliverables, to Owner. 

Within [ ] days of the receipt of Owner’s 
comments and instructions regarding the final 
Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts 
of other Construction Contract Documents, 
the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other Final 
Design Phase deliverables 

 

6. Payments to Engineer 
 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for services rendered under this Task Order as follows: 
 

[Notes: 1. Delete line items that do not apply to this Task Order. 2. For each line 
item indicate either “Lump Sum,” “Direct Labor,” or “Hourly Rates” as the Basis 
of Compensation. 3. Cross-references are to Exhibit A. Revise if necessary, or 

 
 

 



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 5 

 

delete cross-references if Exhibit A is not used to establish the scope of services 
under this Task Order.] 

 
 
 

Description of Service Amount  Basis of 
Compensation 

1. Basic Services (Part 1 of Exhibit A) $[ ]  [ ] 
a. Study and Report Phase (A1.01) $[ ]  [ ] 
b. Preliminary and Final Design Phase (A1.02, 

A1.03) 
$[ ]  [ ] 

c. Bidding or Negotiating Phase (A1.04) $[ ]  [ ] 
d. Construction Phase (A1.05)* $[ ]  [ ] 
e. Resident Project Representative Services* 
(A1.05.A.2). 

$[ ]  [ ] 

f. Post-Construction Phase (A1.06) $[ ]  [ ] 
g. Commissioning Phase (A1.07) $[ ]  [ ] 
h. Other Services (see A1.08, and 2.D above) $[ ]  [ ] 

    
TOTAL COMPENSATION (lines 1.a-h) $[ ]   

    
2. Additional Services (Part 2 of Exhibit A) (N/A)  [ ] 

 

[Many of the line items under Line 1, Basic Services, will frequently be governed by a single Basis of 
Compensation; however, it is not unusual to have some variation among the services so the table allows 
the user to establish different bases of compensation for the various Basic Compensation phases (1.a-
1.h).] 

 

*Based on a [ ] -month continuous construction period. 
 

Compensation items and totals based in whole or in part on Hourly Rates or Direct Labor are estimates 
only. Lump sum amounts and estimated totals included in the breakdown by phases incorporate 
Engineer’s labor, overhead, profit, reimbursable expenses (if any), and Consultants’ charges, if any. For 
lump sum items, Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases (line 
items) to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not exceed the total lump sum 
compensation amount unless approved in writing by the Owner. 

 
B. The  terms  of  payment  are  set  forth  in  Article 4  of  the  Agreement  and  in  the  applicable 

governing provisions of Exhibit C. 
 

7. Consultants retained as of the Effective Date of the Task Order: 
 

8. Other Modifications to Agreement and Exhibits: 
 

[Supplement or modify Agreement and Exhibits, if appropriate.] 
 

9. Attachments: 



Task Order Form 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 6 

 

10. Other Documents Incorporated by Reference: 
 

11. Terms and Conditions 
 

Execution of this Task Order by Owner and Engineer shall make it subject to the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement is incorporated by this reference. Engineer is authorized 
to begin performance upon its receipt of a copy of this Task Order signed by Owner. 

 

The Effective Date of this Task Order is [ ]. 
 

OWNER: ENGINEER: 

By:    By:    

 
Print Name:     

 
Print Name:       

 
Title:       

 
Title:    

Engineer License or Firm’s 
Certificate No. (if required):    
State of:    

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 

 
Name:    

 
Name:    

 
Title:    

 
Title:    

 
Address:    

 
Address:    

 
E-Mail 
Address:      

 
E-Mail 
Address:    

 
Phone:    

 
Phone:    



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of [ ] pages, referred to 
in and part of the Task Order dated [ ]. 

 

Engineer's Services for Task Order 
 

 

[Introductory Note to User: 
 

The following text as published describes a variety of services that may be included, in whole or in part, in a 
specific Task Order issued under the Agreement. Until this exhibit is customized for inclusion in a specific Task 
Order, or some or all of the exhibit is incorporated in a specific Task Order by reference, it has no legal or 
contractual effect. 

 
Not all possible services are included in this exhibit. The user should revise and supplement the descriptions of 
services provided here for purposes of drafting the scope of Engineer’s Services for each specific Task Order. The 
scope of services will typically include a list of potential Additional Services (see Paragraph A2.01) that may be 
needed as the Specific Project progresses. The user may choose to categorize some items shown here as Additional 
Services as Basic Services, or move some tasks listed in the Basic Services categories (Paragraphs A1.01 through 
A1.08) into Additional Services. Note that for the Additional Services in A2.01.A, Engineer is not authorized to 
perform and receive compensation for an Additional Service unless authorized by Owner to do so under a written 
amendment.] 

 
PART 1—BASIC SERVICES 

 
A1.01    Study and Report Phase Services 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 

 
1. Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Specific Project, including 

design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, and 
expandability, and any budgetary limitations, and identify available data, information, reports, 
facilities plans, and site evaluations. 

 
a. If Owner has already identified one or more potential solutions to meet its Specific Project 

requirements, then proceed with the study and evaluation of such potential solutions: [List the 
specific potential solutions here.] 

 
b. If Owner has not identified specific potential solutions for study and evaluation, then assist 

Owner in determining whether Owner’s requirements, and available data, reports, plans, and 
evaluations, point to a single potential solution for Engineer’s study and evaluation, or are such 
that it will be necessary for Engineer to identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential solutions. 

 
c. If it is necessary for Engineer to identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential solutions, then 

identify three alternative solutions potentially available to Owner, unless Owner and Engineer 
mutually agree that some other specific number of alternatives should be identified, studied, 
and evaluated. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

2. Identify potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Specific Project requirements, as needed. 
 

3. Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Specific Project requirements. 
 

4. Visit the Site, or potential Specific Project sites, to review existing conditions and facilities, unless 
such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and Report 
Phase. 

 
5. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to Engineer 

additional Specific Project-related data and information, for Engineer’s use in the study and 
evaluation of potential solution(s) to Owner’s Specific Project requirements, and preparation of a 
related report. 

 
6. After consultation with Owner, recommend to Owner the solution(s) which in Engineer’s 

judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Specific Project. 
 

7. Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to 
approve the portions of the Specific Project to be designed or specified by Engineer, including but 
not limited to mitigating measures identified in an environmental assessment for the Specific 
Project. 

 
8. Prepare a report (the “Report”) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, sketches, 

and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the agreed-to requirements, 
considerations involved, and Engineer’s recommended solution(s). For each recommended 
solution Engineer will provide the following, which will be separately itemized: opinion  of probable 
Construction Cost; proposed allowances for contingencies; the estimated total costs of design, 
professional, and related services to be provided by Engineer and its Consultants; and, on the basis 
of information furnished by Owner, a tabulation of other items and services included within the 
definition of Total Project Costs. 

 
9. Advise Owner of any need for Owner to provide data or services of the types described in 

Exhibit B, for use in Project design, or in preparation for Contractor selection and construction. 
 

10. When mutually agreed, assist Owner in evaluating the possible use of building information 
modeling; civil integrated management; geotechnical baselining of subsurface site conditions; 
innovative design, contracting, or procurement strategies; or other strategies, technologies, or 
techniques for assisting in the design, construction, and operation of Owner’s facilities. The 
subject matter of this paragraph shall be referred to in Exhibit A and B as “Specific Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques.” 

 
11. If requested to do so by Owner, assist Owner in identifying opportunities for enhancing the 

sustainability of the Specific Project, and pursuant to Owner’s instructions plan for the inclusion of 
sustainable features in the design. 

 
12. Use ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility 

Data” as a means to advise the Owner on a recommended scope of work and procedure for the 
identification and mapping of existing utilities. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

13. Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any topographic and other surveys necessary for 
design. 

 
14. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, furnish the required number of review copies of the Report 

and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to Owner, and review it with Owner. Owner 
shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding the furnished items within the time established 
in the Task Order schedule. 

 
15. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase 

deliverables in response to Owner’s comments, as appropriate, and furnish the required number 
of copies of the revised Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to the Owner. 

 

B. Engineer’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on the date when 
Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Report and any other Study and Report Phase 
deliverables. 

 
A1.02 Preliminary Design Phase 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 

 
1. Prepare Preliminary Design Phase documents consisting of final design criteria, preliminary 

drawings, outline specifications, and written descriptions of the Specific Project. 
 

2. In preparing the Preliminary Design Phase documents, use any specific applicable Specific Project 
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques authorized by Owner during or following the Study and 
Report Phase, and include sustainable features, as appropriate, pursuant to Owner’s instructions. 

 
3. Provide necessary field surveys and topographic and utility mapping for Engineer’s design 

purposes. Comply with the scope of work and procedure for the identification and mapping of 
existing utilities selected and authorized by Owner pursuant to advice from Engineer based on 
ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data,” 
as set forth in Paragraph A1.01.A.12 above. If no such scope of work and procedure for utility 
mapping has been selected and authorized, then at a minimum the utility mapping will include 
Engineer contacting utility owners and obtaining available information. 

 
4. Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase documents. 

 
5. Advise Owner if additional reports, data, information, or services of  the  types  described  in Exhibit 

B are necessary and assist Owner in obtaining such reports, data, information, or services. 
 

6. Continue to  assist Owner with Specific Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that 
Owner has chosen to implement. 

 
7. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, prepare a revised 

opinion of probable Construction Cost, and assist Owner in tabulating the various cost categories 
which comprise Total Project Costs. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 

 

8. Obtain and review Owner’s instructions regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services 
(including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and requests for 
proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and requirements, insurance 
and bonding requirements, electronic transmittals during construction, and other information 
necessary for the finalization of Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents. Also obtain 
and review copies of Owner’s design and construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general 
conditions (if other thanmodified EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction 
Contract, 2013 Edition), supplementary conditions, text, and related documents or content for 
Engineer to include in the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 
construction procurement documents), and in the draft Construction Contract Documents, when 
applicable. 

 
 
 

9. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, furnish the required number of review copies of the 
Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any other 
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to Owner, and review them with Owner. Within the time 
established in the Task Order schedule, Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding 
the furnished items. 

 
10. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, revise the Preliminary Design Phase documents, opinion of 

probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables in response to 
Owner’s comments, as appropriate, and furnish to Owner the required number of copies of the 
revised Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and 
any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables. 

 
B. Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when 

Engineer has delivered to Owner the revised Preliminary Design Phase documents, revised opinion of 
probable Construction Cost, and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables. 

 
A1.03 Final Design Phase 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 

 
1. Prepare final Drawings and Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of the Work 

to be performed and furnished by Contractor. 
 

2. Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications. 
 

3. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use in filing 
applications for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to 
review or approve the final design; assist Owner in consultations with such authorities; and revise 
the Drawings and Specifications in response to directives from such authorities, as appropriate. 

 
4. Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable Construction Cost. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 5 

 

5. After consultation with Owner, include in the Construction  Contract Documents any specific 
protocols for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data, drawings, 
information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through access 
to a secure Project website. Any such protocols shall be applicable to transmittals between and 
among Owner, Engineer, and Contractor during the Construction Phase and Post-Construction 
Phase, and unless agreed otherwise shall supersede any conflicting protocols previously 
established for transmittals between Owner and Engineer. 

 
6. Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in identifying the 

technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which bidders or other prospective 
contractors may rely. 

 
7. In addition to preparing the final Drawings and Specifications, assemble drafts of other 

Construction Contract Documents based on specific instructions and contract forms, text, or 
content received from Owner. 

 
8. Prepare or assemble draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other 

construction procurement documents), based on the specific bidding or procurement-related 
instructions and forms, text, or content received from Owner. 

 
9. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, furnish for review by Owner, its legal counsel, and other 

advisors, the required number of copies of the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled drafts 
of other Construction Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or requests for 
proposals or other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase 
deliverables, and review them with Owner. Within the time required by the Task Order schedule, 
Owner shall submit to Engineer any comments regarding the furnished items, and any instructions 
for revisions. 

 
10. Pursuant to the Task Order schedule, revise the final Drawings and Specifications, assembled 

drafts of other Construction Contract Documents, the draft bidding-related documents (or 
requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents), and any other Final Design 
Phase deliverables in accordance with comments and instructions from the Owner, as appropriate, 
and submit the required number of final copies of such documents to Owner after receipt of 
Owner’s comments and instructions. 

 
B. Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when 

Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications, other assembled Construction 
Contract Documents, bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and any other Final Design Phase deliverables. 

 
C. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer upon which the Engineer’s 

compensation has been established under this Task Order is one. If more prime contracts are awarded, 
Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in its compensation under this Task Order. 

 
A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 6 

 

1. Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work, assist Owner in 
issuing assembled design, contract, and bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents) to prospective contractors, and, where applicable, 
maintain a record of prospective contractors to which documents have been issued, attend pre- 
bid conferences, if any, and receive and process contractor deposits or charges for the issued 
documents. 

 
2. Prepare and issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued documents. 

 
3. Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of proposals or 

negotiations with prospective contractors. 
 

4. Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors. 
 

5. Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of Subcontractors, suppliers, and other individuals and 
entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the Work as to which review of 
qualifications is required by the issued documents. 

 
6. If the issued documents require, the Engineer shall evaluate and determine the acceptability of "or 

equals" and substitute materials and equipment proposed by prospective contractors , provided 
that such proposals are allowed by the bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or 
other construction procurement documents) prior to award of contracts for the Work. Services 
under this paragraph are subject to the provisions of Paragraph A2.01.B.2 of this Exhibit A. 

 
7. Attend the bid opening, prepare bid tabulation sheets to meet Owner’s schedule, and assist 

Owner in evaluating bids or proposals, assembling final contracts for the Work for execution by 
Owner and Contractor, and in issuing notices of award of such contracts. 

 
8. If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect to technical 

and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations. 
 

B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the 
Construction Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective contractors (except as may be 
required if Exhibit F is a part of this Task Order). 

 
A1.05 Construction Phase 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 

 
1. General Administration of Construction Contract: Consult with Owner and act as Owner’s 

representative as provided in the Construction Contract. The extent and limitations of the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as assigned in EJCDC® C-700, Standard General 
Conditions of the Construction Contract (2013 Edition), prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract 
Documents Committee, or other construction general conditions specified in the Agreement. If 
Owner, or Owner and Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer in 
the Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the Construction Contract having a direct 
bearing on Engineer, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any related increases in the cost 
to provide Construction Phase services. Engineer shall not be required to furnish or perform 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 7 

 

services contrary to Engineer’s responsibilities as a licensed professional. All of Owner’s 
instructions to Contractor will be issued through Engineer, which shall have authority to act on 
behalf of Owner in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this Agreement and the 
Construction Contract except as otherwise provided in writing. 

 
2. Resident Project Representative (RPR): Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist the 

Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s work. Duties, responsibilities, 
and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of such RPR’s services will not 
limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or authority except as expressly set forth in 
Exhibit D. 

 
3. Selection of Independent Testing Laboratory: Assist Owner in the selection of an independent 

testing laboratory to perform the testing services identified in Exhibit B, Paragraph B2.01.A. 
 

4. Pre-Construction Conference: Participate in a pre-construction conference  prior  to commencement 
of Work at the Site. 

 
5. Electronic Transmittal Protocols: If the Construction Contract Documents do not specify protocols 

for the transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data, drawings, 
information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through access 
to a secure Project website, then  together with  Owner and  Contractor jointly develop  such 
protocols for transmittals between and among Owner, Contractor, and Engineer during the 
Construction Phase and Post-Construction Phase. 

 
6. Original Documents: If requested by Owner to do so, maintain and safeguard during the 

Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the Construction Contract 
Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other design 
professionals in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations. Throughout the Construction 
Phase, make such original printed record version of the Construction Contract Documents 
available to Contractor and Owner for review. 

 
7. Schedules: Receive, review, and determine the acceptability of any and all schedules that 

Contractor is required to submit to Engineer, including the Progress Schedule, Schedule of 
Submittals, and Schedule of Values. 

 
8. Baselines and Benchmarks: As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating the 

Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed. 
 

9. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction: In connection with observations of Contractor’s 
Work while it is in progress: 

 
a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, as 

Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional 
the progress of Contractor’s executed Work. Such visits and observations by Engineer, and 
the Resident Project Representative, if any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to 
every aspect of the Work or to involve detailed inspections of the Work beyond the 
responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Agreement, this Task Order, and the 
Construction Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking, selective 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 8 

 

sampling, and similar methods of general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s 
exercise of professional judgment, as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any. 
Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer will determine 
in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents, and Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work. 

 
b. The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident Project 

Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better carry out the duties 
and responsibilities assigned to and undertaken by Engineer during the Construction Phase, 
and, in addition, by the exercise of Engineer’s efforts as an experienced and qualified design 
professional, to provide for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work 
will conform in general to the Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has 
implemented and maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as 
a functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer shall not, 
during such visits or as a result of such observations of the Work, supervise, direct, or have 
control over the Work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any 
Constructor, for security or safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to 
any Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or 
schedules, nor for any failure of any Constructor to comply with  Laws and  Regulations 
applicable to furnishing and performing of its work. Accordingly, Engineer neither guarantees 
the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s 
failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the 
Construction Contract Documents. 

 
10. Defective Work: Reject Work if, on the basis of Engineer’s observations, Engineer believes that 

such Work is defective under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract 
Documents. Provide recommendations to Owner regarding whether Contractor should correct 
such Work or remove and replace such Work, or whether Owner should consider accepting such 
Work as provided in the Construction Contract Documents. 

 
11. Compatibility with Design Concept: If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific part of the 

Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract 
Documents is nonetheless not compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a 
functioning whole, then inform Owner of such incompatibility, and provide recommendations for 
addressing such Work. 

 
12. Clarifications and Interpretations: Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all matters in 

question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents (sometimes 
referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating to the acceptability of 
the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. With reasonable promptness, render a 
written clarification, interpretation, or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment 
or supplement to the Construction Contract Documents. 

 
13. Field Orders: Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents, Engineer may 

prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 9 

 

14. Change Orders and Work Change Directives: Recommend Change Orders and Work Change 
Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work Change Directives as 
required. 

 
15. Differing Site Conditions: Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site conditions, 

including conditions relating to underground facilities such as utilities, and hazardous 
environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews, obtain information, and prepare findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use, subject to the limitations and responsibilities 
under the Agreement and the Construction Contract. 

 
16. Non-reviewable matters: If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s performance 

of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction Contract Documents that 
do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract 
Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other 
engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and 
Contractor that Engineer will not provide a decision or interpretation. 

 
17. Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals: Review and approve or take other appropriate 

action with respect to Shop Drawings, Samples, and other required Contractor submittals, but 
only for conformance with the information given in the Construction Contract Documents and 
compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated 
by the Construction Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not 
extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto. Engineer shall meet any Contractor’s submittal 
schedule that Engineer has accepted. 

 
18. Substitutes and “or-equal”: Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or “or-equal” 

materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the provisions of Paragraph 
A2.01.B.2 of this Exhibit A. 

 
19. Inspections and Tests: 

 
a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by Laws and 

Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer’s review of such certificates 
will be for the purpose of determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the 
Construction Contract Documents and will not constitute an independent evaluation that the 
content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements 
of the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of 
such inspections and tests. 

 
b. As deemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that is to be 

inspected, tested, or approved. 
 

c. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require additional inspections or testing 
of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed. 

 
20. Change Proposals and Claims: (a) Review and respond to Change Proposals. Review each duly 

submitted Change Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after receipt of the Contractor’s 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 10 

 

supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve it in whole, or deny it in part 
and approve it in part. Such actions shall be in writing, with a copy provided to Owner and 
Contractor. If the Change Proposal does not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, 
Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical 
matters, then Engineer will notify the parties that the Engineer will not resolve the Change 
Proposal. (b) Provide information or data to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters 
pertaining to Claims. 

 
21. Applications for Payment: Based on Engineer’s observations as an experienced and qualified 

design professional and on review of Applications for Payment and accompanying supporting 
documentation: 

 
a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid. Recommend 

reductions in payment (set-offs) based on the provisions for set-offs stated in the 
Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in writing and will 
constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such observations and review, that, 
to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information and belief, Contractor’s Work has 
progressed to the point indicated, the Work is generally in accordance with the Construction 
Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or 
upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the 
Construction Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the 
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to such 
payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility to observe the 
Work. In the case of unit price work, Engineer’s recommendations of payment will include 
final determinations of quantities and classifications of the Work (subject to any subsequent 
adjustments allowed by the Construction Contract Documents). 

 
b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have represented that 

observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity of Contractor’s Work as it is 
performed and furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of Contractor’s 
Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities 
specifically assigned to Engineer in the Agreement or this Task Order. Neither Engineer’s 
review of Contractor’s Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer’s 
recommendation of any payment  including final payment  will impose  on Engineer 
responsibility to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs 
incident thereto, or Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to 
Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose responsibility on 
Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has 
used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; to determine that title to any portion of the 
Work, including materials or equipment, has passed to Owner free and clear of any liens, 
claims, security interests, or encumbrances; or that there may not be other matters at issue 
between Owner and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. 

 
22. Contractor’s Completion Documents: Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to Owner 

maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other 
evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract Documents, certificates of inspection, 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 11 

 

tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples, and other data approved as provided under 
Paragraph A1.05.A.17. Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to Owner the annotated 
record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Construction 
Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The extent of Engineer’s review of record 
documents shall be to check that Contractor has submitted all pages. 

 
23. Substantial Completion: Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the 

entire Work ready for its intended use, in company with Owner and Contractor, visit the Site to 
review the Work and determine the status of completion. Follow the procedures in the 
Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, punch list of 
items to be completed, Owner’s objections, notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate 
of Substantial Completion. Assist Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters 
affecting Owner’s use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion. 

 
24. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work:  Conduct a final visit to the specific Project to determine 

if the Work is complete and acceptable so that Engineer may recommend, in writing,  final payment 
to Contractor. Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, Engineer shall also provide a 
notice to Owner and Contractor in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E (“Notice of Acceptability 
of Work”) (also available as a construction form, EJCDC® C-626 (2013)) that the Work is acceptable 
(subject to the provisions of the Notice and Paragraph A1.05.A.21.b) to the best of Engineer’s 
knowledge, information, and belief, and based on the extent of the services provided by Engineer 
under the Agreement and this Task Order. 

 
25. Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions: Engineer will render decisions regarding the 

requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the acceptability of the Work, 
pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the Construction Contract for initial interpretations, 
Change Proposals, and acceptance of the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, 
Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, 
Contractor, or others in connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments 
conducted or rendered in good faith. 

 
B. Duration of Construction Phase: The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the first 

Construction Contract for the specific Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon written 
recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractors. If the specific Project involves more 
than one prime contract as indicated in Paragraph A1.03.C, then Construction Phase services may be 
rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts. Subject to the provisions of Article 3, 
Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase in compensation if Construction Phase services 
(including Resident Project Representative services, if any) are required after the original date for 
completion and readiness for final payment of Contractor as set forth in the final Construction Contract 
under the Task Order. 

 
A1.06 Post-Construction Phase 

 
A. Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post-Construction Phase, as Basic Services, Engineer 

shall: 
 

1. Together with Owner, visit the Project to  observe any apparent defects in  the Work, make 
recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or the need to repair 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 12 

 

of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in consultations and discussions 
with Contractor concerning correction of any such defective Work and any needed repairs. 

 
2. Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the Construction 

Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work or the repair of any 
damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore subject to correction by 
Contractor. 

 
B. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if not 

otherwise modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate twelve months after the commencement of the 
Construction Contract’s correction period. 

 
A1.07 Commissioning Phase 

 
A. As Basic Services, Engineer shall: 

 
1. Assist Owner in connection with the adjusting of Specific Project equipment and systems. 

 
2. Assist Owner in training Owner's staff to operate and maintain Specific Project equipment and 

systems. 
 

3. Prepare operation and maintenance manuals. 
 

4. Assist Owner in developing procedures for (a) control of the operation and maintenance of 
Specific Project equipment and systems, and (b) related record-keeping. 

 
5. Prepare and furnish to Owner, in the format agreed to, Record Drawings showing appropriate 

record information based on Project annotated record documents received from Contractor. 
 

A1.08 Other Services: Each specific Task Order may include Basic Services that do not fit into the categories above. 
Such services should be expressly stated in the specific Task Order itself. 

 
PART 2—ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 
A2.01   Additional Services Requiring an Amendment to Task Order 

 
A. Advance Written Authorization Required: During performance under a Task Order, Owner may 

authorize Engineer in writing to furnish or obtain from others Additional Services of the types listed 
below. Unless expressly indicated above or in the specific Task Order to be included Basic Services, the 
following services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by Owner as Additional 
Services, using the basis of compensation for Additional Services, as indicated in the specific Task Order. 

 
1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under Basic 

Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in connection with the Specific 
Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and impact statements; review and 
evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Specific Project of any such 
statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of 
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Specific Project. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 13 

 

2. Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests or 
investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other 
information furnished by Owner or others. 

 
3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions of the 

Specific Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Specific Project’s design requirements, 
including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s schedule, character of 
construction, or method of financing; and revising previously accepted studies, reports, Drawings, 
Specifications, or Construction Contract Documents when such revisions are required by changes 
in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date of the Task Order or are due to 
any other causes beyond Engineer’s control. 

 
4. Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase alternative 

solutions beyond those agreed to in Paragraph A1.01.A.1 and 2. 
 

5. Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect Specific Project 
information to Engineer. 

 
6. Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including services in support of building 

information modeling or civil integrated management. 
 

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to: 
 

a. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; 
 

b. based on the engineering and technical aspects of the Project, the preparation of feasibility 
studies (such as those that include projections of output capacity, utility project rates, project 
market demand, or project revenues) and cash flow analyses, provided that such services do 
not include rendering advice regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of 
municipal securities; 

 
c. preparation of appraisals; 

 
d. evaluating  processes  available  for  licensing,  and  assisting  Owner  in  obtaining  process 

licensing; 
 

e. detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and 
 

f. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or furnished by 
Owner. 

 
8. Furnishing services of Consultants for other than Basic Services. 

 
9. Providing data or services of the types described in Exhibit B, when Owner retains Engineer to 

provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same. 
 

10. Providing the following services: 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 14 

 

a. Services  attributable  to  more  prime  construction  contracts  than  specified  in  Paragraph 
A1.03.C or the specific Task Order. 

 
b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by contractors other 

than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s contract for such services. 
 

11. Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for visits to the Site or Owner’s 
office as required in Basic Services. 

 
12. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent review 

processes, including, but not limited to, construction management, cost estimating, project peer 
review, value engineering, and constructibility review requested by Owner; and performing or 
furnishing services required to revise studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other 
documents as a result of such review processes. 

 
13. Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 

procurement documents) or Construction Contract Documents for alternate bids or cost estimates 
requested by Owner for the Work or a portion thereof. 

 
14. Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for construction, 

materials, equipment, or services, except when such assistance is required to complete services 
required by Paragraph 5.02.A and Exhibit F. 

 
15. Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate the 

content of all Addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor. 
 

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and readiness for 
final payment of Contractor, but only if such services increase the total quantity of services to be 
performed in the Construction Phase, rather than merely shifting performance of such services to 
a later date. 

 
17. Preparing Record Drawings, and furnishing such Record Drawings to Owner. 

 
18. Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project, Site, and 

immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility companies, and other 
reliable sources. 

 
19. Conducting surveys, investigations, and  field measurements to verify the accuracy of Record 

Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility companies, and other sources; revise 
and supplement Record Drawings as needed. 

 
20. Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals. 

 
21. Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and systems 

(such as initial startup, testing, and balancing). 
 

22. Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Specific Project equipment 
and systems. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 15 

 

23. Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the operation and 
maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related recordkeeping. 

 
24. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation, arbitration, 

mediation, lien or bond claim, or other legal or administrative proceeding involving the Project. 
 

25. Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates. 
 

26. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work other than as 
required under Paragraph A1.05.A.8, and any type of property surveys or related engineering 
services needed for the transfer of interests in real property; and providing other special field 
surveys. 

 
27. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or certifications 

requested by Owner. 
 

28. Excessive services during any correction period, or with respect to guarantees called for in the 
Construction Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services). 

 
29. Provide assistance in responding to the presence of any Constituent of Concern at any Site, in 

compliance with current Laws and Regulations. 
 

30. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement. 

 
B. Advance Written Authorization Not Required: Engineer shall advise Owner in advance that Engineer will 

immediately commence to perform or furnish the Additional Services of the types listed below. For 
such Additional Services, Engineer need not request or obtain specific advance written authorization 
from Owner. Engineer shall cease performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of 
written notice from Owner. Unless expressly indicated above or in the specific Task Order to be 
included Basic Services, the following services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid 
for by Owner as Additional Services, using  the basis of compensation  for Additional  Services, as 
indicated in the specific Task Order. 

 
1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect changes 

requested by Owner. 
 

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of 
substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items; services after the award of the 
Construction Contract in evaluating and determining the acceptability of a proposed "or equal" or 
substitution which is found to be inappropriate for the Project; evaluation and determination of an 
excessive number of proposed "or equals" or substitutions, whether proposed before or after 
award of the Construction Contract. 

 
3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or 

indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages. 



Exhibit A – Engineer's Services 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 16 

 

4. Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any Constituent of 
Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or acts of God endangering 
the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes during construction, (d) a significant 
amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, (e) acceleration of the progress schedule involving 
services beyond normal working hours, or (f) default by Contractor. 

 
5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection with any 

partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion. 
 

6. Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFIs), Change 
Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or others in connection with the Work, or an 
excessive number of RFIs, Change Proposals, or demands. 

 
7. Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a result of 

repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor. 
 

8. While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or Contractor's 
safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that exceed those normally 
required of engineering personnel by federal, State, or local safety authorities for similar 
construction sites. 



Exhibit B– Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of [ ] pages, referred to in 
and part of the Agreement between Owner and 
Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order 
Edition dated [           ]. 

 

Owner's Responsibilities 
 

 

Article 2 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following responsibilities unless expressly 
stated otherwise in a Task Order. 

 
B2.01  Specific Responsibilities 

 
A. Owner shall: 

 
1. Provide Engineer with all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Specific 

Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, 
flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations. 

 
2. Give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services (including 

instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and requests for proposals, 
as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and requirements, insurance and bonding 
requirements, electronic transmittals during construction, and other information necessary for the 
finalization of Owner’s bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction 
procurement documents), and Construction Contract Documents. Furnish copies (or give specific 
directions requesting Engineer to use copies already in Engineer’s possession) of all design and 
construction standards, Owner’s standard forms, general conditions (if other thanmodified version 
of EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, 2013 Edition), 
supplementary conditions, text, and related documents and content for Engineer to include in the 
draft bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement 
documents), and draft Construction Contract Documents, when applicable. Owner shall have 
responsibility for the final content of (1) such bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals 
or other construction procurement documents), and (2) those portions of any Construction Contract 
other than the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), and other 
engineering or technical matters; and Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, risk 
managers, and insurance advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such documents. 

 
3. Furnish to Engineer any other available information pertinent to the Specific Project including 

reports and data relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the 
Site. 

 
4. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Specific Project information and data and upon 

Engineer’s request, obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary through title searches, 
or retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related information and data as is 
reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and Additional Services. Such additional 
information or data would generally include the following: 

 
a. Property descriptions. 



Exhibit B– Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

b. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions. 
 

c. Utility and topographic mapping and surveys. 
 

d. Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data, including 
establishing relevant reference points. 

 
e. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical reports 

and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface 
structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections of samples, 
materials, and equipment; with appropriate professional interpretation of such information or 
data. 

 
f. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other relevant 

environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Specific Project, the Site, and 
adjacent areas. 

 
g. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this Agreement. 

 
5. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public and private 

property as required for Engineer to perform services under the Agreement. 
 

6. Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the following 
services, provide, as required for the Project: 

 
a. Accounting, bond and financial advisory (including, if applicable, “municipal advisor” services as 

described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
(2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued  by the Securities and  Exchange 
Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling services. 

 
b. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as Owner requires, Contractor 

raises, or Engineer reasonably requests. 
 

c. Such auditing services as Owner requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor has 
used the money paid. 

 
7. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, and 

approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required by the Construction Contract Documents 
(other than those required to be furnished or arranged by Contractor), or to evaluate the 
performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner, prior to their incorporation into the 
Work with appropriate professional interpretation thereof. Provide Engineer with the findings and 
reports generated by testing laboratories, including findings and reports obtained from or through 
Contractor. 

 
8. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction to 

approve all phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer and such reviews, approvals, and 
consents from others as may be necessary for completion of each phase of the Project. 



Exhibit B– Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

9. Advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants employed by 
Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost 
estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructibility review. 

 
10. If Owner designates a construction manager or an individual or entity other than, or in addition to, 

Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, define and set forth as an attachment to this Exhibit B the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party and the relation thereof to 
the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer. 

 
11. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by Engineer, 

other work is to be performed at or adjacent to the Site by others or by employees of Owner, or if 
Owner arranges to have work performed at the Site by utility owners, then Owner shall coordinate 
such work unless Owner designates an individual or entity to have authority and responsibility for 
coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors and others performing work. In 
such case Owner shall define and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of 
such individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of 
Engineer as an attachment to this Exhibit B that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part of 
this Agreement before such services begin. 

 
12. Inform Engineer in writing of any specific requirements of safety or security programs that are 

applicable to Engineer, as a visitor to the Site. 
 

13. Examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, and 
other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining advice of an attorney, risk manager, 
insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and other advisors or consultants as Owner deems 
appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely decisions pertaining 
thereto. 

 
14. Inform Engineer regarding any need for assistance in evaluating the possible use of Project 

Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A. 
 

15. Advise Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying opportunities for 
enhancing the sustainability of the Project. 

 
16. Place and pay for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications. 

 
17. Furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be provided by others 

(including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial, independent cost estimating, 
insurance counseling, and legal advice) for Owner so that Engineer may assist Owner in collating the 
various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs. 

 
18. Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 

construction progress and other job related meetings, and Site visits to determine Substantial 
Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final payment. 

 
19. Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the Agreement, 

as required. 



Exhibit B– Owner's Responsibilities 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 

 

20. Perform or provide the following: [Here list any additional Owner responsibilities]. 



Exhibit C – Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT C, consisting of [ ] pages, referred to in 
and part of the Agreement between Owner and 
Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order 
Edition dated [           ]. 

 
 

Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
 

 

Article 2 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties: 
 

ARTICLE 2 – OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

C2.01 Basis of Compensation 
 

A. The bases of compensation (compensation methods) for Basic Services (including if applicable the 
bases of compensation for individual phases of Basic Services) and for Additional Services shall be 
identified in each specific Task Order (see Suggested Form of Task Order, Paragraph 6). Owner shall pay 
Engineer for services in accordance with the applicable basis of compensation. 

 
B. The three following bases of compensation are used for services under the Task Orders, as identified in 

each specific Task Order: 
 

1. Lump Sum (plus any expenses expressly eligible for reimbursement) 
 

2. Standard Hourly Rates (plus any expenses expressly eligible for reimbursement) 
 

3. Direct Labor Costs Times a Factor (plus any expenses expressly eligible for reimbursement) 

C2.02 Explanation of Compensation Methods 

A. Lump Sum 
 

1. Owner shall pay Engineer a Lump Sum amount for the specified category of services. 
 

2. The Lump Sum will include compensation for Engineer's services and services of Consultants, if any. 
The Lump Sum constitutes full and complete compensation for Engineer’s services in the specified 
category, including labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses (other than those expenses expressly 
eligible for reimbursement, if any), and Consultant charges. 

 
3. In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner for the 

following expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred by Engineer in connection with the 
performing or furnishing of the services in the specified category (see Appendix 1 for rates or 
charges): [ ] [List any such reimbursable expenses here, or indicate “None.” If “None” then 
the reference to Appendix 1 may be deleted.] 

 
4. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer's services will be based upon Engineer's 

estimate of the proportion of the total services actually completed during the billing period to the 
Lump Sum. 



Exhibit C – Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

B. Standard Hourly Rates 
 

1. For the specified category of services, the Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to the 
cumulative hours charged to the Specific Project by each class of Engineer's employees times 
Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class. Under this method, Engineer shall also be 
entitled to reimbursement from Owner for the expenses identified in Paragraph C2.03 below, and 
Appendix 1. 

 
2. Standard Hourly Rates include salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the 

cost of customary and statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project 
operating costs, and operating margin or profit. 

 
3. Engineer's Reimbursable Expenses Schedule and Standard Hourly Rates are attached to this Exhibit 

as Appendices 1 and 2. 
 

4. The total estimated compensation for the specified category of services shall be stated in the Task 
Order. This total estimated compensation will incorporate all labor at Standard Hourly Rates, and 
reimbursable expenses (including Consultants' charges, if any). 

 
5. The amounts billed will be based on the cumulative hours charged to the specified category of 

services on the Specific Project during the billing period by each class of Engineer's employees 
times Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class, plus reimbursable expenses (including 
Consultant's charges, if any). 

 
6. The Standard Hourly Rates and Reimbursable Expenses Schedule shall be adjusted annually (as of 

[     ]) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer. 
 

C. Direct Labor Costs Times a Factor 
 

1. For the specified category of services, the Owner shall pay Engineer an amount equal to Engineer's 
Direct Labor Costs times a factor of [ ] for the services of Engineer's employees engaged on the 
Specific Project. Direct Labor Costs means salaries and wages paid to employees but does not 
include payroll-related costs or benefits. Under this method, Engineer shall also be entitled to 
reimbursement from Owner for the expenses identified in Paragraph C2.03 below, and Appendix 1. 

 
2. Engineer's Reimbursable Expenses Schedule is attached to this Exhibit as Appendix 1. 

 
3. The total estimated compensation for the specified category of services shall be stated in the Task 

Order. This total estimated compensation incorporates all labor, overhead, profit, and reimbursable 
expenses (including Consultant's charges, if any). 

 
4. The amounts billed will be based on the applicable Direct Labor Costs for the cumulative hours 

charged to the specified category of services on the Specific Project during the billing period times 
the above-designated Factor, plus reimbursable expenses (including Consultant's charges, if any). 

 
5. The Direct Labor Costs and the factor applied to Direct Labor Costs will be adjusted annually (as of 

[        ]) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to Engineer. 



Exhibit C – Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

C2.03 Reimbursable Expenses 
 

A. Under the Lump Sum method basis of compensation to Engineer, unless expressly indicated otherwise 
the Lump Sum amount includes the following categories of expenses: transportation (including mileage), 
lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including 
furnishings and utilities; toll telephone calls, mobile phone services, and courier charges; reproduction 
of reports, Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction 
Contract Documents, and similar Specific Project-related items; and Consultant charges. These 
expenses are not reimbursable under the Lump Sum method, unless expressly indicated otherwise in 
C2.02.A.3 above. 

 
B. Expenses eligible for reimbursement under the Direct Labor Costs Times a Factor and Standard Hourly 

Rate methods of compensation include the following expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred by 
Engineer in connection with the performing or furnishing of Basic and Additional Services for the Task 
Order: transportation (including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing and 
maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; toll telephone calls, mobile phone 
services, and courier services; reproduction of reports, Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or 
other procurement documents, Construction Contract Documents, and similar Specific Project-related 
items; Consultant charges; and any other expenses identified in Appendix 1. 

 
C. Reimbursable expenses reasonably and necessarily incurred in connection with services provided under 

the Direct Labor Costs Times a Factor and Standard Hourly Rate methods shall be paid at the rates set 
forth in Appendix 1, Reimbursable Expenses Schedule, subject to the factors set forth below. 

 
D. The amounts payable to Engineer for reimbursable expenses will be the Project-specific internal 

expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer, plus all invoiced external reimbursable expenses 
allocable to the Specific Project, the latter multiplied by a factor of [       ]. 

 
E. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of its Consultants, those charges shall 

be the amount billed by such Consultants to Engineer times a factor of [       ]. 
 

F. The external reimbursable expenses and Consultants’ factors include Engineer’s overhead and profit 
associated with Engineer’s responsibility for the administration of such services and costs. 

 
C2.04 Serving as a Witness 

 
A. For services performed by Engineer's employees as witnesses giving testimony in any litigation, 

arbitration or other legal or administrative proceeding under Paragraph A2.01.A.20, at a rate of [ ] times 
the witness’s standard hourly rate. Compensation for Consultants for such services will be by 
reimbursement of Consultants' reasonable charges to Engineer for such services. 

 
C2.05 Other Provisions Concerning Payment 

 
A. Extended Contract Times: Should the Contract Times to complete the Work be extended beyond the 

period stated in the Task Order, payment for Engineer's services shall be continued based on the 
Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment. 

 
B. Estimated Compensation Amounts 



Exhibit C – Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 

 

1. Engineer's estimate of the amounts that will become payable for services are only estimates for 
planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are not the minimum or maximum amounts 
payable to Engineer under the Agreement. 

 
2. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated in a Task Order and it subsequently 

becomes apparent to Engineer that a compensation amount thus estimated will be exceeded, 
Engineer shall give Owner written notice thereof. Promptly thereafter Owner and Engineer shall 
review the matter of services remaining to be performed and compensation for such services. 
Owner shall either agree to such compensation exceeding said estimated amount or Owner and 
Engineer shall agree to a reduction in the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer so that 
total compensation for such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are 
completed. If Engineer exceeds the estimated amount before Owner and Engineer have agreed to 
an increase in the compensation due Engineer or a reduction  in  the remaining  services, the 
Engineer shall give written notice thereof to Owner and shall be paid for all services rendered 
thereafter. 



Exhibit C - Appendix 1 – Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is Appendix 1 to EXHIBIT C, referred to in and 
part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer 
for Professional Services – Task Order Edition, dated  
[ ]. 

 

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule 
 

 

Expenses eligible for reimbursement are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C.   Rates and charges for 
reimbursable expenses as of the date of the Agreement are: 

 
 

8"x11" Copies/Impressions  /page 
Copies of Drawings  /sq. ft. 
Mileage (auto)  /mile 
Air Transportation at cost 
CAD Charge  /hour 
Laboratory Testing at cost 
Health and Safety Level D  /day 
Health and Safety Level C  /day 
Meals and Lodging  at cost 

 
[Note to User: Customize this Schedule to reflect anticipated reimbursable expenses on 
this Specific Project] 



Exhibit C – Appendix 2 – Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is Appendix 2 to EXHIBIT C, referred to in and 
part of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer 
for Professional Services – Task Order Edition dated  
[ ]. 

 

Standard Hourly Rates Schedule 
 

 

The following standard hourly rates are subject to review and adjustment per Exhibit C.  Hourly rates for services as 
of the Effective Date of the Task Order are: 

 
Billing Class VIII $ /hour 

  
Billing Class VII $ /hour 

  
Billing Class VI $ /hour 

  
Billing Class V $ /hour 

  
Billing Class IV $ /hour 

  
Billing Class III $ /hour 

  
Billing Class II $ /hour 

  
Billing Class I $ /hour 

  
 
 
 
 

[Note to User: The categories above (Billing Classes VIII through I) are traditional hourly rate classes for 
engineering services, but the classes themselves do not currently have widely accepted or understood 
meanings or definitions. Many approaches are possible for establishing the hourly rates that will be 
charged. These include defining the categories (for example, “Billing Class VI—Assistant Project 
Manager”), or using the engineering firm’s own professional classifications. If hourly rates are ascribed 
to specific individuals, the user should ensure that changes in professional personnel and rates are 
allowable over the Project’s course.] 

 



Exhibit D – Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT D, consisting of [   ] pages, referred to 
in and part of the Agreement between Owner and 
Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order 
Edition dated [           ]. 

 
Schedule of Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 

 

 

The following duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority may be incorporated in the Task Order for a 
Specific Project: 

 
D1.01 Resident Project Representative 

 
A. Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative (“RPR”) to assist Engineer in observing progress 

and quality of the Work. The RPR may provide full time representation or may provide 
representation to a lesser degree. RPR is Engineer’s representative at the Site, will act as directed by and 
under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer regarding RPR’s actions. 

 
B. Through RPR's observations of the Work, including field checks of materials and installed equipment, 

Engineer shall endeavor to provide further protection for Owner against defects and deficiencies in the 
Work. However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR observations of the Work, supervise, direct, 
or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer (including the RPR) have authority over or 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected 
or used by any Constructor, for security or safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs 
incident to the Work or any Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ 
work or schedules, or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable 
to the performing and furnishing of its work. The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the 
performances of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish and 
perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the Construction Contract 
Documents. In addition, the specific terms set forth in Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05, as incorporated in 
this Task Order, are applicable. 

 
C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows: 

 
1. General: RPR’s dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with Engineer and 

Contractor. RPR’s dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge 
and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with Owner only with the 
knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer. 

 
2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, 

schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult with Engineer 
concerning acceptability of such schedules. 

 
3. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as  preconstruction conferences, 

progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings (but not including 
Contractor’s safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 



Exhibit D – Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

4. Safety Compliance: Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if required to do 
so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to RPR’s own personal 
safety while at the Site. 

 
5. Liaison 

 
a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor. Working principally through Contractor’s 

authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information regarding the 
provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents. 

 
b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when Contractor’s operations 

affect Owner’s on-Site operations. 
 

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for proper 
execution of the Work. 

 
6. Clarifications and Interpretations: Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters in question 

concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as 
requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating to the acceptability of the Work 
under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to Engineer regarding such RFIs. Report to 
Engineer when clarifications and interpretations of the Construction Contract Documents are 
needed, whether as the result of a Contractor RFI or otherwise. Transmit Engineer’s clarifications, 
interpretations, and decisions to Contractor. , 

 
7. Shop Drawings and Samples 

 
a. Record date of receipt of Samples and Contractor-approved Shop Drawings. 

 
b. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify Engineer of 

availability of Samples for examination. 
 

c. Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work requiring a 
Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that the submittal has not been received 
from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or Engineer. 

 
8. Proposed Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for modifications to the 

Drawings or Specifications, and report such suggestions, together with RPR’s recommendations, if 
any, to Engineer. Transmit Engineer’s response (if any) to such suggestions to Contractor. 

 
9. Review of Work; Defective Work 

 
a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is defective under the 

terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, and provide 
recommendations as to whether such Work should be corrected, removed and replaced, or 
accepted as provided in the Construction Contract Documents. 

 
b. Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms and standards  

set  forth  in  the  Construction  Contract  Documents,  but  is  nonetheless  not 



Exhibit D – Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole, and 
provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work; and 

 
c. Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for 

observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval. 
 

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups 
 

a. Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems start-ups. 
 

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance training 
are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner’s personnel, and that Contractor 
maintains adequate records thereof. 

 
c. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test procedures 

and systems start-ups. 
 

d. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and Regulations, 
including but not limited to those to  be performed  by public or other agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Work. 

 
e. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over 

the Work, record the results of these inspections, and report to Engineer. 
 

11. Records 
 

a. Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, copies of 
Construction Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change 
Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the 
Construction Contract, RFIs, Engineer’s clarifications and interpretations of the Construction 
Contract Documents, progress reports, Shop Drawing and Sample submittals received from 
and delivered to Contractor, and other Project-related documents. 

 
b. Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor’s hours on the Site, 

Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to questions of Change 
Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or changed conditions, Site visitors, deliveries 
of equipment or materials, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific 
observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to 
Engineer. 

 
c. Upon request from Owner to Engineer, photograph or video work in progress or Site 

conditions. 
 

d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the names, addresses, fax numbers, e-mail 
addresses, websites, and telephone numbers (including mobile numbers) of all Contractors, 
Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and equipment. 

 
e. Maintain records for use in preparing Specific Project documentation. 



Exhibit D – Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 4 

 

f. Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation to 
Engineer. 

 
12. Reports 

 
a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor’s 

compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals. 
 

b. Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and 
Field Orders. Obtain backup material from Contractor. 

 
c. Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system start-up reports. 

 
d. Immediately inform Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents, emergencies, acts of 

God endangering the Work, possible force majeure or delay events, damage to property by 
fire or other causes, or the discovery of any potential differing site condition or Constituent of 
Concern. 

 
13. Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance with the 

established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to  Engineer, noting 
particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, Work 
completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work. 

 
14. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify that 

materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data 
required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable 
to the items actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have these 
documents delivered to Engineer for review and forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that 
part of the Work. 

 
15. Completion: 

 
a. Participate in Engineer’s visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist in the 

determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion, submit a punch list of observed items requiring completion or 
correction. 

 
b. Participate in Engineer’s visit to the Site in the company of, Owner, and Contractor, to 

determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be completed or 
corrected by Contractor. 

 
c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or corrected, and 

make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and issuance of the Notice of 
Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E). 

 
D. Resident Project Representative shall not: 

 
1. Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or substitution of materials or 

equipment (including “or-equal” items). 



Exhibit D – Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 5 

 

2. Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

3. Undertake  any  of  the  responsibilities  of  Contractor,  Subcontractors,  or  Suppliers,  or  any 
Constructor. 

 
4. Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods, 

techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other Constructor. 
 

5. Advise  on,  issue  directions  regarding,  or  assume  control  over  security  or  safety  practices, 
precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of Owner or Contractor. 

 
6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others 

except as specifically authorized by Engineer. 
 

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 
 

8. Authorize Owner to occupy the Specific Project in whole or in part. 



Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT E, consisting of [ ] pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – 
Task Order Edition dated [ ]. 

 
 

[Notes to User 
 

1. Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05.A.24 of this Agreement indicates that in connection with recommending final 
payment of the Construction Contractor with respect to a specific Construction Contract, the Engineer will also 
provide a notice to Owner and Contractor of the acceptability of the Work, subject to stated limitations. The 
form for that purpose, “Notice of Acceptability of Work,” is attached on the following pages of this Exhibit E. 
The same form is also available as a construction form, EJCDC® C-626 (2013). 

 
2. The Notice of Acceptability of Work should be served in compliance with the requirements for service of 
notice under the Construction Contract. See Paragraph 18.01, Giving Notice, of EJCDC® C-700 (2013), Standard 
General Conditions of the Construction Contract.] 



Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

 

 
 

 

 

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 
 

 

 

SPECIFIC PROJECT: 
 

 

 

OWNER: 
 

OWNER'S CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT IDENTIFICATION: 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT: 

 
ENGINEER: 

 
NOTICE DATE: 

 
 

 

To:    
OWNER 

 
And To:    

CONTRACTOR 
 

From:       
ENGINEER 

 
 

 

The Engineer hereby gives notice to the above Owner and Contractor that Engineer has recommended final 
payment of Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the above Construction 
Contract is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the related Contract Documents, the Agreement 
between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated          ,           , and the following terms and conditions 
of this Notice. 



Exhibit E – Notice of Acceptability of Work 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 3 

 

CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK 
 

The  Notice  of  Acceptability  of  Work  ("Notice")  is  expressly  made  subject  to  the  following terms  and 
conditions to which all persons who receive said Notice and rely thereon agree: 

 
1. This  Notice  is  given  with  the  skill  and  care  ordinarily  used  by  members  of  the  engineering 

profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality. 
 

2. This Notice reflects and is an expression of the professional judgment of Engineer. 
 

3. This Notice is given as to the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information, and belief as of the Notice 
Date. 

 
4. This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer has been 

employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Specific Project (including 
observation of the Contractor’s work) under Engineer’s Agreement with Owner, and applies only 
to facts that are within Engineer’s knowledge or could reasonably have been ascertained by 
Engineer as a result of carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such 
Agreement. 

 
5. This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor’s performance under the Construction 

Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the related Contract Documents, 
including but not limited to defective Work discovered after final inspection, nor an assumption of 
responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish and perform the Work thereunder in 
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, or to otherwise comply with the 
Construction Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein. 

 
6. This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the Construction 

Contract, and is subject to Owner’s reservations of rights with respect to completion and final 
payment. 

 
 
 

By:   
 
 

 

 

Title:   
 
 

 

 

Dated:   
 
 

 



Exhibit F – Construction Cost Limit 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT F, consisting of [ ] pages, 
referred to in and part of the Agreement between 
Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – 
Task Order Edition dated [ ]. 

 

Construction Cost Limit 
 

 

Paragraph 5.02 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following when incorporated in the 
Task Order for a Specific Project: 

 
F5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit 

 
A. A Construction Cost limit may be set forth in the Task Order. 

 
B. If a Construction Cost limit is set forth in a Task Order, then the Task Order will also specify bidding or 

negotiating contingency to be added to such Construction Cost limit. 
 

C. The acceptance by Owner at any time during Basic Services of a revised opinion of probable Construction 
Cost in excess of the then established Construction Cost limit will constitute a corresponding increase in the 
Construction Cost limit. 

 
D. Engineer will be permitted to determine what types of materials, equipment and component systems, and 

the types and quality thereof are to be included in the Drawings and Specifications and to make reasonable 
adjustments in the scope, extent, and character of a Specific Project to the extent consistent with the 
project requirements and sound engineering practices to bring the project within the Construction Cost 
limit. 

 
E. If the Bidding or Negotiating Phase has not commenced within three months after completion of the Final 

Design Phase, or if industry-wide prices are changed because of unusual or unanticipated events affecting 
the general level of prices or times of delivery in the construction industry, the established Construction 
Cost limit will not be binding on Engineer, and Owner shall consent to an adjustment in such Construction 
Cost limit commensurate with any applicable change in the general level of prices in the construction 
industry between the date of completion of the Final Design Phase and the date on which proposals or Bids 
are sought. 

 
F. If the lowest bona fide proposal or Bid exceeds the established Construction Cost limit, Owner shall (1) give 

written approval to increase such Construction Cost limit, or (2) authorize negotiating or rebidding the 
Specific Project within a reasonable time, or (3) cooperate in revising the Specific Project's scope, extent, or 
character to the extent consistent with the Specific Project’s requirements and with sound engineering 
practices. In the case of (3), Engineer shall modify the Construction Contract Documents as necessary to 
bring the Construction Cost within the Construction Cost limit. Owner shall pay Engineer’s cost to provide 
such modification services, including the costs of the services of its Consultants, all overhead expenses 
reasonably related thereto, and Reimbursable Expenses, but without profit to Engineer on account of such 
services. The providing of such services will be the limit of its responsibility in this regard and, having done 
so, Engineer shall be entitled to payment for services and expenses in accordance with this Agreement and 
will not otherwise be liable for damages attributable to the lowest bona fide proposal or bid exceeding the 
established Construction Cost limit. 



 

 
CITY OF SCHERTZ 

REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL INSURANCE DOCUMENTS 

EXHIBIT G, 3 pages 

 

The Contractor shall comply with each and every condition contained herein. The Contractor shall provide 
and maintain the minimum insurance coverage set forth below during the term of its agreement with the 
City. Any Subcontractor(s) hired by the Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage equal to that required 
of the Contractor. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to assure compliance with this provision. The 
City of Schertz accepts no responsibility arising from the conduct, or lack of conduct, of the Subcontractor. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF INSURANCE DOCUMENT 
With reference to the foregoing insurance requirements, Contractor shall specifically endorse applicable 
insurance policies as follows: 

1. The City of Schertz shall be named as an additional insured with respect to General Liability and 
Automobile Liability on a separate endorsement. 

2. A waiver of subrogation in favor of The City of Schertz shall be contained in the Workers 
Compensation and all liability policies and must be provided on a separate endorsement. 

3. All insurance policies shall be endorsed to the effect that The City of Schertz will receive at least 
thirty (30) days written notice prior to cancellation or non-renewal of the insurance. 

4. All insurance policies, which name The City of Schertz as an additional insured, must be endorsed 
to read as primary and non-contributory coverage regardless of the application of other insurance. 

5. Chapter 1811 of the Texas Insurance Code, Senate Bill 425 82(R) of 2011, states that the 
above endorsements cannot be on the certificate of insurance. Separate endorsements must be 
provided for each of the above. 

6. All insurance policies shall be endorsed to require the insurer to immediately notify The City of 
Schertz of any material change in the insurance coverage. 

7. All liability policies shall contain no cross liability exclusions or insured versus insured restrictions. 
8. Required limits may be satisfied by any combination of primary and umbrella liability insurances. 
9. Contractor may maintain reasonable and customary deductibles, subject to approval by The City of 

Schertz. 
10. Insurance must be purchased from insurers having a minimum AmBest rating of B+. 
11. All insurance must be written on forms filed with and approved by the Texas Department of 

Insurance. (ACORD 25 2010/05). Coverage must be written on an occurrence form. 
12. Contractual Liability must be maintained covering the Contractors obligations contained in the 

contract. Certificates of Insurance shall be prepared and executed by the insurance company or its 
authorized agent and shall contain provisions representing and warranting all endorsements and 
insurance coverages according to requirements and instructions contained herein. 

13. Upon request, Contractor shall furnish The City of Schertz with certified copies of all insurance 
policies. 

14. A valid certificate of insurance verifying each of the coverages required above shall be issued 
directly to the City of Schertz within ten (10) business days after contract award and prior to 
starting any work by the successful Contractor’s insurance agent of record or insurance company. 
Also, prior to the start of any work and at the same time that the Certificate of Insurance is issued 
and sent to the City of Schertz, all required endorsements identified in sections A, B, C and D, 
above shall be sent to the City of Schertz. The certificate of insurance and endorsements shall be 
sent to: 

City of Schertz 
Purchasing Department 
1400 Schertz Parkway 
Schertz, TX 78154 

Emailed to:  
jgohlke@schertz.com 
Faxed to: 210-619-1169 

mailto:jgohlke@schertz.com


 

 

 
 
 
 

(Instructions for completing and submitting a certificate to the City of Schertz) 



 

Complete the certificate of insurance with the information listed below: 
 

A) Certificate of Insurance date 
B) Producer (Insurance Agency) Information – complete name, address, telephone information, & 

email address. 
C) Insured’s (Insurance Policy Holder) Information – complete name & address information 
D) Insurer (name/names of insurance company) **(Remember the city requires all insurance 

companies to be Authorized to do business in the State of Texas be rated by A.M. Best with a rating 
of B+ (or better) Class VI (or higher) or otherwise be acceptable to the City if not rated by A.M. 
Best) 

E) NAIC # (National Association of Insurance Commissioners, a # that is assigned by the State to all 
insurance companies) 

F) Insurer letter represents which insurance company provides which type of coverage from D 
G) General Liability Insurance Policy – must have an (x) in box. Also, “Occurrence” type policy – 

must have an (x) in the box (occurrence policy preferred but claims made policy can be accepted 
with special approval) 

H) This section shall be filled in with “Y” for yes under Additional Insured for all coverages, except 
for Contractor Liability and Workers’ Compensation. There shall also be a “Y” for yes under all 
coverages for subrogation waived. 

I) Automobile Liability Insurance – must be checked for Any Auto, All Owned Autos, Hired Autos 
J) Umbrella Coverage – must be checked in this section and by occurrence whenever it is required by 

written contract and in accordance with the contract value. 
K) Worker’s Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance – information must be completed in 

this section of the certificate of insurance form (if applicable). 
L) Builder’s Risk Policy – for construction projects as designated by the City of Schertz. 

Professional Liability Coverage – for professional services if required by the City of Schertz. 
M) Insurance Policy #’s 
N) Insurance policy effective dates (always check for current dates) 
O) Insurance Policy limits (See Insurance Requirements Checklist) 
P) This section is to list projects, dates of projects, or location of project. Endorsements to the 

insurance policy(ies) must be provided separately and not in this section. The following 
endorsements are required by the City of Schertz. 
(1) Adding the City of Schertz as an additional insured. The “additional insured” endorsement is 

not required for professional liability and workers compensation insurance; and 
(2) Waiver of Subrogation 
(3) Primary and Non-Contributory 
(4) Cancellation Notice 

Q) City of Schertz’s name and address information must be listed in this section 
R) Notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change to the insurance policy(ies) must be provided 

to the City of Schertz in accordance with a cancellation notice endorsement to the policy and/or 
per the policy provisions based on the endorsement adding the city as an additional insured. (Sec. 
1811.155, Tex. Ins. Code) 

S) The certificate must be signed by the Authorized Agent in this section of the certificate form. 



 

This is EXHIBIT J, consisting of [  ] pages, referred to in 
and part of the Agreement between Owner and 
Engineer for Professional Services dated [   ]. 

 

 
 

Special Provisions 
 

 

Paragraph(s) of the Agreement is/are amended to include the following agreement(s) of the parties: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Exhibit J–Special Provisions 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 
 



Exhibit K – Amendment to Task Order 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 1 

 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of [  ] pages, referred 
to in and part of the Agreement between Owner 
and Engineer for Professional Services – Task 
Order Edition dated [   ]. 

 

Amendment To Task Order No.    
 

 

1. Background Data: 
 

a. Effective Date of Task Order: 

b. Owner: 

c. Engineer: 

d. Specific Project: 
 

2. Description of Modifications 
 

[Include the following paragraphs that are applicable and delete those not applicable to this amendment.  Refer 
to paragraph numbers used in the Agreement or a previous amendment for clarity with respect to the 
modifications to be made. Use paragraph numbers in this document for ease of reference herein and in future 
correspondence or amendments.] 

 

a. Engineer shall perform the following Additional Services: [   ] 
 

b. The Scope of Services currently authorized to be performed by Engineer in accordance with the 
Task Order and previous amendments, if any, is modified as follows: [   ] 

 

c. The responsibilities of Owner with respect to the Task Order are modified as follows: [   ] 
 

d. For the Additional Services or the modifications to services set forth above, Owner shall pay 
Engineer the following additional or modified compensation: [   ] 

 

e. The schedule for rendering services under this Task Order is modified as follows: [    ] 
 

f. Other portions of the Task Order (including previous amendments, if any) are modified as 
follows: [   ] 

 
[List other Attachments, if any] 



Exhibit K – Amendment to Task Order 
EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 

Page 2 

 

3. Task Order Summary (Reference only) 
 

a. Original Task Order amount: $[ ] 
b. Net change for prior amendments: $[ ] 
c. This amendment amount: $[ ] 
d. Adjusted Task Order amount: $[ ] 

 
 

The foregoing Task Order Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Task Order, including 
those set forth in Exhibit C. 

 
Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Task Order as set forth in this Amendment. All 
provisions of the Agreement and Task Order not modified by this or previous Amendments remain in effect. The 
Effective Date of this Amendment is           . 

 
OWNER: ENGINEER: 

By:    By:    

Title:    Title:    

Date 
Signed:    

Date 
Signed:      

 

























Agenda No. 6.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Engineering
Subject: Resolution No. 21-R-114 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas accepting the Semi-annual report with
respect to the progress of the Capital Improvements Plan, and other matters in
connection therewith. (B. James/K. Woodlee)

BACKGROUND
Section 395.058 (c) (4) of the Texas Local Government Code requires the Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee (CIAC) to file semi-annual reports with respect to the progress of the capital
improvements plan and report to City Council any perceived inequities in implementing the plan or
imposing impact fees. Section 90-158 of the City’s Code of Ordinance includes this same requirement.
The CIAC is a citizen group made up of our current Planning and Zoning Commission, a real
estate-type representative and a resident in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction, all of whom are appointed by
the City Council.

Capital Recovery Fees, also known as Impact Fees, can only be charged to new development and used
in compliance with a specific adopted plan. Projects in the plan must be designed to increase the
capacity of our water and sewer infrastructure to accommodate our growth. General maintenance or
replacing old pipes would not be acceptable uses of these funds.

The attached report includes capital recovery balance reports for October 1, 2020 through March 31,
2021 and the CIAC minutes from April 28, 2021, during which the CIAC recommended acceptance of
the report.

Revenue activity in all the Impact Fee Funds (water, sewer, and roadway) this period included collection
of fees, fund interest earned, and investments income.  Expenses were as follows:

Water 

Professional Services related to the City-wide Water Master Plan and Impact Fee Update Study
Auditor costs
Project expenses for Water Impact Fee projects were $172,980.16 for the Corbett Elevated Tank
Project.

Sewer 

Professional Services related to the City-wide Wastewater Master Plan and Impact Fee Update
Study
Auditor costs
Investment management fee

Roadway (the only expense was in Service Area 2) 

Payment to Development Incentive Fund in accordance with agreement to reimburse developer
for the extension of Ripps Kreusler Drive



Status of Active Projects (as of March 31, 2021 - subsequent progress will be noted on the next report)

Water 

Corbett Elevated Water Storage Tank:  Construction of the tank and associated facilities is
substantially complete.  The tank is operating on the system as designed.  Project closeout
activities are underway.

Sewer 

Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Interceptor Main and Lift Station:  Final minor changes to
the design and bid documents are underway.  Advertisement for bid of the project is imminent.

Roadway
There are currently no active roadway projects funded by capital recovery fees.

GOAL 
To accept the Semi-annual Reports on the revenue and expenditures relating to the water, wastewater,
and roadway impact fees as filed by the City of Schertz Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
(CIAC).
 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
To ensure compliance with State Law and the City’s Code of Ordinances and to ensure that impact fees
are being collected and spent appropriately.
 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approval of Resolution 21-R-114 accepting the Semi-annual Report as filed by the Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee.
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The report indicates the amounts collected and spent for water, wastewater, and roadway impact fees.
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 21-R-114 accepting the Semi-annual Report as filed by the
Capital Improvements Advisory Committee.
 

Attachments
Resolution 21-R-114 
Attachment A Semiannual 
Attachment B Minutes for April 



RESOLUTION NO.  21-R-114

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE SEMIANNUAL REPORTS WITH 
RESPECT TO THE PROGRESS OF THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PLANS, AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee has reviewed the revenue 
and expenditures relating to the established Capital Recovery Fees in accordance with the 
Capital Improvements Plans for the City of Schertz; and

WHEREAS, the City Council accepts the Semiannual Reports as filed by the Capital 
Improvements Advisory Committee in accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 
395; then

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby accepts the Capital Recovery Balance Report
with respect to the progress of the Capital Improvements Plan for the City of Schertz, Texas, for 
the period of October 1, 2020, through March 31, 2021, as shown in the attached Exhibit A and 
draft minutes of the April 28, 2021, City of Schertz Capital Improvements Advisory Committee 
as shown in the attached Exhibit B.

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision.

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved.



PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

(CITY SEAL)



A-1

EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT

















Agenda No. 7.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Facility & Fleet

Subject: Resolution No. 21-R-112 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to issue a purchase order(s) for the purchase of various
Emergency Services Vehicles as part of the 2021-2022 Vehicle/Equipment replacement program. (C. Kelm/S. Williams/C. Hernandez)

BACKGROUND
Within each fiscal budget year, the Fleet Department requests to purchase vehicles/equipment to add to or replace aging vehicles to maintain a good working fleet of City owned vehicles/equipment.  For the 2021/2022 budget year and in accordance with the Vehicle Replacement Plan previously approved by Council,
below are the emergency vehicles to be purchased in FY 21-22.

The following vehicles/equipment will be purchased from various vendors via group purchasing cooperatives and or sole source vendors. Each group purchasing cooperative contract was competitively bid by the awarding entity. In addition to that level of
competition, City staff also obtained multiple contract quotes to ensure the overall best value for the City was obtained. 

Previously, the City had an ambulance remount completed and invoiced at $106,368.75.  In an effort to account for current market  price increases, market volatility, and unforeseen needs, the remounts of the ambulances have been budgeted at $150,000
per remount.

The following list contains:
1 EMS Supervisor Vehicle
2 EMS Ambulance Remounts
1 Fire Department Brush Truck
1 EMS New Ambulance 
  

EMS VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT LIST FOR FY 2021/22 - PRELIMINARY

DEPARTMENT VEHICLE VENDOR COST PER UNITTOTAL COST ADDITIONAL INFORMATION - NOTES

EMS 2022 Chevy Tahoe Silsbee Ford $41,000.00 $41,000.00   GOODBUY

Fire Dept. Skeeter Ford F550 Siddons Martin  $171,000.00 $171,000.00   Sole Source 

EMS 2022 Ambulance Sterling McCall Ford$237,000.00 $237,000.00   BuyBoard Contract #570-18

EMS (2)  2022 Remounts SERVS $150,000.00 $300,000.00         Buyboard     

                                   
                                   
    $41,000.00                              
    $171,000.00                            
    $237,000.00                            
    $300,000.00                              

Totals   $749,000.00                            

Contingency 0.1                              
                                 

Total w/ contingency $823,900.00                              
  

               

GOAL 

To authorize the City Manager to execute the purchase orders for the purchase of the vehicles listed in the vehicle replacement program.

 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT

Having a current and operational Fleet will provide all departments with the necessary vehicles and equipment to perform their assigned duties within the City of Schertz and reduce the maintenance cost of an aging fleet.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approval of this resolution will allow the purchase of the vehicles listed in the approved vehicle replacement program. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The purchase of the vehicles and equipment will be funded through the city’s general fund and emergency services funds. The fiscal impact of this project will be approximately $749,000.00 with a contingency of 10% added for a total not to exceed $823,900.00.  These funds were approved in the FY 2021-2022
budget.
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 21-R-112.

Attachments

Resolution 21-R-112 Backup material 

EMS Ambulance Letter of Intent 

Resolution 21-R-112 EMS-Fire Vehicle Resolution 





















RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-112

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $823,900.00 FOR THE FY21-22 VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, Schertz EMS/Fire Department has a need to purchase vehicles and 
equipment as  part of the Vehicle/Equipment Replacement Program; and

WHEREAS, City Staff has done due diligence in researching what vehicle best fits the 
needs of the department, to obtain the best pricing and to provide the best quality of vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the City of Schertz has chosen various Group Purchasing Cooperative 
Vendors, to purchase the vehicles; and

WHEREAS, purchases under the cooperative programs meet the requirements under 
Subchapter C, Chapter 791.025 of the Texas Government Code, which states that a local 
government that purchases goods and services under this section satisfies the requirement of the 
local government to seek competitive bids for the purchase of the goods and services; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to 
authorize the City Manager to issue Purchase Orders to the awarded vendors.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes expenditures in a not to exceed amount of 
EIGHT HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND NINE-HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($823,900.00) for the vehicle/equipment replacement program.

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of
the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of
this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of
the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to  any person or
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the applicationof



such provision to otherpersons and circumstancesshall neverthelessbe valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 6. It is officially found, determined,  and  declared  that the  meeting  at which  this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was given, all as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL)



EXHIBIT A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION



Agenda No. 8.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Engineering
Subject: Resolution No. 21-R-108 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with Raba
Kistner, Inc., for Construction Materials Observation and Testing Services
related to the Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Project.  (B. James/K.
Woodlee)

BACKGROUND
The Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Trunk Main and Lift Station Project (WHC WW Project) is
part of the City's effort to establish and expand public wastewater collection and conveyance service to
the southern portion of Schertz.  The project generally consists of 13,000 linear feet (lf) of 30-inch
diameter gravity main, 1,500 lf of 18-inch gravity main, 6,000 lf of 14-inch force main, and a
wastewater lift station with 16-foot diameter storage and wet wells.  Once constructed, the project will
provide the backbone to a future system that will serve approximately 4,461 acres and 6,450 dwelling
units in an area known as the WHC sewershed.  The project will convey wastewater to the newly
constructed CCMA water reclamation plant on Trainer Hale Road. 

Construction of the WHC WW Project is expected to cost $11,100,000 and will take 12 to 15 months to
be fully complete.  To provide for the necessary quality control of construction, the services of a
qualified materials testing consultant are needed.  Raba Kistner has an existing master agreement to
provide on call geotechnical services for the City that was established using the Request for
Qualifications procurement process. This task order falls under the scope of the master agreement
established and approved by council on resolution 20-R-79.

The costs associated with this task order will be approximately $90,000.  That amount will be covered
under the total funding for construction and ancillary tasks associated with the WHC WW Project. 
 

GOAL 
The goal of the materials testing contract is to provide the necessary field quality control including
observations, sampling, field testing and laboratory testing during installation of the Woman Hollering
Creek Wastewater trunk main, lift station, and forcemain.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The community benefits from having properly constructed projects.  Quality control activities work
to ensure that materials and compaction of backfill comply with project specifications.  The work that
Raba Kistner will perform under this task order will provide that service.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 21-R-108.

FISCAL IMPACT 



Funding needed for the not to exceed amount of this agreement is $90,000.  That amount will be
covered under the total funding for construction and ancillary tasks associated with the WHC WW
Project.  Total funding for the current construction effort comes from a combination of 2013 Bond
Sales, Wastewater Capital Recovery Funds, and planned Future Bond Sales, and totals $11,783,000.  

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 21-R-108.

Attachments
Resolution 21-R-108 
Task Order Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO.  21-R-108

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH RABA 
KISTNER, INC., FOR CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS OBSERVATION 
AND TESTING SERVICES RELATED TO THE WOMAN HOLLERING 
CREEK WASTEWATER PROJECT, AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City staff of the City of Schertz (the “City”) has determined that the City 
requires construction materials testing services relating to the construction of the Woman 
Hollering Creek Wastewater Project; and

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that Raba Kistner, Inc., is an approved 
geotechnical testing firm with the City, and is qualified to provide such quality control services 
for the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to 
enter into an Agreement with Raba Kistner, Inc., for a base amount of $79,980, pursuant to the 
task order and proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Agreement”).

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute and 
deliver the Agreement with Raba Kistner, Inc., in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A
and in accordance with the task order agreement for geotechnical engineering services in place 
between the City and Raba Kistner, for an amount of $79,980 and authorize additional 
expenditures as needed up to an amount not to exceed $90,000.

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision.



Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

(CITY SEAL)



A-1

EXHIBIT A

AGREEMENT



 

 

Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

Task Order 
 

 

 

In accordance with Paragraph 1.01 of the Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task 

Order Edition, dated July 1, 2020 ("Agreement"), Owner and Engineer agree as follows: 

 

1. Background Data 

a. Effective Date of Task Order:  

TBD 

b. Owner:  

The City of Schertz 

c. Engineer:  

Raba Kistner, Inc. 

d. Specific Project (title):  

Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Trunk Main, Lift Station, and 

Force Main 

e. Specific Project (description):  

The project will consist of approximately 13,500 linear feet of 30-

inch wastewater line installation for the base bid and the 

installation, 1,500 linear feet of 18-inch wastewater line, 6,000 

linear feet of 14-inch force main, Lift Station installation and 

three additive alternates for Woman Hollering Creek Sanitary 

Sewer Project in Schertz, Texas 

 

2. Services of Engineer 

A. The specific services to be provided or furnished by Engineer under this Task Order are:  

 Construction Phase Services (Exhibit A, Paragraph A1.05) 

•  including Resident Project Representative (RPR) services (A1.05.A.2)  

 Add the service for Construction Materials Observation and Testing Services provided as 

Proposal PND21-022-00 Attachment I 

If the scope of services established in Paragraph 2.A above includes RPR services, then Exhibit D of the 

Agreement is expressly incorporated in this Task Order by reference. 

 

3. Owner's Responsibilities 

Owner shall have those responsibilities set forth in Article 2 of the Agreement and in Exhibit B, subject to 

the following:  

SUGGESTED FORM OF 

TASK ORDER 

 This is Task Order 

No. ____2____, 

kw0973
Text Box
Resolution 21-R-108 Exhibit A



 

 

Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  

Page 2 

 

4. Task Order Schedule   

In addition to any schedule provisions provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere, the parties shall meet the 

following schedule:  

Party Action Schedule 

Engineer Provide construction materials observation 

and testing services and accompanying 

reports, as per Proposal PND21-022-00 

On a call-out basis. 

Owner Notice to Proceed As Coordinated 

 

5. Payments to Engineer 

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for services rendered under this Task Order as follows: 

 We estimate a budget of $79,980.00 to perform the construction materials 

testing and observations outlined in the Cost Estimate Breakdown portion of 

Proposal PND21-022-00 Attachment II. 

B.   The terms of payment are set forth in Article 4 of the Agreement and in the applicable 

governing provisions of Exhibit C. 

B.   The terms of payment are set forth in Article 4 of the Agreement and in the applicable 

governing provisions of Exhibit C. 

6. Attachments: 

EXHIBIT A: Proposal Number PND21-022-00 

7. Terms and Conditions  

Execution of this Task Order by Owner and Engineer shall make it subject to the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement (as modified above), which Agreement is incorporated by this reference. Engineer is authorized 

to begin performance upon its receipt of a copy of this Task Order signed by Owner. 

 

The Effective Date of this Task Order is to be determined.  



 

 

Task Order Form 

EJCDC® E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  

Page 3 

 

OWNER:  ENGINEER: 

   

By:   By:  

   

   

Print Name:   Print Name: T. Ian Perez, P.E. 

   

   

Title:   Title: Associate 

   

    

    

 

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER: 

  

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE FOR TASK ORDER:   

   

   

Name:   Name:  

   

   

Title:   Title:  

   

   

Address:   Address:  

   

   

E-Mail 

Address: 

  E-Mail 

Address: 

 

   

   

Phone:   Phone:  



 

 

Exhibit  K – Amendment to Task Order  

EJCDC®  E-505, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services – Task Order Edition. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.  

Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of 6 pages, referred to in 

and part of the Task Order date to be determined 

 

Engineer's Services for Task Order 
 

 

Proposal No.: PND21-022-00 attached. 



Proposal No. PND21-022-00   

September 14, 2021 

 

W:\Active Proposals\New Braunfels\PND21-022-00 WHC WW Construction\PND21-022-00 Proposal.docx 

 

 

Ms. Kathryn J. Woodlee, PE, CFM 

City of Schertz 

10 Commercial Place, Building 2 

Schertz, TX  78154 

 

RE: Construction Materials Observation and Testing Services 

 Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Trunk Main, Lift Station, and Force Main 

Schertz, Texas 

 

Dear Ms. Woodlee: 

 
Thank you for selecting Raba Kistner, Inc. (RKI) as your Construction Materials Testing Company on the 

above referenced project.   
 

Our opinion of probable cost of services for this project is $79,980.00. 

 

As part of our estimate, we assumed the following observations items which constitute a majority of the 

fee associated with the soils portion of our proposal: 

 

• 15 weeks of 10-hour full time observations for the 30 in. wastewater line; 

• 3 weeks of 10-hour full time observations for the 18 in. wastewater line; and 

• 5 weeks of 10-hour full time observations for the 14 in. force main.   

 

Our proposed scope of services and estimated item quantities are based upon our interpretation of the 

project plans and specifications, and are without the aide of the general contractor’s schedule.  The scope 

and quantity of services provided will be dependent upon services actually required by you or your 

representatives.  Charges will be assessed only for actual services rendered.  All services authorized are 

requested by you or your representatives in excess of the quantities of observation and testing services 

shown herein will be charged at the appropriate unit rate for such services.  Charges will be invoiced on a 

monthly basis and will show a summary total of services rendered for each service category. 

 

Invoices will be submitted monthly for work in progress in our standard format.  All parties hereby agree 

that this contract upon acceptance will be performable in Bexar County, Texas.   

  

   

   
   

 

   

 

  CONSULTANTS  •  ENVIRONMENTAL  •  PROJECT MANAGEMENT  •  INFRASTRUCTURE  

 

 

211 Trade Center, Suite 300 

New Braunfels, TX 78130 

 

P  830.214.0544 

F  830.214.0627 

TBPE Firm F-3257 

 

WWW.RKCI.COM 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposal No. PND21-022-00  2 

September 14, 2021 

 

 

We appreciate the opportunity of submitting this proposal and look forward to working with you in the 

development of this project, which will be carried out in accordance with this letter and the following 

attachments: 

 

 Attachment Description 

 

  I Fee Structure and Standard Charges 

  II Fee Estimate Breakdown 

  III Report Distribution List 

 

Please return one signed copy of this letter contract to provide written authorization for our firm to 

complete work on the services outlined herein.  Our invoices are due and payable upon receipt at P.O. 

Box 971037, Dallas, Texas 75397-1037. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

RABA KISTNER, INC.  Accepted By: __________________________ 

 (Signature)  

 
 

         __________________________ 

Ian Perez, P.E. (Typed or Printed Name) 

Associate 

         __________________________ 

TIP/smb (Title) 

          

Attachments        __________________________ 

  (Date) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposal No. PND21-022-00   Attachment I 

September 14, 2021 

 

 

FEE STRUCTURE AND STANDARD CHARGES 

 

Proposed Materials and Observation Services for 

Woman Hollering Creek Wastewater Trunk Main, Lift Station, and Force Main  

Schertz, Texas 

 

Basic Charges 

 

1. A vehicle travel charge will be assessed for round trip travel from our office to the project site, 

material supplier, etc. and back to our office.  The charges for travel from our office to the project 

site and return to our office will be as follows: 

 

 Travel Time (Round Trip) ...............................................................   1.0 Hour 

 Vehicle Travel Charge ....................................................................  $30.00 /Trip 

 

2. Service charges are based on the hourly rates stated herein and will be assessed from the time 

the Engineer or Technician leaves our office until he returns from the project.  

 

3. Any engineering and/or technical services provided on Saturday and all work in excess or “normal” 

work hours, as stated herein, Monday through Friday, will be charged at an overtime rate of 1.3 

times the appropriate hourly rate. Our total cost of services is based upon the assumption most 

services will be provided during “normal” work hours. Providing an excessive amount of services 

during days and/or hours requiring overtime rates may significantly increase the total cost of 

services shown herein.  

 

4. “Normal” work hours are between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., including travel time to and from the 

site unless stated otherwise. Overtime charges will be assessed after eight (8) continuous hours 

of services rendered during “normal” work hours.  

 

5. Minimum 2.0 hours billing per visit to project site.  

 

6. Raba Kistner will utilize the on-site initial field curing facilities provided by the contractor. The cost 

of providing and maintaining these initial curing facilities is not included in our proposal. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PND21-022-00

September 14, 2021

Attachment II

COST ESTIMATE BREAKDOWN PND21-022-00 Date: September 14, 2021

Project Name: Woman Hollering Creek WW Construction

Project Location:

Contact Name:

Client: City of Schertz

Address: 10 Commercial Place, Building 2

City/State /Zip

Phone Number:

E-Mail:

TESTING/OBSERVATION ITEM UNIT COST UNIT ESTIMATED COST

QUANTITY EXTENSION

SOILS

Laboratory Testing

Preparation Time $53.00 hr 4 $212.00

Moisture Density Relationship, TxDOT or ASTM $260.00 each 4 $1,040.00

Lime Series Curve $491.00 each 0 $0.00

Atterberg Limits $83.00 each 4 $332.00

Sieve Analysis $83.00 each 4 $332.00

Field Testing/Observation

In-Place Nuclear Densities $26.00 trip 127 $3,302.00

Field Gradations $83.00 0 $0.00

Materials Technician $48.00 hour 949 $45,552.00

Materials Technician (overtime) $62.40 hour 230 $14,352.00

Vehicle Travel Charge $30.00 trip 127 $3,810.00

Subtotal $68,932.00

REINFORCING STEEL OBSERVATIONS

Field Observation/Testing

Materials Technician $48.00 hour 20 $960.00

Vehicle Travel Charge $30.00 trip 8 $240.00

Subtotal $1,200.00

CONCRETE

Laboratory Testing

Concrete Compressive Strength Cylinders $19.00 each 60 $1,140.00

Field Testing/Observation

Materials Technician $48.00 hour 68 $3,264.00

Materials Technician (overtime) $62.40 hour 0 $0.00

Vehicle Travel Charge $30.00 trip 20 $600.00

Subtotal $5,004.00

PIER OBSERVATIONS (Assumed a pier construction production rate of an average of about 6 piers/day) 

Laboratory Testing

Concrete Compressive Strength Cylinders $19.00 each 5 $95.00

Field Testing/Observation

Materials Technician $48.00 hour 10 $480.00

Materials Technician (overtime) $62.40 hour 0 $0.00

Geotechnical Engineer $179.00 hour $0.00

Vehicle Travel Charge $30.00 trip 2 $60.00

Subtotal $635.00

ASPHALT

Laboratory Testing

Bag Sample (Extraction, Gradation, A/C content, $437.00 each 1 $437.00

Molding Specimens, Laboratory Density of Molded

Specimens, Stability Test, Hveem, Maximum

Theoretical Specific Gravity)

Density of Asphalt Cores $104.00 each 2 $208.00

Field Testing/Observation

Materials Technician $48.00 hour 8 $384.00

Vehicle Travel Charge $30.00 trip 1 $30.00

Subtotal $1,059.00

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

Project Coordinator $68.00 hour 20 $1,360.00

Project Engineer $179.00 hour 10 $1,790.00

Subtotal $3,150.00

$79,980.00GRAND TOTAL

Schertz, TX 78154

Kathryn J. Woodlee, PE, CFM

Schertz, TX 78154

210-619-1823

kwoodlee@schertz.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposal No. PND21-022-00  Attachment III 

September 14, 2021   

 

REPORT DISTRIBUTION LIST 

 

Project Name:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Client Project No.:  __________________________   Purchase Order No.:  ________________________ 

 

Invoicing Information:   Company Name: ______________________________________________ 

 

  Address: ______________________________________________ 

 

   ______________________________________________ 

 

  Attention: ______________________________________________ 
 

Please provide required report distribution (hard copies can be provided upon request): 

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

  

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

Contact:  Company:  

Phone No.:  Email:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda No. 9.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Public Works
Subject: Ordinance No. 21-T-46 - Consideration and/or action approving an Ordinance by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing an adjustment to the fiscal
year 2021-2022 budget to provide funding for an agreement with M&S
Engineering for Design, Bid, and Construction Phase professional services for the
Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project and authorizing the execution of the
agreement, repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this
ordinance; and providing an effective date.  (First Reading) (C. Kelm/S. Williams/S.
McClelland)

BACKGROUND
The Schertz Civic Center has been providing outstanding rental space for the community since 2006.
Recently, the HVAC system in the facility has begun to experience performance and reliability issues.
In addition to having the City's on-staff HVAC Technician diagnose the ongoing issues, the City also
entered into a task order with M&S Engineering (one of the City's on-call engineering firms) to do a full
assessment of the facility's HVAC system and to make recommendations on how the City should move
forward with resolving the deficiencies discovered. 

The major factors found to be contributing to the performance and reliability issues within the system
were the age of the system and excessive outdoor air within the system. The existing units in the facility
are split systems which usually have an industry standard life expectancy of 15 years, which matches
the current age of the units. While units can operate beyond their life expectancy, the units at the Civic
Center use outdated refrigerant (R-22), which has been phased out by the industry making repairs and
replacement parts hard to find and expensive. The original system relied on a demand controlled air
damper system to balance the outdoor air being supplied to the units. This system was disabled several
years ago by former staff and cannot be easily put back in to service. Without the demand controlled
damper system active, the system is experiencing high amounts of outdoor air which exceeds the design
parameters of the system. When weighing the deficiencies and age of the current HVAC system, M&S
Engineering recommended that the current HVAC system be replaced with a new system. City Staff
agrees with the recommendation provided by M&S Engineering. 

The new system being proposed for the Civic Center is a system that is more conventional for a facility
of this size. New package units will be installed on-grade on the exterior of the building. The variable
air volume (VAV) units will be distributed to each zone within the facility by VAV terminal units. A
large portion of the existing duct work will be able to remain in place allowing for less disruption
within the facility during construction. 

M&S Engineering has submitted a proposal for design, bid, and construction phase professional services
for the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project, which is detailed in Exhibit A. The proposal has a
not-to-exceed value of $85,000, but staff is requesting approval not-to-exceed $93,500 to accommodate
any small changes in scope that arise during the project. This ordinance allocates funds from the Hotel
Occupancy Tax reserves in order to complete the professional services portion of the project.



GOAL 
The goal of this ordinance is to amend the fiscal year 2021-2022 budget to provide funding for the
design, bid, and construction phase services for the replacement of the HVAC system at the Civic
Center by M&S Engineering and to authorize the execution of the agreement with M&S Engineering.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
Replacing the existing HVAC system will allow the Civic Center to continue to provide high-end event
rental space to the community. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Ordinance 21-T-46 on first reading authorizing the
budget adjustment and authorizing the City Manager to enter into a task order agreement with M&S
Engineering in an amount not to exceed $93,500.00 for Design, Bid, and Construction Phase services
for the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project.

FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the design and future construction of the project will be paid for using Hotel Occupancy
Tax Funds which are permitted to be used on Capital Improvements at the Civic Center. As of
September 30, 2021, the balance in the Hotel Occupancy Tax reserves is $2,246,341.96. After
the funding for the professional services contract the balance will be $2,152,841.96. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Ordinance 21-T-46 on first reading authorizing the
budget adjustment and authorizing the City Manager to enter into a task order agreement with M&S
Engineering in an amount not to exceed $93,500.00 for Design, Bid, and Construction Phase services
for the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project.

Attachments
21-T-46 
Exhibit A 



50234811.1

ORDINANCE NO. 21-T-46

A ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 
2021-2022 BUDGET TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR AN AGREEMENT 
WITH M&S ENGINEERING FOR DESIGN, BID, AND CONSTRUCTION 
PHASE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CIVIC CENTER HVAC 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF THE AGREEMENT, REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 21-T-38, the City Council of Schertz, Texas, (the 
“City”) adopted the budget for the City for the fiscal year 2021-2022 (the “Budget”), which 
provides funding for the City’s operations throughout the 2021-2022 fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City needs to authorize a budget amount of $93,500 for the purpose of 
contracting professional services related to the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project; and

WHEREAS, City Staff recommends that the City Council of the City adjust the Budget 
and approve the ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the City to adjust the Budget and approve the budget transfer for the Civic Center HVAC 
Replacement Project, as more fully set forth in this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City has identified a need to replace the existing HVAC system at the 
Civic Center; and 

WHEREAS, the replacement of the HVAC system requires an engineered design; and

WHEREAS, the City has Hotel Occupancy Tax Funds available to be used on Capital 
Projects at the Civic Center; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 252.022(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code, the 
City is not required to seek bids or proposals with respect to a procurement for personal, 
professional, or planning purposes; and

WHEREAS, M&S Engineering is an approved On-Call Engineering Service for the City 
of Schertz ; and

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City shall transfer a budget of $93,500 from the Hotel Occupancy Tax 
Fund to the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project.



50234811.1

Section 2. The City Council hereby authorizes a task order agreement with M&S 
Engineering, in a total project amount not to exceed $93,500 for design, bid, and construction 
phase engineering services for the Civic Center HVAC Replacement Project.

Section 3. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 4. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 5. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision.

Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 8. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 12th day of October, 2021.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

(CITY SEAL)

















Agenda No. 10.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Finance
Subject: Ordinance No. 21-B-45 - Consideration and approval of an Ordinance by the City

Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the issuance of “City of Schertz,
Texas General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, Series 2021”, levying an annual
ad valorem tax, within the limitations prescribed by law, for the payment of the
bonds; and other matters incident and related thereto, and providing an effective
date.  (First and final reading) (M. Browne/J. Walters/M. McLiney)

BACKGROUND
The City has two outstanding Bonds ($4,435,000 of the GO Bond Series 2012 and $2,120,000 CO’s
Series 2013) that will become callable on February 1, 2022.   As in the past, when the City has callable
bonds that can be refunded for interest rate savings, the City has replaced the bonds with higher interest
rates with lower interest rate bonds. In this instance we expect the savings will be approximately
$475,000.   Savings generated from the refunding will benefit both the I&S Fund and the Utility Fund
since the GO Bonds, Series 2012 are paid from Taxes and the CO’s Series 2013 are paid from the
Utility System.
 

GOAL 
To refinance existing city debt to gain annual interest savings.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The lower the annual debt payments are, the lower the required tax rate or the higher bonding capacity
available for new projects and maintenance. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends authorizing City Staff and Consultants to accept the low bid as presented and lock in
interest rates that generate the savings as described by SAMCO Capital in their presentation to be made
at the October 12, 2021 regular meeting of the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT 
The City can expect to save roughly $47,000 per year (net of all costs) for 11 years at today’s interest
rates. Total Savings are estimated in excess of $475,000.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 21-B-45 on first and final reading with the following motion:

I MOVE TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF "CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021"

Attachments



Ordinance 21-B-45 



82643060.3  1 

DRAFT 

ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF “CITY OF SCHERTZ, 
TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021”; 
LEVYING AN ANNUAL AD VALOREM TAX, WITHIN THE 
LIMITATIONS PRESCRIBED BY LAW, FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE 
BONDS; PRESCRIBING THE FORM, TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND 
RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS INCIDENT AND RELATED TO THE 
ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS, INCLUDING THE 
APPROVAL AND DISTRIBUTION OF AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
PERTAINING THERETO; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, AN OFFICIAL BID 
FORM, AND AN ESCROW DEPOSIT LETTER; COMPLYING WITH THE 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS ON FILE WITH THE DEPOSITORY 
TRUST COMPANY; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF ANY 
NECESSARY ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY’S 
FINANCIAL ADVISORS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the City Council) of the City of Schertz, Texas (the City) 
has heretofore issued, sold, and delivered, and there are currently outstanding obligations in the 
aggregate original principal amount of $6,465,000, being the obligations set forth on Schedule I 
hereto which is incorporated by reference for all purposes to this ordinance (the Refunded 
Obligations); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council intends to issue an aggregate principal amount of $_____ in 
general obligation refunding bonds the proceeds of which will be utilized to provide for the 
(i) discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of 
issuance of the general obligation refunding bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas Government 
Code (the Act), the City Council is authorized to issue refunding bonds and deposit the proceeds 
of sale under an escrow agreement to provide for the payment of the Refunded Obligations, and 
such deposit, when made in accordance with the Act, shall constitute the making of firm banking 
and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the Refunded Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Act permits that the deposit of the proceeds from the sale of the refunding 
bonds be deposited directly with any designated escrow agent which is not the depository bank of 
the City; and 

WHEREAS, when firm banking arrangements have been made for the payment of principal 
of and interest to the stated maturity or redemption dates of the Refunded Obligations, then the 
Refunded Obligations shall no longer be regarded as outstanding except for the purpose of 
receiving payment from the funds provided for such purpose and may not be included in or 



82643060.3  2 

considered to be an indebtedness of the City for the purpose of a limitation on outstanding 
indebtedness or taxation or for any other purpose; and 

WHEREAS, BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas, currently serves as the paying agent for the 
Refunded Obligations; and 

WHEREAS, UMB Bank, N.A., Austin, Texas, which is not a depository bank of the City, 
is hereby appointed as the Escrow Agent (hereinafter defined) and Paying Agent/Registrar 
(hereinafter defined) for the general obligation refunding bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council also hereby finds and determines that the Refunded 
Obligations are scheduled to mature or are subject to being redeemed, not more than twenty (20) 
years from the date of the general obligation refunding bonds herein authorized and being issued 
to realize debt service savings, and such refunding will result in a net present value savings of 
$_____ and a gross savings of $ _____, taking into account the City’s cash contribution of $ _____; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the general 
obligation refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding the Refunded Obligations is in the best 
interests of the residents of the City, now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT: 

SECTION 1. Authorization - Designation - Principal Amount - Purpose.  General 
obligation refunding bonds of the City shall be and are hereby authorized to be issued in the 
aggregate principal amount _____AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($_____), to be designated and bear 
the title of “CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021” (the Bonds), for the purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final 
payment of the Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, all in 
conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, this ordinance adopted by the City Council on October 12, 2021, and the City’s 
Home Rule Charter. 

SECTION 2. Fully Registered Obligations - Authorized Denominations - Stated 
Maturities - Interest Rates – Dated Date.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered obligations, 
without coupons, shall be dated November 1, 2021 (the Dated Date), and shall be in denominations 
of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and the Bonds shall be lettered “R” and numbered 
consecutively from One (1) upward, and principal shall become due and payable on February 1 in 
each of the years and in principal amounts (the Stated Maturities) and bear interest on the unpaid 
principal amounts from the Dated Date (hereinafter defined) or from the most recent Interest 
Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, to Stated 
Maturity, at the per annum rates, while Outstanding (hereinafter defined), in accordance with the 
following schedule: 



82643060.3  3 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

2023   

2024   

2025   

2026   

2027   

2028   

2029   

2030   

2031   

2032   

2033   
 

The Bonds shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the Dated Date, or 
from the most recent Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid 
or duly provided for to Stated Maturity or prior redemption, while Outstanding, at the rates per 
annum shown in the above schedule (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 
months).  Interest on the Bonds shall be payable on February 1 and August 1 (each, an Interest 
Payment Date) of each year, commencing August 1, 2022, while the Bonds are Outstanding. 

SECTION 3. Payment of Bonds - Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The principal of, premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason 
of Stated Maturity, redemption, or otherwise, shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United 
States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and 
private debts, and such payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall 
be without exchange or collection charges to the Holder (as hereinafter defined) of the Bonds. 

The selection and appointment of UMB Bank, N.A., Austin, Texas (the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), to serve as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is hereby approved 
and confirmed, and the City agrees and covenants to cause to be kept and maintained at the 
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar books and records (the Security Register) for 
the registration, payment, and transfer of the Bonds, all as provided herein, in accordance with the 
terms and provisions of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, attached, in substantially final form, 
as Exhibit A hereto, and such reasonable rules and regulations as the Paying Agent/Registrar and 
the City may prescribe.  The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying Agent/Registrar at 
all times while the Bonds are Outstanding, and any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shall be (i) a 
national or state banking institution or (ii) an association or a corporation organized and doing 
business under the laws of the United States of America or of any state, authorized under such 
laws to exercise trust powers.  Such Paying Agent/Registrar shall be subject to supervision or 
examination by federal or state authority and authorized by law to serve as a Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 



82643060.3  4 

The City reserves the right to appoint a successor Paying Agent/Registrar upon providing 
the previous Paying Agent/Registrar with a certified copy of a resolution or ordinance terminating 
such agency.  Additionally, the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice of this substitution 
to be sent to each Holder of the Bonds by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which 
notice shall also give the address of the corporate office of the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of 
Stated Maturity, redemption, or otherwise, shall be payable only to the registered owner of the 
Bonds appearing on the Security Register (the Holder or Holders) maintained on behalf of the City 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar as hereinafter provided (i) on the Record Date (hereinafter defined) 
for purposes of payment of interest on the Bonds, (ii) on the date of surrender of the Bonds for 
purposes of receiving payment of principal thereof upon redemption of the Bonds or at the Bonds’ 
Stated Maturity, and (iii) on any other date for any other purpose.  The City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder as the owner of a Bond for purposes 
of receiving payment and all other purposes whatsoever, and neither the City nor the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by notice to the contrary. 

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable only upon presentation 
and surrender of the Bonds to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate trust office.  Interest on 
the Bonds shall be paid to the Holder whose name appears in the Security Register at the close of 
business on the fifteenth day of the month next preceding an Interest Payment Date for the Bonds 
(the Record Date) and shall be paid (i) by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar, to the address of 
the Holder appearing in the Security Register or (ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, requested in writing by the Holder at the Holder’s risk and expense. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds 
shall be a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city 
where the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is 
not such a day.  The payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the 
original date any such payment on the Bonds was due. 

In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for thirty (30) 
days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a Special Record Date) will be 
established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 
been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment 
date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be fifteen (15) days after the 
Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder of a Bond 
appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding 
the date of mailing of such notice. 

SECTION 4. Redemption.   

A. Mandatory Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds stated to mature on February 1, 20__ 
are referred to herein as the “Term Bonds”.  The Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking 



82643060.3  5 

fund redemption prior to their stated maturities from money required to be deposited in the Bond 
Fund for such purpose and shall be redeemed in part, by lot or other customary method, at the 
principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption in the following principal 
amounts on February 1 in each of the years as set forth below: 

Term Bonds 
Stated to Mature 
February 1, 20__ 

Year 

 
Principal 
Amount ($) 

20__  
20__  
20__  

20__*  
*Payable at Stated Maturity. 

 
 The principal amount of a Term Bond required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation 
of such mandatory redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the Issuer, by the 
principal amount of any Term Bonds of such Stated Maturity which, at least fifty (50) days prior 
to the mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been defeased or acquired by the Issuer and 
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been purchased and 
canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the Issuer with money in the Bond Fund. 
 

B. Optional Redemption of Bonds.  The Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after 
February 1, 20__ shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the Issuer, 
on February 1, 20__, or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part, in principal amounts of $5,000 
or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

C. Exercise of Redemption Option.  At least forty-five (45) days prior to a date set for 
the redemption of the Bonds (unless a shorter notification period shall be satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar), the Issuer shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of its decision to exercise the 
right to redeem the Bonds, the principal amount of each Stated Maturity to be redeemed, and the 
date set for the redemption thereof.  The decision of the Issuer to exercise the right to redeem the 
Bonds shall be entered in the minutes of the governing body of the Issuer. 

D. Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  If less than all Outstanding Bonds of the same 
Stated Maturity are to be redeemed on a redemption date, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select 
at random and by lot the Bonds to be redeemed, provided that if less than the entire principal 
amount of a Bond is to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat such Bond then subject 
to redemption as representing the number of Bonds Outstanding which is obtained by dividing the 
principal amount of such Bond by $5,000. 

E. Notice of Redemption.  Not less than thirty (30) days prior to a redemption date for 
the Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause a notice of redemption to be sent by United 



82643060.3  6 

States mail, first-class postage prepaid, in the name of the Issuer and at the Issuer’s expense, by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Holder of a Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part at the 
address of the Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the business 
day next preceding the date of mailing such notice, and any notice of redemption so mailed shall 
be conclusively presumed to have been duly given irrespective of whether received by the Holder.  
This notice may also be published once in a financial publication, journal, or reporter of general 
circulation among securities dealers in the City of New York, New York (including, but not limited 
to, The Bond Buyer and The Wall Street Journal), or in the State of Texas (including, but not 
limited to, The Texas Bond Reporter). 

All notices of redemption shall (i) specify the date of redemption for the Bonds, (ii) identify 
the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of a portion of the principal amount to be redeemed, the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, (iii) state the redemption price, (iv) state that the Bonds, 
or the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, shall become due and payable on 
the redemption date specified, and the interest thereon, or on the portion of the principal amount 
thereof to be redeemed, shall cease to accrue from and after the redemption date, and (v) specify 
that payment of the redemption price for the Bonds, or the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed, shall be made at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upon 
presentation and surrender thereof by the Holder. 

If a Bond is subject by its terms to redemption and has been called for redemption and 
notice of redemption thereof has been duly given or waived as herein provided, such Bond (or the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed) so called for redemption shall become due and payable, 
and if money sufficient for the payment of such Bonds (or of the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed) at the then applicable redemption price is held for the purpose of such payment by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, then on the redemption date designated in such notice, interest on the 
Bonds (or the principal amount thereof to be redeemed) called for redemption shall cease to accrue, 
and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding in accordance with the provisions of this 
Ordinance.  

F. Transfer/Exchange of Bonds.  Neither the Issuer nor the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall be required (1) to transfer or exchange any Bond during a period beginning forty-five (45) 
days prior to the date fixed for redemption of the Bonds or (2) to transfer or exchange any Bond 
selected for redemption, provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to 
an exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance of a Bond which is subject to redemption 
in part. 

SECTION 5. Execution - Registration.  The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the City 
by its Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem under the seal of the City reproduced or impressed thereon and 
attested by its City Secretary.  The signature of any of said officers on the Bonds may be manual 
or facsimile.  Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of individuals who were, at the 
time of the Dated Date, the proper officers of the City shall bind the City, notwithstanding that 
such individuals or either of them shall cease to hold such offices prior to the delivery of the Bonds 
to the Purchasers (hereinafter defined), all as authorized and provided in Chapter 1201, as 
amended, Texas Government Code. 



82643060.3  7 

No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance, or be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond either a certificate of registration 
substantially in the form provided in Section 8C, executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts 
of the State of Texas or his duly authorized agent by manual signature, or a certificate of 
registration substantially in the form provided in Section 8D, executed by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by manual signature, and either such certificate upon any Bond shall be conclusive 
evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been duly certified or registered and delivered. 

SECTION 6. Registration - Transfer - Exchange of Bonds - Predecessor Bonds.  A 
Security Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer, or exchange of the Bonds shall at 
all times be kept and maintained by the City at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security 
Register the name and address of every owner of the Bonds, or, if appropriate, the nominee thereof.  
Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms and the terms hereof, be transferred or exchanged for 
Bonds of other authorized denominations upon the Security Register by the Holder, in person or 
by his duly authorized agent, upon surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 
cancellation, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly 
executed by the Holder or by his duly authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, the City shall execute and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, 
in the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more new Bonds of authorized 
denomination and having the same Stated Maturity and of a like interest rate and aggregate 
principal amount as the Bond or Bonds surrendered for transfer. 

At the option of the Holder, Bonds may be exchanged for other Bonds of authorized 
denominations and having the same Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of like 
aggregate principal amount as the Bonds surrendered for exchange upon surrender of the Bonds 
to be exchanged at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar.  Whenever any Bonds 
are so surrendered for exchange, the City shall execute, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
register and deliver, the Bonds to the Holder requesting the exchange. 

All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be delivered at the corporate 
trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or be sent by United States registered mail to the Holder 
at his request, risk, and expense, and upon the delivery thereof, the same shall be the valid and 
binding obligations of the City, evidencing the same obligation to pay, and entitled to the same 
benefits under this Ordinance, as the Bonds surrendered upon such transfer or exchange. 

All transfers or exchanges of Bonds pursuant to this Section shall be made without expense 
or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any 
fee, tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such transfer or 
exchange. 

Bonds canceled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions hereof are 
hereby defined to be Predecessor Bonds, evidencing all or a portion, as the case may be, of the 



82643060.3  8 

same debt evidenced by the new Bond or Bonds registered and delivered in the exchange or 
transfer therefor.  Additionally, the term Predecessor Bonds shall include any Bond registered and 
delivered pursuant to Section 17 in lieu of a mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond which shall 
be deemed to evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond. 

SECTION 7. Initial Bond.  The Bonds herein authorized shall be initially issued as either 
(i) a single fully registered Bond in the aggregate principal amount of $_____ with principal 
installments to become due and payable as provided in Section 2 hereof and numbered T-1, or 
(ii) as one (1) fully registered Bond for each year of Stated Maturity in the applicable principal 
amount and denomination and to be numbered consecutively from T-1 and upward (the Initial 
Bond), and the Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchasers or the designee 
thereof.  The Initial Bond shall be the Bonds submitted to the Office of the Attorney General of 
the State of Texas for approval, certified and registered by the Office of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas and delivered to the Purchasers.  Any time after the delivery of the 
Initial Bond, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to written instructions from the Purchasers, or 
the designee thereof, shall cancel the Initial Bond delivered hereunder and exchange therefor 
definitive Bonds of like kind and of authorized denominations, Stated Maturities, principal 
amounts bearing applicable interest rates, and shall be lettered “R” and numbered consecutively 
from one (1) upward for transfer and delivery to the Holders named at the addresses identified 
therefor; all pursuant to and in accordance with such written instructions from the Purchasers, or 
the designee thereof, and such other information and documentation as the Paying Agent/Registrar 
may reasonably require. 

SECTION 8. Forms. 

A. Forms Generally.  The Bonds, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Registration Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar, and 
the form of Assignment to be printed on each of the Bonds shall be substantially in the forms set 
forth in this Section with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations 
as are permitted or required by this Ordinance and may have such letters, numbers, or other marks 
of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform 
Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) and such legends and 
endorsements (including insurance legends in the event the Bonds, or any Stated Maturities 
thereof, are insured, and any reproduction of an opinion of Bond Counsel (hereinafter referenced)) 
thereon as may, consistent herewith, be established by the City or determined by the officers 
executing the Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof.  Any portion of the text of any Bond 
may be set forth on the reverse thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the 
Bond. 

The definitive Bonds shall be printed, lithographed, or engraved, produced by any 
combination of these methods, or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the 
officers executing the Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof, but the Initial Bond 
submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be typewritten or photocopied or 
otherwise reproduced. 



82643060.3  9 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82643060.3  10 

B. Form of Definitive Bond. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO. _______ PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
 $_____________ 

United States of America 
State of Texas 

Counties of Guadalupe, Comal, and Bexar 
CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2021 

Dated Date: Interest Rate: Stated Maturity: CUSIP NO: 

November 1, 2021    

REGISTERED OWNER: _________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:____________________________________ AND NO/100 DOLLARS 

The City of Schertz, Texas (the City), a body corporate and a municipal corporation in the 
Counties of Guadalupe, Comal, and Bexar, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself 
indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner specified above, or 
the registered assigns thereof, on the Stated Maturity date specified above, the Principal Amount 
specified above (or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay 
interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date or from the most recent 
Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, 
until such Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been made or duly provided 
for, to the earlier of redemption or Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rate of 
interest specified above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such 
interest being payable on February 1 and August 1 (each, an Interest Payment Date) of each year, 
commencing August 1, 2022. 

Principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner 
hereof (the Holder), upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar executing the registration certificate appearing hereon or a successor thereof.  
Interest shall be payable to the Holder of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds, as defined 
in the Ordinance hereinafter referenced) whose name appears on the Security Register maintained 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the fifteenth 
day of the month next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of 
America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  
Interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate 
date of payment by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the 
address appearing in the Security Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, requested by the Holder hereof at the Holder’s risk and expense. 



82643060.3  11 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 
of $_____ (the Bonds) pursuant to an ordinance adopted by the governing body of the City (the 
Ordinance), for the purpose of providing funds for the (i) discharge and final payment of the 
Refunded Obligations and (ii) payment of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, under and in strict 
conformity with the laws of the State of Texas, including Chapter 1207, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, and the City’s Home Rule Charter. 

The Bonds stated to mature on February 1, 20__ are referred to herein as the “Term Bonds”.  
The Term Bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their stated maturities 
from money required to be deposited in the Bond Fund for such purpose and shall be redeemed in 
part, by lot or other customary method, at the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption in the following principal amounts on February 1 in each of the years as set 
forth below: 

Term Bonds 
Stated to Mature 
February 1, 20__ 

Year 

 
Principal 
Amount ($) 

20__  
20__  
20__  

20__*  
*Payable at Stated Maturity. 

 
 The principal amount of a Term Bond required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation 
of such mandatory redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the Issuer, by the 
principal amount of any Term Bonds of such Stated Maturity which, at least fifty (50) days prior 
to the mandatory redemption date (1) shall have been defeased or acquired by the Issuer and 
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been purchased and 
canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the Issuer with money in the Bond Fund. 

 

 

As specified in the Ordinance, the Bonds having Stated Maturities on and after February 1, 
20__ shall be subject to redemption prior to Stated Maturity, at the option of the City, on 
February 1, 20__, or on any date thereafter, in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000 or 
any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity selected at random and by lot by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar) at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption, and upon thirty (30) days prior written notice being given by United States mail, first-
class postage prepaid, to Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, and subject to the terms and 
provisions relating thereto contained in the Ordinance.  If this Bond is subject to redemption prior 
to Stated Maturity and is in a denomination in excess of  $5,000, portions of the principal sum 
hereof in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof may be redeemed, and, if less than 
all of the principal sum hereof is to be redeemed, there shall be issued, without charge therefor, to 



82643060.3  12 

the Holder hereof, upon the surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar at its corporate 
trust office, a new Bond or Bonds of like Stated Maturity and interest rate in any authorized 
denominations provided in the Ordinance for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum 
hereof. 

If this Bond (or any portion of the principal sum hereof) shall have been duly called for 
redemption and notice of such redemption has been duly given, then upon such redemption date 
this Bond (or the portion of the principal sum hereof to be redeemed) shall become due and 
payable, and, if money for the payment of the redemption price and the interest accrued on the 
principal amount to be redeemed to the date of redemption is held for the purpose of such payment 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest shall cease to accrue and be payable hereon from and after 
the redemption date on the principal amount hereof to be redeemed.  If this Bond is called for 
redemption, in whole or in part, the Issuer or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to 
issue, transfer, or exchange this Bond within forty-five (45) days of the date fixed for redemption; 
provided, however, such limitation of transfer shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder 
of the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

The Bonds of this series are payable from the proceeds of an annual ad valorem tax levied 
upon all taxable property within the City within the limitations prescribed by law. 

Reference is hereby made to the Ordinance, a copy of which is on file in the corporate trust 
office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the Holder by his 
acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the nature and 
extent of the tax levied for the payment of the Bonds; the terms and conditions relating to the 
transfer or exchange of the Bonds; the conditions upon which the Ordinance may be amended or 
supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the rights, duties, and obligations of the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and provisions upon which this Bond may be 
redeemed or discharged at or prior to the Stated Maturity thereof, and deemed to be no longer 
Outstanding thereunder; and for the other terms and provisions specified in the Ordinance.  
Capitalized terms used herein have the same meanings assigned in the Ordinance. 

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Ordinance, may be transferred on 
the Security Register upon presentation and surrender at the corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar duly executed by the Holder hereof, or his duly 
authorized agent, and thereupon one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same Stated 
Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same aggregate 
principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, shall treat the Holder 
hereof whose name appears on the Security Register  (i) on the Record Date as the owner hereof 
for purposes of receiving payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as 
the owner hereof for purposes of receiving payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its 
redemption, in whole or in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner hereof for all other 
purposes, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any such agent of either, shall be 
affected by notice to the contrary.  In the event of a non-payment of interest on a scheduled 
payment date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a 



82643060.3  13 

Special Record Date) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the 
payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and 
of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the Special Payment Date - which shall be 
fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior 
to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each 
Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close of business on the last business day next 
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, covenanted, and represented that all acts, conditions, and things 
required to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond in order 
to render the same a legal, valid, and binding obligation of the City have been performed, exist, 
and have been done, in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by the laws of the 
State of Texas and the Ordinance, and that the issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any 
constitutional or statutory limitation; and that due provision has been made for the payment of the 
principal of, premium if any, and interest on the Bonds by the levy of a tax as aforestated.  In case 
any provision in this Bond or any application thereof shall be deemed invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions and 
applications shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.  The terms and provisions of 
this Bond and the Ordinance shall be construed in accordance with and shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82643060.3  14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be duly executed under its 
official seal. 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
  Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  City Secretary 

 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
  



82643060.3  15 

C. *Form of Registration Certificate of Comptroller of Public Accounts to Appear on 
Initial Bond Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

§
§
§
§ 

 
 
REGISTER NO.    

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

WITNESS my signature and seal of office this      . 

____________________________________ 
Comptroller of Public Accounts 

of the State of Texas 

(SEAL) 

* Note to Printer:  Do Not Print on Definitive Bonds 

D. *Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar to Appear on Definitive Bonds 
Only. 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

This Bond has been duly issued under the provisions of the within-mentioned Ordinance; 
the Bond or Bonds of the above-entitled and designated series originally delivered having been 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts, as shown by the records of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Registered this date: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________  

UMB BANK, N.A., Austin, Texas, as Paying 
Agent/Registrar 
 
 
By:  _______________________________  

Authorized Signature 

 
* Note to Printer:  Print on Definitive Bonds 
  



82643060.3  16 

E. Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto  (Print 
or typewrite name, address, and zip code of transferee): _________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other identifying number):  ________________________________________ 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
____________________attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

DATED: ____________________________ 

________________________________________________ 
NOTICE:  The signature on this assignment must correspond 
with the name of the registered owner as it appears on the 
face of the within Bond in every particular. 

Signature guaranteed: 
 
 
____________________________________ 

F. Form of Initial Bond. The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in paragraph B 
of this Section, except that the form of a single fully registered Initial Bond shall be modified as 
follows: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond the headings “Interest Rate” and 
“Stated Maturity” shall both be completed “as shown below”; 

(ii) the first two paragraphs shall read as follows: 

REGISTERED OWNER: _________________________________________________________ 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:____________________________________ AND NO/100 DOLLARS 

The City of Schertz, Texas (the City), a body corporate and municipal corporation in the 
Counties of Guadalupe, Comal, and Bexar, State of Texas, for value received, acknowledges itself 
indebted to and hereby promises to pay to the order of the Registered Owner named above, or the 
registered assigns thereof, the Principal Amount specified above stated to mature on the first day 
of February in each of the years and in principal amounts and bearing interest at per annum rates 
in accordance with the following schedule: 



82643060.3  17 

Years of 
Stated Maturity 

Principal 
Amounts ($) 

Interest 
Rates (%) 

(Information to be inserted from 
schedule in Section 2 hereof). 

and to pay interest on the unpaid Principal Amount hereof from the Dated Date or from the most 
recent Interest Payment Date (hereinafter defined) to which interest has been paid or duly provided 
for until the Principal Amount has become due and payment thereof has been made or duly 
provided for, to Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the per annum rates of interest specified 
above computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months; such interest being 
payable on February 1 and August 1 (each, an Interest Payment Date) of each year, commencing 
August 1, 2022. 

Principal of this Bond shall be payable to the Registered Owner hereof (the Holder), upon 
its presentation and surrender to Stated Maturity, while Outstanding, at the corporate trust office 
of UMB Bank, N.A., Austin, Texas (the Paying Agent/Registrar).  Interest shall be payable to the 
Holder of this Bond whose name appears on the Security Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the Record Date, which is the last business day of the 
month next preceding each Interest Payment Date.  All payments of principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on this Bond shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America which 
at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.  Interest shall 
be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent on or prior to the appropriate date of payment 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Holder hereof at the address appearing in 
the Security Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested 
by, and at the risk and expense of, the Holder hereof. 

[END OF FORMS] 

G. Insurance Legend.  If bond insurance is obtained by the City or the Purchasers for 
the Bonds, the Definitive Bonds and the Initial Bond shall bear an appropriate legend as provided 
by the bond insurer to appear under the following header: 

[BOND INSURANCE] or [STATEMENT OF INSURANCE] 

SECTION 9. Definitions.  For all purposes of this Ordinance (as defined below), except 
as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:  (i) the terms defined in 
this Section have the meanings assigned to them in this Section, and certain terms used in 
Sections 21 and 38 of this Ordinance have the meanings assigned to them in such Sections, and all 
such terms include the plural as well as the singular; (ii) all references in this Ordinance to 
designated “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Sections and other subdivisions 
of this Ordinance as originally adopted; and (iii) the words “herein”, “hereof”, and “hereunder” 
and other words of similar import refer to this Ordinance as a whole and not to any particular 
Section or other subdivision. 

A. The term Authorized Officials shall mean the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, City 
Manager, Director of Finance, and/or City Secretary. 



82643060.3  18 

B. The term Bond Fund shall mean the special fund created and established by the 
provisions of Section 10 of this Ordinance. 

C. The term Bonds shall mean the $_____ “CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021” authorized by this Ordinance. 

D. The term City or the Issuer shall mean City of Schertz, located in the Counties of 
Guadalupe, Comal, and Bexar, Texas and, where appropriate, the City Council of the City. 

E. The term Closing Date shall mean the date of physical delivery of the Initial Bonds 
in exchange for the payment in full by the Purchasers. 

F. The term Debt Service Requirements shall mean, as of any particular date of 
computation, with respect to any obligations and with respect to any period, the aggregate of the 
amounts to be paid or set aside by the City as of such date or in such period for the payment of the 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest (to the extent not capitalized) on such obligations; 
assuming, in the case of obligations without a fixed numerical rate, that such obligations bear 
interest at the maximum rate permitted by the terms thereof and further assuming in the case of 
obligations required to be redeemed or prepaid as to principal prior to Stated Maturity, the principal 
amounts thereof will be redeemed prior to Stated Maturity in accordance with the mandatory 
redemption provisions applicable thereto. 

G. The term Depository shall mean an official depository bank of the City. 

H. The term Government Securities, as used herein, shall mean (i) direct noncallable 
obligations of the United States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by, the 
United States of America; (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or 
instrumentality and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or approves the 
proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by a 
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent; (iii) noncallable 
obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a 
state that have been refunded and that, on the date the governing body of the issuer adopts or 
approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment 
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, or 
(iv) any additional securities and obligations hereafter authorized by the laws of the State of Texas 
as eligible for use to accomplish the discharge of obligations such as the Bonds. 

I. The term Holder or Holders shall mean the registered owner, whose name appears 
in the Security Register, for any Bond. 

J. The term Interest Payment Date shall mean the date interest is payable on the 
Bonds, being February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2022, while any of 
the Bonds remain Outstanding. 

K. The term Ordinance shall mean this ordinance adopted by the City Council of the 
City on October 12, 2021. 



82643060.3  19 

L. The term Outstanding when used in this Ordinance with respect to Bonds shall 
mean, as of the date of determination, all Bonds issued and delivered under this Ordinance, except: 

(1) those Bonds canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar or delivered to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation; 

(2) those Bonds for which payment has been duly provided by the City in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 23 of this Ordinance; and 

(3) those Bonds that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen and 
replacement Bonds have been registered and delivered in lieu thereof as provided in 
Section 17 of this Ordinance. 

M. The term Purchasers shall mean the initial purchasers of the Bonds named in 
Section 18 of this Ordinance. 

N. The term Stated Maturity shall mean the annual principal payments of the Bonds 
payable on February 1 of each year the Bonds are Outstanding, as set forth in Section 2 of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 10. Bond Fund; Investments.  For the purpose of paying the interest on and to 
provide a sinking fund for the payment, redemption and retirement of the Bonds, there shall be 
and is hereby created a special fund to be designated “CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 INTEREST AND SINKING FUND” (the 
Bond Fund), which fund shall be kept and maintained at the Depository, and money deposited in 
such fund shall be used for no other purpose and shall be maintained as provided in Section 21.  
Authorized Officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to make withdrawals from the 
Bond Fund sufficient to pay the purchase price or amount of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds as the same become due and payable and shall cause to be transferred to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar from money on deposit in the Bond Fund an amount sufficient to pay the 
amount of principal and/or interest stated to mature on the Bonds, such transfer of funds to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar to be made in such manner as will cause immediately available funds to 
be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar on or before the business day next preceding each 
interest and principal payment date for the Bonds. 

Pending the transfer of funds to the Paying Agent/Registrar, money deposited in any fund 
created and established pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance, at the option of the City, may 
be placed in time deposits, certificates of deposit, guaranteed investment contracts, or similar 
contractual agreements as permitted by the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act, as 
amended, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, secured (to the extent not insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation) by obligations of the type hereinafter described, or be invested, as 
authorized by any law, including investments held in book-entry form, in securities including, but 
not limited to, direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations guaranteed or insured 
by the United States of America, which, in the opinion of the Attorney General of the United 
States, are backed by its full faith and credit or represent its general obligations, or invested in 
indirect obligations of the United States of America, including, but not limited to, evidences of 
indebtedness issued, insured or guaranteed by such governmental agencies as the Federal Land 



82643060.3  20 

Banks, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Home Loan Banks, 
Government National Mortgage Association, Farmers Home Administration, Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Association, Small Business Administration, or Federal Housing Association; provided 
that all such deposits and investments shall be made in such a manner that the money required to 
be expended from such fund will be available at the proper time or times.  All interest and income 
derived from deposits and investments in such fund shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, 
such fund.  All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in 
connection with the Bonds. 

SECTION 11. Tax Levy.  To provide for the payment of the Debt Service Requirements 
on the Bonds being (i) the interest on the Bonds and (ii) a sinking fund for their redemption at 
Stated Maturity or a sinking fund of 2% (whichever amount shall be the greater), there shall be 
and there is hereby levied for the current year and each succeeding year thereafter while the Bonds 
or any interest thereon shall remain Outstanding, a sufficient tax, within the limitations prescribed 
by law, on each one hundred dollars’ valuation of taxable property in the City, adequate to pay 
such Debt Service Requirements, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of 
collection; said tax shall be assessed and collected each year and applied to the payment of the 
Debt Service Requirements, and the same shall not be diverted to any other purpose.  The taxes so 
levied and collected shall be paid into the Bond Fund and are thereafter pledged to the payment of 
the Bonds.  The City Council hereby declares its purpose and intent to provide and levy a tax 
legally and fully sufficient to pay such Debt Service Requirements, it having been determined that 
the existing and available taxing authority of the City for such purpose is adequate to permit a 
legally sufficient tax in consideration of all other outstanding indebtedness and other obligations 
of the City. 

SECTION 12. Deposits to Bond Fund; Surplus Bond Proceeds.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees to cause to be deposited in the Bond Fund prior to a principal and interest payment date 
for the Bonds, from the annual levy of an ad valorem tax or from other lawfully available funds, 
amounts sufficient to fully pay and discharge promptly each installment of interest and principal 
of the Bonds as the same accrues or matures or comes due by reason of Stated Maturity. 

Accrued interest received from the Purchasers of the Bonds, along with any taxes collected 
pertaining to the Refunded Obligations, after the Closing Date, shall be deposited to the Bond 
Fund.  In addition, any surplus proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, including investment income 
thereon, not expended for authorized purposes shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, and such 
amounts so deposited shall reduce the sums otherwise required to be deposited in said fund from 
ad valorem taxes. 

SECTION 13. Security of Funds.  All money on deposit in the funds for which this 
Ordinance makes provision (except any portion thereof as may be at any time properly invested as 
provided herein) shall be secured in the manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of 
the State of Texas for the security of public funds, and money on deposit in such funds shall be 
used only for the purposes permitted by this Ordinance. 

SECTION 14. Remedies in Event of Default.  In addition to all the rights and remedies 
provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the City covenants and agrees particularly that in the 
event the City (a) defaults in the payments to be made to the Bond Fund or (b) defaults in the 



82643060.3  21 

observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, or obligations set forth in 
this Ordinance, the Holders of any of the Bonds shall be entitled to seek a writ of mandamus issued 
by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the governing body of the City and other 
officers of the City to observe and perform any covenant, condition, or obligation prescribed in 
this Ordinance. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair 
any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence 
therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may 
be deemed expedient.  The specific remedies herein provided shall be cumulative of all other 
existing remedies and the specification of such remedies shall not be deemed to be exclusive. 

SECTION 15. Notices to Holders; Waiver.  Wherever this Ordinance provides for notice 
to Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein expressly 
provided) if in writing and sent by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address 
of each Holder appearing in the Security Register at the close of business on the business day next 
preceding the mailing of such notice. 

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such notice 
to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the sufficiency of 
such notice with respect to all other Holders.  Where this Ordinance provides for notice in any 
manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive such notice, either 
before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given, and such waiver shall be the 
equivalent of such notice.  Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action 
taken in reliance upon such waiver. 

SECTION 16. Cancellation.  All Bonds surrendered for payment, redemption, transfer, 
exchange, or replacement, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be promptly canceled 
by it and, if surrendered to the City, shall be delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar and, if not 
already canceled, shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  The City may at any 
time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation any Bonds previously certified or 
registered and delivered which the City may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and all 
Bonds so delivered shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar.  All canceled Bonds 
held by the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be destroyed as directed by the City. 

SECTION 17. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost, and Stolen Bonds.  If (1) any mutilated Bond is 
surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, or the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar receive 
evidence to their satisfaction of the destruction, loss, or theft of any Bond, and (2) there is delivered 
to the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required to save 
each of them harmless, then, in the absence of notice to the City or the Paying Agent/Registrar that 
such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the City shall execute and, upon the City’s 
request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any 
such mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and 
interest rate and of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously 
Outstanding. 



82643060.3  22 

In case any such mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond has become or is about to 
become due and payable, the City in its discretion may, instead of issuing a new Bond, pay such 
Bond. 

Upon the issuance of any new Bond or payment in lieu thereof, under this Section, the City 
may require payment by the Holder of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental 
charge imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses and charges (including attorney’s fees 
and the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent/Registrar) connected therewith. 

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost, 
or stolen Bond shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the City, whether or not the 
mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be 
entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds. 

The provisions of this Section are exclusive and shall preclude (to the extent lawful) all 
other rights and remedies with respect to the replacement and payment of mutilated, destroyed, 
lost, or stolen Bonds. 

SECTION 18. Sale of Bonds – Authorization of Official Bid Form – Approval of the 
Official Statement – Use of Bond Proceeds.  The Bonds authorized by this Ordinance are hereby 
sold by the City to _____, _____, _____ as the authorized representative of a group of purchasers 
at a competitive sale (the Purchasers, having all the rights, benefits, and obligations of a Holder), 
in accordance with the provisions of an Official Bid Form (the Official Bid Form), dated October 
12, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference as a part of this 
Ordinance for all purposes, at the price of par, plus a reoffering premium of $ _____ (including 
the Purchasers’ compensation of $ _____), and accrued interest of $ _____and is hereby approved 
and confirmed.  The Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of _____  It is hereby officially 
found, determined, and declared that the Purchasers are the highest bidder for the Bonds whose 
bid, received as a result of invitations for competitive bids in compliance with applicable law, 
produced the lowest true interest cost to the City.  The pricing and terms of the sale of the Bonds 
are hereby found and determined to be the most advantageous reasonably obtainable by the City.  
Any Authorized Official is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Official Bid Form for 
and on behalf of the City and as the act and deed of this City Council, and in regard to the approval 
and execution of the Official Bid Form, the City Council hereby finds, determines and declares 
that the representations, warranties, and agreements of the City contained in the Official Bid Form 
are true and correct in all material respects and shall be honored and performed by the City.  
Delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers shall occur as soon as practicable after the adoption of this 
Ordinance, upon payment therefor in accordance with the terms of the Official Bid Form. 

Furthermore, the City hereby ratifies, confirms, and approves in all respects (i) the City’s 
prior determination that the Preliminary Official Statement was, as of its date, “deemed final” in 
accordance with the Rule (hereinafter defined) and (ii) the use and distribution of the Official 
Notice of Sale, Official Bid Form, and Preliminary Official Statement by the Purchasers in 
connection with the public offering and sale of the Bonds.  The final Official Statement, being a 
modification and amendment of the Preliminary Official Statement to reflect the terms of sale 
referenced in the Official Bid Form (together with such changes approved by any Authorized 
Official, any one or more of said officials), shall be and is hereby in all respects approved and the 



82643060.3  23 

Purchasers are hereby authorized to use and distribute the final Official Statement, dated October 
12, 2021 in the reoffering, sale and delivery of the Bonds to the public.  The Mayor, Mayor Pro 
Tem, and/or City Secretary are further authorized and directed to manually execute and deliver for 
and on behalf of the City copies of the Official Statement in final form as may be required by the 
Purchasers, and such final Official Statement in the form and content manually executed by said 
officials shall be deemed to be approved by the City Council and constitute the Official Statement 
authorized for distribution and use by the Purchasers.  The proper officials of the City are hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver a certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed 
therein, dated as of the date of payment for and delivery of the Bonds. 

SECTION 19. Escrow Agreement Approval and Execution; Proceeds of Sale; 
Contribution by City.  The Escrow Deposit Letter dated as of October 12, 2021 to be effective 
upon the initial delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers (the Agreement) between the City and 
UMB Bank, N.A., Austin, Texas (the Escrow Agent), attached hereto as Exhibit C and 
incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Ordinance for all purposes, is hereby approved 
as to form and content, and such Agreement in substantially the form and substance attached 
hereto, together with such changes or revisions as may be necessary to accomplish the refunding 
or benefit the City, is hereby authorized to be executed by any Authorized Official on behalf of 
the City and as the act and deed of this City Council; and such Agreement as executed by said 
officials shall be deemed approved by the City Council and constitute the Agreement herein 
approved. 

Furthermore, any Authorized Official, or any one or more of said officials, and Bond 
Counsel in cooperation with the Escrow Agent are hereby authorized and directed to make the 
necessary arrangements for the purchase of the Escrowed Securities, if any, referenced in the 
Agreement and the initial delivery thereof to the Escrow Agent on the day of delivery of the Bonds 
to the Purchasers for deposit to the credit of the “CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 ESCROW FUND” (the Escrow Fund), 
including the execution of the subscription forms for the purchase and issuance of the “United 
States Treasury Securities - State and Local Government Series”, if any, for deposit to the Escrow 
Fund; all as contemplated and provided by the provisions of the Act, this Ordinance, and the 
Agreement. 

Immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the proceeds of sale along with a cash 
contribution, if any, from the City (less certain costs of issuance, and accrued interest received 
from the Purchasers of the Bonds) shall be deposited with the Escrow Agent for application and 
disbursement in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.  The proceeds of sale of the 
Bonds not so deposited with the Escrow Agent for the refunding of the Refunded Obligations shall 
be disbursed for payment of costs of issuance and deposited with the place of payment (of the 
Refunded Obligations) in an account in the name of the City and applied for the purposes of 
providing for the payment of the costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith or deposited 
in the Bond Fund for the Bonds, all in accordance with written instructions from the Authorized 
Officials. 

SECTION 20. Redemption of Refunded Obligations.  The Refunded Obligations 
referenced in the preamble hereof become subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at 
the price of par, premium, if any, and accrued interest to the date of redemption.  The Mayor or 



82643060.3  24 

the City Secretary shall give written notice to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded 
Obligations and the Escrow Agent that the Refunded Obligations have been called for redemption, 
and the City Council orders that such obligations are called for redemption on the date set forth on 
Schedule I attached to this Ordinance, and such order to redeem the Refunded Obligations on such 
date shall be irrevocable upon the delivery of the Bonds.  Copies of the notices of redemption 
pertaining to the Refunded Obligations are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit D and are 
incorporated herein by reference for all purposes.  The paying agent for the Refunded Obligations 
is authorized and instructed to provide notice of these redemptions to the holders of the Refunded 
Obligations in the form and manner described in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the 
Refunded Obligations. 

SECTION 21. Covenants to Maintain Tax-Exempt Status. 

A. Definitions.  When used in this Section, the following terms have the following 
meanings: 

Closing Date means the date of physical delivery of the Initial Bonds in exchange 
for the payment in full by the Purchasers. 

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, if 
any, effective on or before the Closing Date. 

Computation Date has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations. 

Gross Proceeds means any proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(b) of the 
Regulations, and any replacement proceeds as defined in Section 1.148-1(c) of the 
Regulations, of the Bonds. 

Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

Nonpurpose Investment means any investment property, as defined in 
section 148(b) of the Code, in which Gross Proceeds of the Bonds are invested and which 
is not acquired to carry out the governmental purposes of the Bonds. 

Rebate Amount has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

Regulations means any proposed, temporary, or final Income Tax Regulations 
issued pursuant to sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, and 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1954, which are applicable to the Bonds.  Any reference to any specific 
Regulation shall also mean, as appropriate, any proposed, temporary or final Income Tax 
Regulation designed to supplement, amend or replace the specific Regulation referenced. 

Yield of 

(1) any Investment has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-5 of the 
Regulations; and 



82643060.3  25 

(2) the Bonds has the meaning set forth in Section 1.148-4 of the Regulations. 

B. Not to Cause Interest to Become Taxable.  The City shall not use, permit the use 
of, or omit to use Gross Proceeds or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly with 
Gross Proceeds) in a manner which if made or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on 
any Bond to become includable in the gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, of the 
owner thereof for federal income tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
unless and until the City receives a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field of 
municipal bond law to the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not adversely affect 
the exemption from federal income tax of the interest on any Bond, the City shall comply with 
each of the specific covenants in this Section. 

C. No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except to the extent it will not cause the 
Bonds to become “private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall at all times prior to the last Stated Maturity of 
Bonds: 

(1) exclusively own, operate and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly or indirectly 
with Gross Proceeds of the Bonds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the 
Refunded Obligations), and not use or permit the use of such Gross Proceeds (including all 
contractual arrangements with terms different than those applicable to the general public) 
or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity 
carried on by any person or entity (including the United States or any agency, department 
and instrumentality thereof) other than a state or local government, unless such use is solely 
as a member of the general public; and 

(2) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment by 
any person or entity who is treated as using Gross Proceeds of the Bonds (including 
property financed with Gross Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations) or any property the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed or refinanced directly 
or indirectly with such Gross Proceeds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds 
of the Refunded Obligations), other than taxes of general application within the City or 
interest earned on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds pending application for 
their intended purposes. 

D. No Private Loan.  Except to the extent it will not cause the Bonds to become 
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of the Bonds to make or finance loans to 
any person or entity other than a state or local government.  For purposes of the foregoing 
covenant, such Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person or entity if:  (1) property 
acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds is sold or leased to such person or 
entity in a transaction which creates a debt for federal income tax purposes; (2) capacity in or 
service from such property is committed to such person or entity under a take-or-pay, output or 
similar contract or arrangement; or (3) indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of 



82643060.3  26 

such Gross Proceeds or any property acquired, constructed or improved with such Gross Proceeds 
are otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

E. Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent it will not cause the Bonds to 
become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder, the City shall not at any time prior to the final Stated Maturity of the Bonds 
directly or indirectly invest Gross Proceeds in any Investment, if as a result of such investment the 
Yield of any Investment acquired with Gross Proceeds (or with money replaced thereby), whether 
then held or previously disposed of, materially exceeds the Yield of the Bonds. 

F. Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by section 149(b) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action 
which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of section 149(b) of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

G. Information Report.  The City shall timely file the information required by 
section 149(e) of the Code with the Secretary of the Treasury on Form 8038-G or such other form 
and in such place as the Secretary may prescribe. 

H. Rebate of Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in 
section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder: 

(1) The City shall account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, 
expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from 
all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all 
records of accounting for at least six years after the day on which the last Outstanding Bond 
is discharged.  However, to the extent permitted by law, the City may commingle Gross 
Proceeds of the Bonds with other money of the City, provided that the City separately 
accounts for each receipt and expenditure of Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired 
therewith. 

(2) Not less frequently than each Computation Date, the City shall calculate the 
Rebate Amount in accordance with rules set forth in section 148(f) of the Code and the 
Regulations and rulings thereunder.  The City shall maintain such calculations with its 
official transcript of proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds until six years after 
the final Computation Date. 

(3) As additional consideration for the purchase of the Bonds by the Purchasers 
and the loan of the money represented thereby and in order to induce such purchase by 
measures designed to insure the excludability of the interest thereon from the gross income 
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, the City shall pay to the United 
States out of the Bond Fund or its general fund, as permitted by applicable Texas statute, 
regulation or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, the amount that when 
added to the future value of previous rebate payments made for the Bonds equals (i) in the 
case of a Final Computation Date as defined in Section 1.148-3(e)(2) of the Regulations, 
one hundred percent (100%) of the Rebate Amount on such date; and (ii) in the case of any 
other Computation Date, ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount on such date.  In all 



82643060.3  27 

cases, the rebate payments shall be made at the times, in the installments, to the place and 
in the manner as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, and shall be accompanied by Form 8038-T or such other forms and 
information as is or may be required by section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and 
rulings thereunder. 

(4) The City shall exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are 
made in the calculations and payments required by paragraphs (2) and (3), and if an error 
is made, to discover and promptly correct such error within a reasonable amount of time 
thereafter (and in all events within one hundred eighty (180) days after discovery of the 
error), including payment to the United States of any additional Rebate Amount owed to 
it, interest thereon, and any penalty imposed under Section 1.148-3(h) of the Regulations. 

I. Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the 
earlier of the Stated Maturity or final payment of the Bonds, enter into any transaction that reduces 
the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection H of this Section 
because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the 
transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Bonds not been relevant to either 
party. 

J. Bonds Not Hedge Bonds. 

(1) At the time the original bonds refunded by the Bonds were issued, the City 
reasonably expected to spend at least 85% of the spendable proceeds of such bonds within 
three years after such bonds were issued. 

(2) Not more than 50% of the proceeds of the original bonds refunded by the 
Bonds were invested in Nonpurpose Investments having a substantially guaranteed Yield 
for a period of 4 years or more. 

K. Qualified Current Refunding.  The Bonds are issued, in part, to refund the Refunded 
Obligations, and the Bonds will be issued, and certain proceeds thereof used, within 90 days after 
the Closing Date for the redemption of the Refunded Obligations.  In the issuance of the Bonds, 
the City has employed no “device” to obtain a material financial advantage (based on arbitrage), 
within the meaning of section 149(d)(4) of the Code, apart from savings attributable to lower 
interest rates.  The City has complied with the covenants, representations, and warranties contained 
in the documents executed in connection with the issuance of the Refunded Obligations.  
Accordingly, the City expects to invest the Bond proceeds to be used to refund the Refunded 
Obligations without regard to Yield restrictions. 

L. Elections.  The City hereby directs and authorizes any Authorized Official, either 
or any combination of the foregoing, to make such elections in the Certificate as to Tax Exemption 
or similar or other appropriate certificate, form, or document permitted or required pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code or the Regulations, as they deem necessary or appropriate in connection 
with the Bonds.  Such elections shall be deemed to be made on the Closing Date. 



82643060.3  28 

M. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The City hereby designates the Bonds as 
qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of section 265(b) of the Code.  In furtherance of such 
designation, the City represents, covenants and warrants the following: (a) during the calendar year 
in which the Bonds are issued, the City (including any subordinate entities) has not designated nor 
will designate obligations, which when aggregated with the Bonds, will result in more than 
$10,000,000 of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” being issued; (b) the City reasonably anticipates 
that the amount of tax-exempt obligations issued during the calendar year 2021 by the City 
(including any subordinate entities) will not exceed $10,000,000; and (c) the City will take such 
action or refrain from such action as is necessary in order that the Bonds will not be considered 
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of section 141 of the Code. 

SECTION 22. Control and Custody of Bonds.  The Mayor shall be and is hereby 
authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending investigation by 
the Attorney General of the State of Texas and shall take and have charge and control of the Bonds 
pending their approval by the Attorney General, the registration thereof by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts and the delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers. 

Furthermore, any Authorized Official, either or all, are hereby authorized and directed to 
furnish and execute such documents relating to the City and its financial affairs as may be 
necessary for the issuance of the Bonds, the approval of the Attorney General and their registration 
by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and, together with the City’s financial advisors, Bond 
Counsel, and the Paying Agent/Registrar, make the necessary arrangements for the delivery of the 
Initial Bonds to the Purchasers and the initial exchange thereof for definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 23. Satisfaction of Obligation of City.  If the City shall pay or cause to be paid, 
or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Ordinance, then the pledge of taxes 
levied under this Ordinance and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the City to the 
Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and satisfied. 

Bonds, or any principal amount(s) thereof, shall be deemed to have been paid within the 
meaning and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in 
full such Bonds or the principal amount(s) thereof on or prior to Stated Maturity or to the 
redemption date therefor, together with all interest due thereon, shall have been irrevocably 
deposited with and held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 
and/or (ii) Government Securities shall have been irrevocably deposited in trust with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, which Government Securities will mature as to 
principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without 
reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any money deposited therewith, if any, to pay 
when due the principal of and interest on such Bonds, or the principal amount(s) thereof, on and 
prior to the Stated Maturity thereof or (if notice of redemption has been duly given or waived or if 
irrevocable arrangements therefor acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar have been made) the 
redemption date thereof for the Bonds.  In the event of a defeasance of the Bonds, the City shall 
deliver a certificate from its financial advisor, the Paying Agent/Registrar, an independent 
accounting firm, or another qualified third party concerning the deposit of cash and/or Government 
Securities to pay, when due, the principal of, redemption premium (if any), and interest due on any 
defeased Bonds.  To the extent applicable, if at all, the City covenants that no deposit of money or 



82643060.3  29 

Government Securities will be made under this Section and no use made of any such deposit which 
would cause the Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds within the meaning of section 148 of the 
Code (as defined in Section 21 hereof). 

Any money so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, and all income from 
Government Securities held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 
pursuant to this Section which is not required for the payment of the Bonds, or any principal 
amount(s) thereof, or interest thereon with respect to which such money has been so deposited 
shall be remitted to the City or deposited as directed by the City.  Furthermore, any money held 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and 
remaining unclaimed for a period of three (3) years after the Stated Maturity of the Bonds or 
applicable redemption date, such money was deposited and is held in trust to pay shall upon the 
request of the City be remitted to the City against a written receipt therefor, subject to the 
unclaimed property laws of the State of Texas. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, it is hereby provided 
that any determination not to redeem defeased Bonds that is made in conjunction with the payment 
arrangements specified in subsection (i) or (ii) above shall not be irrevocable, provided that: (1) in 
the proceedings providing for such defeasance, the Issuer expressly reserves the right to call the 
defeased Bonds for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of that right to the owners of 
the defeased Bonds immediately following the defeasance; (3) directs that notice of the reservation 
be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes; and (4) at the time of the redemption, 
satisfies the conditions of (i) or (ii) above with respect to such defeased debt as though it was being 
defeased at the time of the exercise of the option to redeem the defeased Bonds, after taking the 
redemption into account in determining the sufficiency of the provisions made for the payment of 
the defeased Bonds. 

SECTION 24. Printed Opinion.  The Purchasers’ obligation to accept delivery of the Bonds 
is subject to its being furnished a final opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, San Antonio, 
Texas, as Bond Counsel, approving certain legal matters as to the Bonds, said opinion to be dated 
and delivered as of the date of initial delivery and payment for such Bonds.  Printing of a true and 
correct copy of said opinion on the reverse side of each of the Bonds, with appropriate certificate 
pertaining thereto executed by facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the City is hereby 
approved and authorized. 

SECTION 25. CUSIP Numbers.  CUSIP numbers may be printed or typed on the definitive 
Bonds.  It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the 
definitive Bonds shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality thereof, and neither 
the City nor attorneys approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP 
numbers incorrectly printed or typed on the definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 26. Effect of Headings.  The Section headings herein are for convenience only 
and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

SECTION 27. Ordinance a Contract; Amendments - Outstanding Bonds.  The City 
acknowledges that the covenants and obligations of the City herein contained are a material 
inducement to the purchase of the Bonds.  This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the 



82643060.3  30 

Holders from time to time, shall be binding on the City and its successors and assigns, and shall 
not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Bond remains Outstanding except as 
permitted in this Section.  The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders, from 
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests 
of the Holders, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission 
herein.  In addition, the City may, with the written consent of Holders holding a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding affected thereby, amend, add to, or 
rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided; however, that, without the consent of 
all Holders of Outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (1) extend the 
time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, reduce 
the principal amount thereof, the redemption price thereof, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any 
other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the 
Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce the aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds required for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

SECTION 28. Benefits of Ordinance.  Nothing in this Ordinance, expressed or implied, is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the City, Bond Counsel, Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by 
reason of this Ordinance or any provision hereof, this Ordinance and all its provisions being 
intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City, Bond Counsel, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, and the Holders. 

SECTION 29. Inconsistent Provisions.  All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, 
which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as 
to the matters ordained herein. 

SECTION 30. Construction of Terms.  If appropriate in the context of this Ordinance, 
words of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number 
shall be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
shall be considered to include the other genders. 

SECTION 31. Governing Law.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 32. Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the 
application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and 
the City Council hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

SECTION 33. Incorporation of Preamble Recitals.  The recitals contained in the preamble 
hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for 
all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

SECTION 34. Authorization of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement.  The City Council of 
the City hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the City to authorize the 



82643060.3  31 

execution of a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement concerning the payment, exchange, registration, 
and transferability of the Bonds.  A copy of the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement is attached 
hereto, in substantially final form, as Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference to the provisions 
of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 35. Public Meeting.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, 
place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this 
Ordinance, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

SECTION 36. Unavailability of Authorized Publication.  If, because of the temporary or 
permanent suspension of any newspaper, journal, or other publication, or, for any reason, 
publication of notice cannot be made meeting any requirements herein established, any notice 
required to be published by the provisions of this Ordinance shall be given in such other manner 
and at such time or times as in the judgment of the City or of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
most effectively approximate such required publication and the giving of such notice in such 
manner shall for all purposes of this Ordinance be deemed to be in compliance with the 
requirements for publication thereof. 

SECTION 37. No Recourse Against City Officials.  No recourse shall be had for the 
payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond or for any claim based thereon 
or on this Ordinance against any official of the City or any person executing any Bond. 

SECTION 38. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

A. Definitions. 

As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms 
below: 

EMMA means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system, accessible by the 
general public, without charge, on the internet through the uniform resource locator (URL) 
http://www.emma.msrb.org. 

Financial Obligation means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Rule means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 



82643060.3  32 

Undertaking means the City’s continuing disclosure undertaking, described in Subsections 
B through F below, hereunder accepted and entered into by the City for the purpose of compliance 
with the Rule.   

B. Annual Reports. 

The City shall file annually with the MSRB, (1) within six months after the end of each 
fiscal year of the City ending in or after 2021, financial information and operating data with respect 
to the City of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 18 of 
this Ordinance, being the information described in Exhibit E hereto, and (2) if not provided as part 
of such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the City, when 
and if available.  Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance 
with the accounting principles described in Exhibit E hereto, or such other accounting principles 
as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and 
(ii) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such financial statements and the audit is 
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial 
statements is not complete within such period, then the City shall file unaudited financial 
statements within such period and audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the 
MSRB, when and if the audit report on such financial statements becomes available.  Under current 
Texas law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 103, as amended, Texas Local Government Code, 
the City must have its records and accounts audited annually and shall have an annual financial 
statement prepared based on the audit.  The annual financial statement, including the auditor’s 
opinion on the statement, shall be filed in the office of the City Secretary within 180 days after the 
last day of the City’s fiscal year.  Additionally, upon the filing of this financial statement and the 
annual audit, these documents are subject to the Texas Open Records Act, as amended, Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 552. 

If the City changes its fiscal year, it will file notice of such change (and of the date of the 
new fiscal year end) with the MSRB prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

C. Notice of Certain Events. 

The City shall file notice of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds to the 
MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business days after occurrence of the event: 

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-



82643060.3  33 

TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) Modifications to rights of Holders of the Bonds, if material; 

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(9) Defeasances; 

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, 
if material;  

(11) Rating changes; 

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, which 
shall occur as described below; 

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
City or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material; 

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional paying agent/registrar or the 
change of name of a paying agent/registrar, if material; 

(15) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

(16) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties. 

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 
or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has 
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but 
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
City, and (b) the City intends the words used in the immediately preceding paragraphs (15) and 
(16) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Section to have the same meanings as when 
they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated August 20, 2018. 



82643060.3  34 

The City shall file notice with the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with this Section by the time 
required by this Section. 

D. Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. 

The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section 
for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with respect to the 
Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice of any 
deposit that causes the Bonds to be no longer Outstanding. 

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 
of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or 
equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes to provide 
only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it has 
expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to provide any 
other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s financial 
results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in 
accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does not 
make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision 
to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR 
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY 
THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITH OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF 
ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF 
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 

No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall 
constitute a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this 
Ordinance. 

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Section may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the provisions of this 
Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the 
primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments 
or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provision of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is 



82643060.3  35 

unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such 
amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders and beneficial owners of the 
Bonds.  The City may also repeal or amend the provisions of this Section if the SEC amends or 
repeals the applicable provisions of the Rule or any court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that 
such provisions of the Rule are invalid, and the City also may amend the provisions of this Section 
in its discretion in any other manner or circumstance, but in either case only if and to the extent 
that the provisions of this sentence would not have prevented an underwriter from lawfully 
purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds, giving effect to (a) such 
provisions as so amended and (b) any amendments or interpretations of the Rule.  If the City so 
amends the provisions of this Section, the City shall include with any amended financial 
information or operating data next provided in accordance with this Section an explanation, in 
narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of 
financial information or operating data so provided. 

E. Information Format – Incorporation by Reference. 

The City information required under this Section shall be filed with the MSRB through 
EMMA in such format and accompanied by such identifying information as may be specified from 
time to time thereby.  Under the current rules of the MSRB, continuing disclosure documents 
submitted to EMMA must be in word-searchable portable document format (PDF) files that permit 
the document to be saved, viewed, printed, and retransmitted by electronic means and the series of 
obligations to which such continuing disclosure documents relate must be identified by CUSIP 
number or numbers. 

Financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be 
set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document 
(including an official statement or other offering document) available to the public through EMMA 
or filed with the SEC. 

F. General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with the Rule. 

Because the issuance of the Bonds is subject to the provisions of the Rule and because the 
potential “underwriters” in a negotiated sale of the Bonds or the initial purchasers in a competitive 
sale of the Bonds may be subject to MSRB rules and regulations with respect to such sale 
(including certain due diligence and suitability requirements, among others), the City hereby 
adopts the General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with the Rule (the “Policies 
and Procedures”), attached hereto as Exhibit G, with which the City shall follow to assure 
compliance with the Undertaking.  The City has developed these Policies and Procedures for the 
purpose of meeting its requirements of the Undertaking and, in connection therewith, has sought 
the guidance from its internal staff charged with administering the City’s financial affairs, its 
municipal or financial advisors, its legal counsel (including its Bond Counsel), and its independent 
accountants (to the extent determined to be necessary or advisable). The Policies and Procedures 
can be amended at the sole discretion of the City and any such amendment will not be deemed to 
be an amendment to the Undertaking.  Each Authorized Official is hereby authorized to amend the 
Policies and Procedures as a result of a change in law, a future issuance of indebtedness subject to 
the Rule, or another purpose determined by the Authorized Official to be necessary or desirable 
for or with respect to future compliance with the Undertaking. 



82643060.3  36 

SECTION 39. Book-Entry Only System. 

The Bonds initially shall be registered so as to participate in a securities depository system 
(the DTC System) with the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or any successor 
entity thereto (DTC), as set forth herein.  Each Stated Maturity of the Bonds shall be issued 
(following cancellation of the Initial Bonds described in Section 7) in the form of a separate single 
definitive Bond.  Upon issuance, the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, and all of the Outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC.  The City and the Paying Agent/Registrar are 
authorized to execute, deliver, and take the actions set forth in such letters to or agreements with 
DTC as shall be necessary to effectuate the DTC System, including the Letter of Representations 
attached hereto as Exhibit F (the Representation Letter). 

With respect to the Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the 
City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any broker-dealer, 
bank, or other financial institution for which DTC holds the Bonds from time to time as securities 
depository (a Depository Participant) or to any person on behalf of whom such a Depository 
Participant holds an interest in the Bonds (an Indirect Participant).  Without limiting the 
immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no 
responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or 
any Depository Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to 
any Depository Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner of the Bonds, as 
shown on the Security Register, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of 
redemption, or (iii) the delivery to any Depository Participant or any Indirect Participant or any 
other Person, other than a Holder of a Bond, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, 
if any, or interest on the Bonds.  While in the DTC System, no person other than Cede & Co., or 
any successor thereto, as nominee for DTC, shall receive a bond certificate evidencing the 
obligation of the City to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect 
that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the 
provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks or drafts being mailed to the Holder, 
the word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

In the event that (a) the City determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its 
responsibilities described herein and in the Representation Letter, (b) the Representation Letter 
shall be terminated for any reason, or (c) DTC or the City determines that it is in the best interest 
of the beneficial owners of the Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Bonds, the City shall 
notify the Paying Agent/Registrar, DTC, and the Depository Participants of the availability within 
a reasonable period of time through DTC of bond certificates, and the Bonds shall no longer be 
restricted to being registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  At that time, the 
City may determine that the Bonds shall be registered in the name of and deposited with a 
successor depository operating a securities depository system, as may be acceptable to the City, or 
such depository’s agent or designee, and if the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar do not select 
such alternate securities depository system then the Bonds may be registered in whatever name or 
names the Holders of Bonds transferring or exchanging the Bonds shall designate, in accordance 
with the provisions hereof. 



82643060.3  37 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond 
is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be 
made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation Letter. 

SECTION 40. Further Procedures.  The officers and employees of the City are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal 
and on behalf of the City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be 
necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the initial 
sale and delivery of the Bonds, the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Official Bid Form, the 
Agreement, and the Official Statement.  In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Bonds, any 
Authorized Official and Bond Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical 
changes or corrections to this Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by 
this Ordinance necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more 
completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance and as 
described in the Official Statement, (ii) obtain a rating from any of the national bond rating 
agencies, or (iii) obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Texas Attorney General’s office.  In case 
any officer of the City whose signature shall appear on any certificate shall cease to be such officer 
before the delivery of such certificate, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for 
all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. 

SECTION 41. City’s Consent to Provide Information and Documentation to the Texas 
MAC.  The Municipal Advisory Council of Texas (the Texas MAC), a non-profit membership 
corporation organized exclusively for non-profit purposes described in section 501(c)(6) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and which serves as a comprehensive financial information repository 
regarding municipal debt issuers in Texas, requires provision of written documentation regarding 
the issuance of municipal debt by the issuers thereof.  In support of the purpose of the Texas MAC 
and in compliance with applicable law, the City hereby consents to and authorizes any Authorized 
Official, Bond Counsel to the City, and/or Financial Advisor to the City to provide to the Texas 
MAC information and documentation requested by the Texas MAC relating to the Bonds; 
provided, however, that no such information and documentation shall be provided prior to the 
Closing Date.  This consent and authorization relates only to information and documentation that 
is a part of the public record concerning the issuance of the Bonds. 

SECTION 42. Contract with Financial Advisor.  The City Council authorized any 
Authorized Official, or their designee thereof, to take all actions necessary to execute any 
necessary financial advisory contract with SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc., as the financial advisor 
to the City (the Financial Advisor).  The City understands that under applicable federal securities 
laws and regulations that the City must have a contractual arrangement with its Financial Advisor 
relating to the sale, issuance, and delivery of the Bonds.   

SECTION 43. Effective Date.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1201.028, as 
amended, Texas Government Code, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption, 
notwithstanding any provision in the City’s Home Rule Charter to the contrary concerning a 
multiple reading requirement for the adoption of ordinances. 



82643060.3  S-1 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on the 12th day of October, 2021. 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
  Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

      
  City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL)



82643060.3  S-2 

INDEX TO SCHEDULE AND EXHIBITS 

 

 

 

 

Schedule I .................................................................. Table of Refunded Obligations 

Exhibit A ................................................................... Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 

Exhibit B ................................................................... Official Bid Form 

Exhibit C ................................................................... Escrow Deposit Letter 

Exhibit D ................................................................... Notices of Redemption 

Exhibit E ................................................................... Description of Annual Financial Information 

Exhibit F .................................................................... DTC Letter of Representations 

Exhibit G ................................................................... General Policies and Procedures Concerning 
Compliance with the Rule 

 



82643060.3  Schedule I-1 

SCHEDULE I 

Refunded Obligations 

1. City of Schertz, Texas General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, dated 
August 1, 2012, in the original principal amount of $7,625,000 stated to 
mature on February 1 in each of the years 2023 through 2026, February 1, 
2028, February 1, 2030, and February 1, 2032, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $4,345,000, to be redeemed on February 1, 2022 (2012 Refunded 
Obligations) 

2. City of Schertz, Texas Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013, dated September 1, 2013, in the 
original principal amount of $4,965,000 stated to mature on February 1 in 
each of the years 2023 through 2026, February 1, 2028, February 1, 2030 
and February 1, 2033, in the aggregate principal amount of $2,120,000, to 
be redeemed on February 1, 2022 (2013 Refunded Obligations) 

 

 

 

 



82643060.3  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement 

See Tab No. 3 



82643060.3  B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

Official Bid Form 

See Tab No. 8 



82643060.3  C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

Escrow Deposit Letter 

See Tab No. 4 



82643060.3  D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

Notices of Redemption 

See Tab No. 23 



82643060.3  E-1 

EXHIBIT E 

Description of Annual Financial Information 

The following information is referred to in Section 38 of this Ordinance. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or under 
the headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 

(1) The City’s audited financial statements for the most recently concluded fiscal 
year or to the extent these audited financial statements are not available, the portions of the 
unaudited financial statements of the City attached to the Official Statement as Appendix D, but 
for the most recently concluded fiscal year. 

(2) The information of the type included in Table 1 of the Official Statement and 
Tables 1 through 20 of Appendix A to the Official Statement. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally accepted accounting 
principles for governmental units as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
from time to time. 



82643060.3  F-1 

EXHIBIT F 

DTC Letter of Representations 

See Tab No. 5



82643060.3  G-1 

EXHIBIT G 

General Policies and Procedures Concerning Compliance with the Rule 

I. Capitalized terms used in this Exhibit have the meanings ascribed thereto in Section 38 of 
the Ordinance.  “Bonds” refer to the Bonds that are the subject of the Ordinance to which this 
Exhibit is attached. 

II. As a capital markets participant, the City is aware of its continuing disclosure requirements 
and obligations existing under the Rule prior to February 27, 2019, the effective date of the most 
recent amendment to the Rule (the “Effective Date”), and has implemented and maintained internal 
policies, processes, and procedures to ensure compliance therewith. Adherence to these internal 
policies, processes, and procedures has enabled underwriters in non-exempt negotiated sales and 
initial purchasers in non-exempt competitive sales to comply with their obligations arising under 
various MSRB rules and regulations concerning due diligence and findings of suitability, among 
other matters, regarding the City’s compliance with the Rule. 

III. The City is aware that the Rule was amended as of the Effective Date (the “Rule 
Amendment”) and has accommodated this amendment by adding paragraphs (15) and (16) to 
Section 38C of the Ordinance, which provisions are a part of the Undertaking. 

IV. The City is aware that “participating underwriters” (as such term is defined in the Rule) of 
the Bonds must make inquiry and reasonably believe that the City is likely to comply with the 
Undertaking and that the standards for determining compliance have increased over time as a result 
of, among others, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission’s Municipalities 
Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative and regulatory commentary relating to the 
effectiveness of the Rule Amendment. 

V. The City now establishes the following general policies and procedures (the “Policies and 
Procedures”) for satisfying its obligations pursuant to the Undertaking, which policies and 
procedures have been developed based on the City’s informal policies, procedures, and processes 
utilized prior to the Effective Date for compliance with the City’s obligations under the Rule, the 
advice from and discussions with the City’s internal senior staff (including staff charged with 
administering the City’s financial affairs), its municipal or financial advisors, its legal counsel 
(including Bond Counsel), and its independent accountants, to the extent determined to be 
necessary or advisable (collectively, the “Compliance Team”):  

1. the City Manager and the Director of Finance of the City (each, a “Compliance 
Officer”) shall be responsible for satisfying the City’s obligations pursuant to the 
Undertaking through adherence to these Policies and Procedures;  

2. the Compliance Officer shall establish reminder or “tickler” systems to identify and 
timely report to the MSRB, in the format thereby prescribed from time to time, the 
City’s information of the type described in Section 38B of the Ordinance;  

3. the Compliance Officer shall promptly determine the occurrence of any of the 
events described in Section 38C of the Ordinance; 



82643060.3  G-1 

4. the Compliance Officer shall work with external consultants of the City, as and to 
the extent necessary, to timely prepare and file with the MSRB the annual 
information of the City and notice of the occurrence of any of the events referenced 
in Clauses 2 and 3 above, respectively, the foregoing being required to satisfy the 
terms of the Undertaking; 

5. the Compliance Officer shall establish a system for identifying and monitoring any 
Financial Obligations, whether now existing or hereafter entered into by the City, 
and (upon identification) determining if such Financial Obligation has the potential 
to materially impact the security or source of repayment of the Bonds;  

6. upon identification of any Financial Obligation meeting the materiality standard 
identified in Clause 5 above, the Compliance Officer shall establish a process for 
identifying and monitoring any City agreement to covenants, events of default, 
remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms under such Financial Obligation; 

7. the Compliance Officer shall establish a process for identifying the occurrence of 
any default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 
similar events under the terms of any Financial Obligation, the occurrence of any 
of which reflect financial difficulties of the City; and 

8. the Compliance Officer shall annually review these Policies and Procedures with 
the remainder of the Compliance Team, make any modifications on an internal 
document retained by the Compliance Officer and available to any “participating 
underwriter” (as defined in the Rule), if requested, and on the basis of this annual 
review (to the extent determined to be necessary or desirable), seek additional 
training for herself or himself, as well as other members of the City’s internal staff 
identified by the Compliance Officer to assist with the City’s satisfaction of the 
terms and provisions of the Undertaking.   

 



Agenda No. 11.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 21-S-42 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and/or action

approving an Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas on a
request to rezone 1.373 acres of land from Pre- Development District (PRE) to
Single-Family Residential/ Agricultural District (RA), generally located 750 feet
east of the intersection between Trainer Hale Road and FM 1518, 9049 Trainer
Hale Road, also known as Bexar County Property Identification Number 310238,
City of Schertz, Bexar County, Texas. ( First Reading) (B. James/L. Wood/M.
Harrison)

BACKGROUND
The applicant is proposing to rezone approximately 1.373 acres of land from Pre-Development District
(PRE) to Single-Family Residential/Agricultural District (RA).  The property is generally located 750
feet east of the intersection between Trainer Hale Road and FM 1518, 9049 Trainer Hale Road.  

Seven (7) public hearing notices were mailed to the surrounding property owners within two hundred
feet (200') of the subject property on August 27, 2021, with a public hearing notice published in the
"San Antonio Express" on September 27, prior to the City Council public hearing.  At the time of this
report Staff has received zero (0) responses in favor and one (1) responses opposed to the zoning
request.

One resident spoke during the public hearing, Richard Bassett, 9058 Trainer Hale Road.  He was
concerned with the effects of the rezone and the surrounding properties and their uses.
 

GOAL 
The project goal is to rezone the subject property from Pre-Development District (PRE) to
Single-Family Residential/Agricultural District (RA) in order to allow the owner to add accessory
structures and/or build a new home.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City's desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City's vision of future growth. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), through the Future Land Use Plan and the Southern
Schertz Sector Plan, designates this subject property as Estate Neighborhood.  The objective of the
Estate Neighborhood land use designation is intended to address residential development patterns within
the RA zoned property within South Schertz.  The goal within this Land Use/Character area is to
incentivize an alternative development outcome with more flexibility in lot size. 

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Objectives: The proposed rezoning of the property to
Single-Family Residential/ Agricultural District (RA) is in conformance with the goals and



objectives of the Comprehensive Plan; the proposed zone change supports the large lot and
character of the Estate Neighborhood land use designation. 
Impact of Infrastructure: The proposed rezoning should have minimal impact on the existing
water system, there is a City of Schertz water line that runs along the frontage of the property. 
The property currently does not have sanitary sewer infrastructure in place.  There is an active
OSSF system in place.
Impact of Public Facilities/Services: The proposed rezoning should have minimal impact on
public services, such as schools, fire, police, parks, and sanitation services.
Compatibility with Existing and Potential Adjacent Land Uses: The subject property is
surrounded by several parcels of equal size that are zoned Pre-Development District (PRE).  The
rezoning of this property is compatible with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of Estate
Neighborhood as it maintains the large lot and character of the land use designation. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 8, 2021 and offered a
recommendation of approval with a 7-0 vote for the rezone of the 1.373 acres of land from
Pre-Development District (PRE) to Single-Family Residential/Agricultural District (RA). 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 21-S-42 on first reading for the rezone of 1.373 acres of
land from Pre-Development District (PRE) to Single-Family Residential/Agricultural District (RA). 

Attachments
Ord. No. 21-S-42 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Exhibit 
Citizen Response 



ORDINANCE NO. 21-S-42 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 1.373 

ACRES OF LAND TO SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL/AGRICULATURAL 

DISTRICT GENERALLY LOCATED 750 FEET EAST OF THE INTERSECTION OF 

TRAINER HALE ROAD AND FM 1518, 9049 TRAINER HALE ROAD, ALSO KNOWN 

AS BEXAR COUNTY PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBE 310238, BEXAR 

COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

WHEREAS, an application to rezone approximately 1.373 acres of land located 750 feet east from 

the intersection of Trainer Hale Road and FM 1518, also known as Bexar County Property 

Identification Number 310238, and more specifically described in the Exhibit A attached herein 

(herein, the “Property”) has been filed with the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.4.D. provides for certain criteria 

to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 

Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested zone change (the 

“Criteria”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 

hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to approve the 

requested rezoning; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 

considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

determined that the requested zoning be approved as provided for herein. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 

THAT: 

 

 Section 1.  The Property as shown and more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 

A, is hereby zoned Single-Family Residential/Agricultural District. 

 

 Section 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Schertz, described and referred to in 

Article 2 of the Unified Development Code, shall be revised to reflect the above amendment. 

 

 Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 

such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 

the judgment and findings of the Council. 

 

 Section 4.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 

with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

 



 Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

 

 Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 

declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

 

 Section 7.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 

of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 

as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 

 Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 

publication required by law. 

 

 Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 

Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 

of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Approved on first reading the 12th day of October, 2021. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 26th day of October, 2021. 

      

 

____________________________________ 

      Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary   

(SEAL OF THE CITY)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MH1420
Architect
Exhibit A



!P

U

U

UU

U

U

U

310210
ELLIS JEROME

P JR & AMANDA

310064
MCCOY

MICHAEL A310078
WARE SEGUIN

1518 LLC

1085748

KING RITCHIE L &

MATHEWS-KING

ELIZABETH J

1085747

MATHEWS-KING

ELIZABETH

J & KING RITCHIE L

310061
BRYCAP COMML
PROPERTIES LLC

310072
JUAREZ ROY

& EDNA M

310212

KUHN CURTIS EDWARD

& MAXINE L

310213

BOLLIG RONALD

& CHRISTINE

310214

VICK DAVID

HOLDE

310215

CHURCH OF

CHRIST
310216

KAMOLSRI CHOB

& PRAPAPAN

339274
LUENSMANN HENRRY

W FAMILY TR &

991092
SCHINDLER ALAN
& CAROL TRUST

310217

KAMOLSRI PRAPRAPAN

T & CHOB

310218

KAMOLSRI

PRAPAPAN T

310219

GARZA RAYMUNDO V

& GLORIA

1289216

GARZA RAYMUNDO

V & GLORIA

1289217

GARZA RAYMUNDO

V & GLORIA

310239

BASSETT

RICHARD E JR310237

SHAW BRIAN

EDWARD

310238

ROLLAUER BOGUSLAW

J & BARABARA

310234

SALAZAR

LIBRADO

310235

PONCE ALVARO VILLANUEVA

& CRISTINA GARCIA

310236

GARCIA
LUCIA

310240

SKINNER DELBERT L

& SKINNER JORDON L

310233

HARRISON

KARIE R

310121
KNEUPPER BRYSON

PROPERTIES LTD

310070
OBEARLE GARY

RICHARD
310067

STREMPEL

TYLER R310241

JERNIGAN

TIFFANY J

1337491
CITY OF

SCHERTZ

E FM 1518 N

HALLIE
PATHHALLIE

GLADE

WARE-SEGUIN RD

TRAINER HALE RD

NOTTINGSHIRE

Bexar
County

12" WL

8" WL

12" WL

8" WL

2" WL

8"WL

12" WL

12" WL

2" WL

6" WL

GVSUD

GVSUD

2" WL

8" PVC SDR 26

(120' - 130' ROW)'

Principal Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(90' ROW)' Secondary

Rural Arterial

(WARE-SEGUIN RD)

(120' - 130' ROW)'

Principal Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(TRAINER HALE RD)

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

4 1 Inch = 150 Feet9049 TRAINER HALE RD
0 150 30075

Feet

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"
8"

10"
12"
16"
18"
20"
24"

30"
36"
Neighboring Main
Private

<all other values>
Freeway
Principal Arterial
Planned Principal Arterial
Secondary Arterial

Planned Secondary Arterial
Secondary Rural Arterial
Planned Secondary Rural Arterial
Residential Collector
Planned Residential Collector

Commercial Collector B
Planned Commercial Collector B
Commercial Collector A
Planned Commercial Collector A

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes







Agenda No. 12.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 21-S-43 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and/or action

approving an Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas on a
request to rezone approximately 45 acres of land from General Business District
(GB) to Manufacturing Light District (M-1), generally located approximately
1,300 feet east of Friesenhahn Lane and 450 feet north of IH-35 access road, also
known as Comal County Property Identification Numbers 150166 & 81285, City
of Schertz, Comal County, Texas. (First Reading) (B. James/L. Wood/M. Harrison)

BACKGROUND
The overall property is approximately 45 acres of land including 6.011 acres which is currently General
Business District (GB) and the remaining 36.474 acres is Manufacturing Light District (M-1).  The
proposed rezone from General Business District (GB) to Manufacturing Light District is only for the
6.011 acre portion.  There will be a remaining 2.565 acre tract of land that abuts IH-35 that will remain
zoned General Business District (GB).  The notice that was published was the for the entire 45 acre
tract of land to be rezoned to Manufacturing Light District (M-1).  However, after further review and
discussion it was determined that only 6.011 acres of land needed to be rezoned from General Business
District (GB) to Manufacturing Light District (M-1) as the rest of the acreage exists as Manufacturing
Light District (M-1).  If approved then this would result in the entire tract of land being under one
zoning district.

Four (4) public hearing notices were mailed to the surrounding property owners within two hundred
(200) feet of the subject property on August 10, 2021, with a public hearing notice published in the
"San Antonio Express" on September 27, prior to the City Council public hearing.  At the time of this
staff report Staff has received zero (0) responses in favor or opposed to the zoning request.

GOAL 
The project goal is to rezone the subject property from General Business District (GB) to
Manufacturing Light District (M-1) in order to allow the owner to develop the property with an
office/warehouse type development. 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City's desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City's vision for future growth.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Sector Plan amendment to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) designates the subject
property as part of the Commercial Campus land use designation.  The objective of the Commercial
Campus land use designation is to accommodate light manufacturing or flex office uses set in a campus
like environment located at mid-block locations.  Due to the location of the property the rezone is
taking place 450 feet north of the frontage of 35.  Therefore, the acreage that remains adjacent to IH 35
will maintain the General Business District (GB) zoning.  The rezone captures the intent of the land use



designation of keeping the office retail along the highway and placing the industrial uses in the rear of
the property.   

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Objectives: The proposed rezoning of this property to
Manufacturing Light District (M-1) is consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan as the
industrial use is being maintained at the rear of the property and they are preserving the General
Business District (GB) zoning on the frontage of 35.
Impact of Infrastructure: The proposed rezoning should have minimal impact on the existing
water system.  The property will be serviced by an 8 inch water line that will stubbed for future
development.  The property currently does not have sanitary sewer infrastructure in place;
however, there is sewer to the north of the property that would be closet to tap into.  If the
proposed zone change is approved, the applicant would be required during the development
process to make any infrastructure improvements deemed necessary.
Impact of Public Facilities/Services: The proposed rezoning should have minimal impact on the
public services, such as schools, fire, police, parks, and sanitation services.
Compatibility with Existing and Potential Adjacent Land Uses: The subject property is currently
surrounded by several parcels such as Sysco, Amazon Distribution Center, and undeveloped lots
that are zoned General Business District (GB) or Manufacturing Light District (M-1) which is
compatible with the proposed rezone of this site. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 22, 2021, and offered
a recommendation of approval with a 6-0 vote for the rezone of the 6.011 acres to Manufacturing Light
District (M-1).  As mentioned in the background after the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting,
staff determined that the rezone was only needed for the 6.011 acres.  Therefore, 42.485 acres of land
will be zoned Manufacturing Light District (M-1) and then there will be 2.565 acres that abut IH-35
that will remain General Business District (GB), which consists of the total 45 acres. 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 21-S-43 on first reading to rezone the 6.011 acres of land
to Manufacturing Light District (M-1).

Attachments
Ord. No. 21-S-43 
Aerial Map 
Zoning Exhibit 
Rezone Exhibit 
Draft Exhibit SAOne 



ORDINANCE NO. 21-S-43 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 6.011 

ACRES OF LAND TO MANUFACTURING LIGHT DISTRICT, GENERALLY 

LOCATED 1,300 FEET EAST OF FRIESENHAHN LANE AND 450 FEET NORTH OF 

IH-35, ALSO KNOWN AS COMAL COUNTY PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION 

NUMBERS, 150166 AND 81285, BEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 

WHEREAS, an application to rezone approximately 6.011 acres of land located 1,300 feet east of 

Friesenhahn Road and 450 feet north of IH-35, also known as Comal County Property 

Identification Numbers 150166 and 81285, and more specifically described in the Exhibit A and 

Exhibit B attached herein (herein, the “Property”) has been filed with the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.4.D. provides for certain criteria 

to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 

Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested zone change (the 

“Criteria”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 22, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 

hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to approve the 

requested rezoning; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 

considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

determined that the requested zoning be approved as provided for herein. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 

THAT: 

 

 Section 1.  The Property as shown and more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 

A, is hereby zoned Manufacturing Light District (M-1). 

 

 Section 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Schertz, described and referred to in 

Article 2 of the Unified Development Code, shall be revised to reflect the above amendment. 

 

 Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 

such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 

the judgment and findings of the Council. 

 

 Section 4.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 

with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

 

 Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 



 

 Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 

declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

 

 Section 7.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 

of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 

as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 

 Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 

publication required by law. 

 

 Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 

Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 

of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 

provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Approved on first reading the 12th day of October, 2021. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 26th day of October, 2021. 

      

 

____________________________________ 

      Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary   

(SEAL OF THE CITY)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE 

Part of San Antonio One Limited Partnership,  
Juan Francisco Zepeda Survey, Abstract No. 685 

City of Schertz, Comal County, Texas 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

DESCRIPTION, of a 6.011 acre (261,818 square foot) tract of land situated in the Juan Francisco Zepeda Survey, Abstract 

No. 685, City of Schertz, Comal County, Texas; said tract being part of that certain tract of land described in Warranty 

Deed to San Antonio One Limited Partnership, recorded in Volume 803, Page 777 of the Deed Records of Comal County, 

Texas; said 6.011 acre tract of land being more particularly described as follows (bearing system for this survey is based 

on the State Plane Coordinate System, North American Datum of 1983 (2011), Texas Central Zone 4203. Distances 

reported have been scaled by applying a computed scale factor of 1.0001557372): 

BEGINNING, at a point for the southernmost southwest corner of said San Antonio One Limited Partnership tract; said point 

also being the northwest corner of that certain tract of land described Special Warranty Deed to DTLC Investment, LLC, 

recorded Document Number 202006013466, the northwest corner of Lot 1, Block 1, Lack’s Subdivision, an addition to the 

City of Schertz, Texas according to the plat recorded in Document Number 200706013878 and being in the southeast line 

of that certain tract of land described in Warranty Deed with Vendor’s Lien to Marcantonio Enterprises, LLC, recorded in 

Document Number 201106034921 all of the Official Public Records of Comal County, Texas; 

THENCE, North 16 degrees, 44 minutes, 22 seconds West, along the northwest line of said San Antonio One Limited 

Partnership tract and the said southeast line of Marcantonio Enterprises, LLC tract, a distance of 264.67 feet; 

THENCE, departing the said northwest line of San Antonio One Limited Partnership tract and the said southeast line of 

Marcantonio Enterprises, LLC tract, and into and across the said San Antonio One Limited Partnership tract, the following 

three (3) calls; 

          North 59 degrees, 21 minutes, 59 seconds East, a distance of 986.54 feet; 

          South 29 degrees, 54 minutes, 29 seconds East, a distance of 261.02 feet; 

          South 60 degrees, 05 minutes, 31 seconds West, a distance of 333.46 feet; said point being the north                                                                                                                         

corner of said Lot 1; said point also being a south corner of said San Antonio One Limited Partnership tract; 

THENCE, South 59 degrees, 21 minutes, 16 seconds West, along the northwest line of said Lack’s Subdivision and 

a north line of said San Antonio One Limited Partnership, a distance of 713.36 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 

CONTAINING, 6.011 acres or 261,818 square feet of land, more or less.  

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

Luis M. Gonzalez 

Registered Professional Land Survey No. 6793 

Pacheco Koch Consulting Engineers, Inc.  

7557 Rambler Road, Suite 1400, Dallas, Texas 75231 

(972) 235-3031 

TX Reg. Surveying Firm LS-10008000 
 

4924-21.138-Proposed Zoning Description.doc 

4924-21.138-Zoning Exhibit.dwg 

 

  

 

08/18/2021

MH1420
Architect
Exhibit A



VICINITY MAP
COMAL COUNTY,TEXAS

PROJECT   LOCATION
DAVID LA

CK

CYPRESS

SCH
W

AB RD

2.565
42.485

(6.011 ACRES)

MH1420
Architect
Exhibit A



!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

81288
SAN ANTONIO

ONE LTD PTNSHP
398729

MARCANTONIO
ENTERPRISES LLC

81285
SAN ANTONIO

ONE LTD PTNSHP

150166
PAYEZ LLC

81275
DTLC

INVESTMENTS LLC
445975
DTLC

INVESTMENTS
LLC

4" WL

8" WL

6"
WL

10"WL

8" WL

8"
WL

4" WL

8" WL

4" WL

3/4" WL

10" WL

8" WL

2" WL

12" WL

10" WL12" W
L

12" WL

4" WL

12" WL

12"WL

12" W
L

12" WL

12" WL

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

BAUGH LN

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

SCHWAB RD

PVT RD AT 23135 IH 35 N

DAVID
LACK

BLVD

PV
T R

D A
T 1

26
0 S

CH
WA

B R
D

IH 35 NIH 35 N

HOMESTEAD

PKWY

IH 35 N RAMP

IH 35 N RAMP

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

UNNAMED ST

FRIESENHAHN LN

8" PVCC900DR 14

12" PVC C900 DR 14

8" PVC SDR 26

8" PVC SDR 26

8" PVC SDR 26

(70' ROW)'

Commercial Collector

A (DAVID LACK BLVD)

(120' - 130' ROW)'

Principal Arterial

(SCHWAB RD)

(70' ROW)'

Residential Collector

(HOMESTEAD PKWY)

(70' ROW)' Planned

Commercial

Collector A (EAST

& WEST CONNECTOR)

(250' ROW)'

Freeway

(IH 35 N)

(70' ROW)'

Commercial Collector

A (FRIESENHAHN LN)

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

4 1 Inch = 200 Feet
SAN ANTONIO ONE LTD PTNSHP

23331 IH 35
JF ZEPEDA 40.562 AC 0 200 400 600100

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"



VICINITY MAP
COMAL COUNTY,TEXAS

PROJECT   LOCATION
DAVID LA

CK

CYPRESS

SCH
W

AB RD

2.565
42.485

(6.011 ACRES)

Exhibit A
6.011



4

!"#$53

PDD

M-1

PUBPUB

PDD

GB

GB

M-1

HO M ESTEADPKW Y

FRIESENHAHN LN

0 200 400 600 800 1,000100
Feet

CURRENT

Prop osed  Zoning
Cha nge O RD 21-S-xx

SAN ANTO NIO  TW O  LTD PTNSHP
23331 IH 35 

!"#$53

PDD

M-1

PUBPUB

PDD

GB

GB

M-1

M-1

HO M ESTEADPKW Y

FRIESENHAHN LN

Classification
(PRE) Pre-Develop m ent
(PDD) Pla nned  Develop m ent
(PUB) Pub lic  Use
(R-A) Single-fa m ily Resid entia l/Agricultura l
(R-1) Single-Fa m ily Resid entia l
(R-2) Single-Fa m ily Resid entia l
(R-3) Two-Fa m ily Resid entia l
(R-4) Ap a rtm ent/M ulti-Fa m ily Resid entia l
(R-6) Single-fa m ily Resid entia l
(R-7) Single-fa m ily Resid entia l
(GH) Ga rd en Hom e/Single-Fa m ily Resid entia l (Zero Lot Line)

(TH) Townhom e
(M HS) M a nufa c tured  Hom e Sub d ivision
(M HP) M a nufa c tured  Hom e Pa rks
(GB) Genera l Business
(GB-2) Genera l Business II
(NS) Neighb orhood  Servic es
(O P) O ffic e a nd  Professiona l
(M SM U) M a in Street M ixed  Use
(M SM U-ND) M a in Street M ixed  Use New Develop m ent
(M -1) M a nufa c turing (Light)
(M -2) M a nufa c turing (Hea vy)
(DV L) Develop m ent Agreem ent (Dela yed  Annexa tion)

La st Up d a te: Sep tem b er 15, 2021
“The City of Sc hertz p rovid es this Geogra p hic  Inform a tion System  p rod uct "a s is" without a ny exp ress or im p lied
wa rra nty of a ny kind  inc lud ing b ut not lim ited  to the im p lied  wa rra nties of m erc ha nta b ility a nd  fitness for a  p a rticula r p urp ose.
In no event sha ll The City of Sc hertz b e lia b le for a ny sp ec ia l, ind irec t or c onsequentia l d a m a ges or a ny d a m a ges wha tsoever a rising out of or in c onnec tion
with the use of or p erform a nc e of these m a teria ls. Inform a tion p ub lished  in this p rod uc t c ould  inc lud e tec hnic a l ina c c ura c ies or typ ogra p hic a l errors. Period ic a l
c ha nges m a y b e m a d e a nd  inform a tion m a y b e a d d ed  to the inform a tion herein.  The City of Sc hertz m a y m a ke im p rovem ents a nd /or c ha nges in the p rod uct(s)
d escrib ed  herein a t a ny tim e.”

City of Sc hertz, GIS Ad m insitra tor:  Tony M c Fa lls, gis@sc hertz.c om  (210) 619-1184

PRO PO SED



 

MH1420
Highlight

MH1420
Highlight

MH1420
Highlight

MH1420
Highlight

MH1420
Architect
Draft Exhibit: Not approved/certified possible changes could be made.



Agenda No. 13.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: October 12, 2021

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 21-S-44  - Conduct a public hearing and consideration and or/action to

approve an Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas to amend
the Schertz Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code (UDC), Article 5,
Subsection 21.5.8 Permitted Use Table, to add "Aggregate Extraction". (First
Reading) (B. James/L. Wood/M. Harrison)

BACKGROUND
Per Section 21.5.8.C.3 of the Unified Development Code (UDC), "It is recognized that the permitted
use chart may require amendment, from time to time, to allow for uses that were otherwise not
permitted. In the event an amendment to the permitted use chart is required, the procedure for the
amendment shall be the same as required for an amendment to the text of the UDC in accordance
with section 21.4.7 of this UDC." Staff was approached by a property owner about a use that involved
removing significant amounts of soil from a property and taking in additional soil on the property.
Essentially, selling dirt that is desirable for construction and taking soil that is not desirable for
construction. The use is not listed in the UDC, so staff is proposing an amendment to the table of uses to
add this use and indicate in which districts it is allowed. Although not directly addressing the proposed
UDC amendment, the property owner who prompted this has provided materials they have asked to be
included in the packet to explain how this type of operation might work.

Aggregates are any commonly recognized as construction material such as stone, crushed and broken
limestone, crushed and broken granite, other types of crushed and broken stone, construction sand and
gravel, industrial sand, dirt, soil, or caliche.
Staff would define Aggregate Extraction as, the removal of stone, sand, gravel, dirt, soil or caliche or
the addition of those materials. 

GOAL 
The project goal is to add, Aggregate Extraction, to the list of uses within the permitted use table,
21.5.8 and determine in which districts it is permitted by right, with a Specific Use Permit (SUP) or not
allowed.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City's desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City's vision of future growth. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
In making a recommendation as to which districts should allow Aggregate Extraction, staff considers
similar uses in the UDC, in particular those where dust and noise would be created by the heavy
equipment such as at a Concrete/Asphalt Batching Plant, which is only allowed in the Manufacturing
Heavy District (M-2) and it requires an SUP.  This type of business, Aggregate Extraction, would have
the same concerns such as the dust created with the removal of all natural vegetation and topsoil, as
well as the noise from the heavy equipment that is used on site. Aggregate Extraction would be



different in that there will not be equipment to crush rock or materials or manufacture cement or asphalt
which is noisy.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on September 22, 2021, at this
meeting the Planning and Zoning Commission felt that the Aggregate Extraction should be allowed
within the Manufacturing Light District (M-1) and Manufacturing Heavy District (M-2) with the
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP).  In doing this it would allow the Commission and City
Council the opportunity to see the proposed layouts, plans, and decide if the location is compatible with
the surrounding land uses.

After the discussion the Planning and Zoning Commission offered a recommendation of approval with
a 6-0 vote to amend the permitted use table to allow Aggregate Extraction with an SUP.   Staff
recommends approval of Ordinance No. 21-S-44 on first reading.
 

Attachments
Ord. No. 21-S-44 
Property Owner Request 



ORDINANCE NO. 21-S-44 

 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS TO 

AMENDING PART III, SCHERTZ CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE UNIFIED 

DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) ARTICLE 5, SECTION 21.5.8 PERMITTED USE 

TABLE; SPECIFICALLY TO ADD AGGREGATE EXTRACTION; REPEALING ALL 

ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT WITH THIS 

ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 10-S-06, the City of Schertz, Texas (the “City”) adopted 

as Amended and Restated Unified Development Code on April 13, 2010, as further amended (the 

“Current UDC”); and 

 

WHEREAS, City Staff has reviewed the Current UDC and have recommended certain revision 

and updates to, and reorganization of, the Current UDC; 

 

WHEREAS, on September 22, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 

hearing and thereafter recommended approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021 the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 

considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 

determined that the proposed amendments are appropriate and in the interest of the public safety, 

health and welfare; 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 

THAT: 

Section 1.  The current UDC is hereby amended as set forth on Exhibit A hereto. 

 

 Section 2.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 

such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 

the judgment and findings of the Council. 

 

Section 3. All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 

with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

 

 Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

 

 Section 5.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 

declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

  



 Section 6.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

 

 Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 

of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 

as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 

 Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 

publication required by law. 

 

Approved on first reading the 12th day of October, 2021. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 26th day of October, 2021. 

      

 

____________________________________ 

      Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary   

(SEAL OF THE CITY)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proposed UDC Amendment: 

Article 5, Section 21.5.8, - Permitted Use Table 

Proposed changes to the Permitted Use Table to add Aggregate Extraction: 

Zoning District P=Permitted/ S= Specific Use Permit Permitted Uses 

Manufacturing Light District (M-
1) 

S Aggregate Extraction 

Manufacturing Heavy District 
(M-2) 

S Aggregate Extraction 

 







Buchholtz Property

General Nature and Scope of Proposed Dirt Excavation Project

• There will be a 5 ft. dirt berm built around the entire excavation site. “No Trespassing, Open Excavation” signs 
will be posted around the excavation site.

• There will be a 50 ft. buffer zone around the perimeter of the property. This zone will hold the 5 ft. dirt berm 
and contain native grasses to assist in handling storm water runoff.

• At any given time, there should be no more than 5-10 people 
onsite.

• Excavation would begin on the eastern side of the property roughly following the highlighted yellow line on 
the insert below.





Buchholtz Property

General Nature and Scope of Proposed Dirt Excavation Project

• The initial excavation pit would be roughly 2,500-3,000 feet long and 300 feet wide beginning at location B-3 
and working toward location B-2 (B-2 and B-3 indicate test drilling sites to 50 feet). The depth of the material 
excavated from the pits would be roughly 12-25 feet deep depending on the makeup of the soil.

• After all suitable material has been excavated from the pit, then the pit area is “reclaimed” by filling the pit with 
good dump material (only dirt…no construction debris such as concrete, trees, steel rebar, etc. will be allowed). 
The pit is then compacted and graded. Native grasses will begin to grow on the reclaimed areas.

• There may be several excavation pits in different stages of excavating/filling. The plan is to start around the 
yellow line on the previous insert and work westward across the property.



Buchholtz Property

General Nature and Scope of Proposed Dirt Excavation Project

• Brush and old structures will be removed to enable additional excavation as well as providing additional safety in 
the event of an aircraft mishap. Brush removal should also minimize issues with birds in the area.

• Our intent is to also reduce the slope of the property as it slopes downward towards Ware-Seguin Road. This 
should increase pilot safety.

• Some stockpiles of material may exist onsite waiting to be loaded into dump trucks.

• Possible screening machines onsite to divide the material into different piles based upon composition.

• TCEQ large construction NOI will be posted onsite.

• We plan on utilizing our Lower Seguin Road easement for a majority of truck traffic.

• Normal working hours M-Sa




	Agenda
	9-28-2021 draft min
	Resignations_appointments to Boards
	Resolution 21-R97
	ATT_MAP
	Drainage Easement with SCUCISD for Drainage Improvements Associated with the Elbel Storm Drain and Overlay Project
	ATT_Resolution 21-R-81
	ATT_SCUCISD Elbel Easement
	Aviation Heights (Ph. 5-7) Waterline Improvements Construction Materials Testing and Inspection
	ATT_21-R-113
	ATT_Task Order
	NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.
	ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES OF ENGINEER
	ARTICLE 2 – OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
	ARTICLE 3 – TERM; TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES
	ARTICLE 4 – INVOICES AND PAYMENTS
	ARTICLE 5 – OPINIONS OF COST
	ARTICLE 6 – GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS
	ARTICLE 7 – DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE 8 – EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is indicated on Page 1.
	SUGGESTED FORM OF TASK ORDER
	[NOTE TO USER: Modify as to scope, compensation, schedule, and other key items.]

	1. Background Data
	[Select one of the following three options and delete the other two.]
	[or]
	[1. If RPR services are not in the scope of this Task Order, do not include any references to RPR services in Exhibit A (Paragraph A1.05.A.2) for this Task Order (or state “Does not apply” or similar), or in any other scope of services text or document.
	[If the design under this Task Order will be governed by a Construction Cost limit, then  include the following clause, with  blanks filled in, and thereby incorporate Exhibit F; if not, then  delete the clause or indicate “Does not apply” or similar)]
	Engineer shall also provide the following services: [Summarize or provide a brief description of other services (if any) that are to be provided by Engineer as Basic Services, but have not been addressed in Paragraphs 2.A through 2.C. If applicable, c...

	3. Additional Services
	[Select one of the following three options and delete the other two.]
	[or]

	4. Owner's Responsibilities
	5. Task Order Schedule
	6. Payments to Engineer
	[Notes: 1. Delete line items that do not apply to this Task Order. 2. For each line item indicate either “Lump Sum,” “Direct Labor,” or “Hourly Rates” as the Basis of Compensation. 3. Cross-references are to Exhibit A. Revise if necessary, or

	7. Consultants retained as of the Effective Date of the Task Order:
	[Supplement or modify Agreement and Exhibits, if appropriate.]

	Engineer's Services for Task Order
	[Introductory Note to User:

	PART 2—ADDITIONAL SERVICES
	Owner's Responsibilities
	Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses
	ARTICLE 2 – OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

	Reimbursable Expenses Schedule
	[Note to User: Customize this Schedule to reflect anticipated reimbursable expenses on this Specific Project]

	Schedule of Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative
	[Notes to User
	CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

	Construction Cost Limit
	Special Provisions
	Amendment To Task Order No.
	[Include the following paragraphs that are applicable and delete those not applicable to this amendment.  Refer to paragraph numbers used in the Agreement or a previous amendment for clarity with respect to the modifications to be made. Use paragraph ...
	[List other Attachments, if any]


	ATT_Contract
	Semi-Annual Impact Fee Report
	ATT_Resolution 21-R-114
	ATT_Attachment A Semiannual
	ATT_Attachment B Minutes for April
	Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Vehicle_Equipment Replacement Program
	ATT_Resolution 21-R-112 Backup material
	ATT_EMS Ambulance Letter of Intent
	ATT_Resolution 21-R-112 EMS-Fire Vehicle Resolution
	Resolution 21-R-108 Raba Kistner QC Services for WHC WW Project
	ATT_Resolution 21-R-108
	ATT_Task Order Agreement
	PND21-022-00 Proposal
	PND21-022-00 Cost Estimate


	Ordinance 21-T-46
	ATT_21-T-46
	ATT_Exhibit A
	Refunding Bonds Series 2021
	ATT_Ordinance 21-B-45
	Ord No. 21-S-42 9049 Trainer Hale Subdivision
	ATT_Ord. No. 21-S-42
	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Zoning Exhibit
	ATT_Citizen Response
	Ord. No. 21-S-43 San Antonio One Zone Change
	ATT_Ord. No. 21-S-43
	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Zoning Exhibit
	ATT_Rezone Exhibit
	ATT_Draft Exhibit SAOne
	Ord. No 21-S-44 Buchholtz Property UDC Amendment
	ATT_Ord. No. 21-S-44
	ATT_Property Owner Request
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7


